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ARER
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

~EER

Financial Adviser B RS

Dakin Capital Limited ERRBMEARAA

Suite 3111A, 31/F o

Tower 2, Lippo Centre ©$E B 895%

89 Queensway EROE

Hong Kong 31ESITIAE
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Moore CPA Limited RESHESTMEBHMERAR
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Public Interest Entity Auditors registered in accordance R 5 B 75 0 3R B 16 1 S i
with the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance NEF = EEBZEE

801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1 EE

30 Canton Road NELDIE

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon EER & 305%

Hong Kong R L1 EE801-806 =

Registered Office in Cayman Islands HERSTMBRER

P.O. BOX 31119 P.O. BOX 31119

Grand Pavilion Grand Pavilion

Hibiscus Way Hibiscus Way

802 West Bay Road 802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman Grand Cayman

KY1-1205 KY1-1205

Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

Principal Place of Business and FTEEEMERET

Headquarters

5D-506 F1.6 Block H BRI

Tianfa Building EHE

Tianan Chegongmiao Industrial Park AEBRNBEIER

Futian District RBEKRE

Shenzhen, China F1.65D-506 =

Place of Business In Hong Kong EBEXME

Unit 702, 7/F EBIEE

Greenfield Tower ESZAEES

Concordia Plaza R 6838 15%

1 Science Museum Road BERES

Tsim Sha Tsui East A

Kowloon, Hong Kong TET02E
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Principal Banks

Citibank
|CICI Bank Limited

Share Registrars and Transfer Offices

Hong Kong

Tricor Investor Services Limited
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Cayman Islands

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
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Cayman Islands

Stock Name
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Stock Code
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4 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2023

FERIT
TETERTT
ICICI Bank Limited

BREOBEERLE
B8
FEBEFEZLERAA
'

BRE165%
BRRSEFPLITE

FREMHS

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
2nd Floor, Century Yard

Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman, KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

K&

SPROCOMM INTEL

B AR AR

1401

NN

WWW.Sprocomm.com



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFUHERE

Results E 4
Year ended 31 December
BZE+-A=t+—-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=fE CZ—E--fF —E--% —E-FE —ET-AF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETRT ARETR AREFTRT ARETR
Revenue Yz 2,822,921 1,450,377 2,000,104 2,182,038 3,117,648
Cost of sales HEMRA (2,523,333)  (1,246,747)  (1,827,867)  (1,988,615)  (2,890,495)
Gross profit ER 299,588 203,630 172,237 193,423 227,153
Profit/(loss) before tax BBATER/ (BR) 39,947 9,825 (15,859) 33,651 44,414
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (EE) 31,016 6,361 (18,059) 30,684 37,763
Profit/(loss) attributable to: ME AR
wA/ (E8)
— Owners of the Company ~KRRERA 32,369 6,506 (17,754) 30,879 38,998
- Non-controlling interests — RS (1,353) (145) (305) (195) (1,235)
31,016 6,361 (18,059) 30,684 37,763
Assets and Liabilities BEEREE
As at 31 December
T=A=t-H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—g-=f -—T--f -—ET--% C-—E-TF TN
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETRT ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Total assets EERE 3,822,154 1,460,989 1,102,701 1,207,484 1,625,965
Total liabilities BELE (3,470,940) (1,140,280 (786,864) (872,337) (1,322,972
351,214 320,709 315,837 335,147 302,993
Equity attributable to: PTEAEGES
— Owners of the Company . YNCIE YU 352,085 320,222 315,924 333,336 300,987
- Non-controlling interests — IR 87) 487 87) 1,811 2,006
351,214 320,709 315,837 335,147 302,993

Note: The financial figures for each of the five years ended 31 December 2023/
as at the respective year-end were extracted from the consolidated financial

statements in the annual reports of 2023, 2022, 2021 and 2020.

The summary above does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

M BEZZ-_=ZF+-A=+—ALFEAFESE/
REEREFERNV BB EE_—_S-_=—F -

E-T -
BHMIB®RE -

R R DT TFEFMAE

A EETBREEZSRA BRI —#8D ©
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERWE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (the “Company”), | present the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023
to the shareholders of the Company.

Business Review

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group, as one
of the leading ODM mobile phone suppliers based in China,
continued to focus on the research and development, designing,
manufacturing and sale of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile
phones and |oT related products, targeting emerging markets.

In the latter half of 2023, the worldwide smartphone market
experienced a steady recovery. The Group obtained a higher
number of smartphone orders from its major clients during
the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group’s consistent
endeavour to establish and maintain long-term rapport and
confidence with its clients resulted in a substantial growth in its
revenue and profit in 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB2,822.9 million, representing
an increase of approximately 94.6% from approximately
RMB1,450.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
Group’s profit after tax increased by approximately 3.8 times to
approximately RMB31.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 from approximately RMB6.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFEHE

Highlights of the audited results of the Group for the year ended

AEEHE—_T_=_F+_A=1+—RHILF

31 December 2023, as compared to 2022, are shown in the EHKEREERE (B T - —FRHL)H
following table: RR&:
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2023 2022
—E-=F g
(Audited) (Audited)
(REXZ) (')
Revenue (RMB’000) e (AREFIT) 2,822,921 1,450,377
Net profit for the year (RMB’000) FARLEF(AREFIT) 31,016 6,361
Earnings per share AR
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAREE(ARED) 3.24 0.65

ZZTZ=FFHK Sprocomm Inteligence Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESE

Outlook and Strategy

Going forward, China’s ODM mobile phone market will be filled
with challenges and opportunities. While the global economy
still requires some time to recover, the Group will take this
opportunity to solidify its leading market position. Further, the
Directors consider that the rapid roll-out of 5G telecommunication
network in different parts of the world will drive the demand for
smartphones and loT products.

In order to capture the potential market opportunities and
maximise the interests of the Company and its shareholders, the
Group will adopt a prudent approach to develop its business,
enhance its research and development capability, enrich its
product portfolio and increase its sales and marketing effort to
diversify its geographical locations.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our valued shareholders, customers, suppliers, banks
and to our management and employees for their continuous
trust and support to the Group. The coming year will be full of
opportunities and challenges and we will strive our best to create
greater value for our shareholders and investors.

By order of the Board
Mr. Li Chengjun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEE R E IS &

Business Overview

The Group is an ODM mobile phone supplier based in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), primarily engaged in
research and development, designing, manufacturing and sale
of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile phones and 10T related
products, targeting emerging markets.

The Group’s products are sold worldwide with strategic focus
on emerging markets which have high population and growing
demands on mobile phones. Revenue generated from PRC and
other emerging markets accounted for 99.6% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group’s
customers include various top local branded mobile phone
suppliers, telecommunication operators and trading companies
in the PRC, India, other Asian countries and other parts of the
world.

In the latter half of 2023, the worldwide smartphone market
experienced a steady recovery. The Group obtained a higher
number of smartphone orders from its major customers during
the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group’s consistent
endeavour to establish and maintain long-term rapport and
confidence with its customers resulted in a substantial growth in
its revenue and profit in 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB2,822.9 million, representing
an increase of approximately 94.6% from approximately
RMB1,450.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
Group’s profit after tax increased by approximately 3.8 times to
approximately RMB31.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 from approximately RMB6.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

EBHE

ﬁﬁlﬁ*ﬁﬁ#$$AE EFIER (THRE )
,H/\%ﬁilim SEODMF e £ 2

%%ﬁ% AT BEREE T - FHEAEH

il S8 BE AR AR 2 I Bk A AR R EE R o
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BE_ZT-_=_F+_A=1T—RHLEFE 'K
S BR8N H b 37 BT 5 RO W s (5 AR Uk
TmM99.6% c AEBEMEFEETE - HE -
HMBEMNERRE2HREME T NS RTARK
AtmEFuitEn EEELERAESLRR -

RF-ZFTEE  2RELFRTHES
MR -BE-B-=FT-A=T—BLFE
AREEEEEEPHE LT RTEHEEN -
ARERES ) REFRYRENE B E
ML - EAREE T =46k Ko
FIAIE R -

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BItFE &K
SEHEBKREHARB28209FE T BE
EE_FFZA=Z+—HLEFENHA
R#1,4504 B BLEMNAI94.6% - REER
B sz -_—_F+_-_/F=+—
HIEFENHARBABE TEMNLI8:E
EHE T _=FT+_H=T—HLEFED
HARESIOBETL -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

Financial Review Bt 7% [©] B8
Revenue W £
Revenue by product categories HEMERE 5 rUaE

The Group’s product portfolio includes smartphones, feature  ANEEWERAES BIESETFH AR FH# -
phones, PCBAs for mobile phones and IoT related products. The  F# &) ENRIE &R 48 25 N W B AR 4B R 2 2 o
Group mainly derives its revenue from the sales of smartphones ~ ZN£2 B ) Uk 55 = B 2k 5 45 & 29 68 F 1 & W it
and 0T products. Set out below is a breakdown of the Group’s MEM - TRHIEBEE T - =FK T - —
total revenue by product categories and the revenue generated F+ - A=+—BHIFEZRERERNE D H
from each product category as a percentage of total revenue for BREZRSEREIEENRZEARAEER
the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022: WmMa D

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLFE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=

% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARETT REAKEN% ARETIT HAKEN%

Mobile phones FH
— Smartphones —ERETF 1,814,028 64.3 701,408 48.4
— Feature phones —IhRERY F K 323,719 11.4 328,346 22.6
Sub-total: INET 2,137,747 75.7 1,029,754 71.0
PCBAs 1) 28 B th 48 5% 55,588 2.0 28,758 2.0
loT related products Y 49 A8 B 7 483,801 17.1 296,514 20.4
Others (Note) HAth (H52) 145,785 5.2 95,351 6.6
Total BEF 2,822,921 100.0 1,450,377 100.0

Note: Others mainly include revenue from the sales of mobile device components ~— ff77 - Et F EREHEARERRENBH R EEIFTD
used for after sales-services and the provision of research and development Was A RIBHFH  EIRERIREAEREEBE D
and technical services for mobile phones, PCBAs and cloud related products. HOBfF 88 R T AR A ©

1 0 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2023



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

The Group’s total revenue increased by 94.6% to RMB2,822.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB1,450.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily attributed
to the significant increase in sales of smartphones to the PRC
and India and increase in sales of 0T related products to the
PRC.

Revenue from mobile phones increased by 107.6% to
RMB2,137.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 from
RMB1,029.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
primarily attributed to the increase in sales of smartphones to the
PRC and India.

Revenue from PCBAs increased by 93.1% to RMB55.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB28.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, as customers placed more
orders for PCBAs to suit their own needs.

Revenue from loT related products increased by 63.2% to
RMB483.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 from
RMB296.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
primarily attributed to the increase in sales orders from two major
customers in the PRC.

AEBEMNBRYZHREE T -_—_F1+=A
—+—HIEFENARKE,4504 BB T8N
UENEBE_TE-_=F+-_A=+—HIF
EMARKE28220FE L TE@ARMEFEH
N ENE B9 %5 A T 1 85 & K08 15 00 A R [A) /R B0
BB AR AR B SR S N o

REFENKEZmEE_ZE-__F+=H
—t+—HLEFEMARYE1,029.88 & TIE N
1076%EHE T -_=F+-_A=+—HI1
FEMARE2137.7BE L T ZHRMEF
B N ENfE W08 B F S & 18 0 ©

REDREBRREZENR=mEBE T ==
FH+ZA=T—HILEFENARK288ES
TCEMNBAREEE_T_=F+_A=1+—
BIEFEMARKss6EETT REARES
EF A EBENRERRAZEARTES
HEXK-

REVBRBEEBERNKEHEE - =_=
FHZA=+—HLEFENARK20655E
TEME32% EHE—_ T _=ZF+_A=+—
HIEFEMARKISGESSEHE L TEHNM
HEBRHEFAEEFTEEM-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DN

Revenue by geographical regions

The Group’s products are sold worldwide with strategic focus
on emerging markets which have high population and growing
demands on mobile phones. Set out below is a breakdown of the
Group’s total revenue by geographical region and the revenue
generated from each region as a percentage of total revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

LU IRA B D Ml e
AEBREEREEER UHKARNRZE
FRF KT ENE R ETISERRIEEE, o
TRISBEHE-E-_=FR-_T-__F+=
A=+—BPLEFERMES SR KE RS
HEEEANKSEREELRENE DL

Year ended 31

December

BE+T-A=+t—HLFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E- =
% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARBTT HHAKREN% ARETIT HBAKEN%
Emerging Asia M EE R
India ENE 863,557 30.6 757,814 52.2
The PRC F 1,742,400 61.7 509,101 35.1
Pakistan & HTiE 131,798 4.7 - -
People’s Republic of TR A R 2L AN
Bangladesh 74,572 2.6 95,368 6.6
Republic of Korea 45 - - 26,802 1.9
Sub-total: NEE 2,812,327 99.6 1,389,085 95.8
Other regions Hithith &
Algeria o] B8 % K1) 38 10,568 0.4 27,917 1.9
United States of America EF|ER A R - - 20,377 1.4
Others Etb 26 - 12,998 0.9
Sub-total: NET 10,594 0.4 61,292 4.2
Total &5t 2,822,921 100.0 1,450,377 100.0

Revenue from India increased by 14.0% to RMB863.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB757.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily attributed to the
increase in demand for smartphones.

Revenue from the PRC increased by 242.3% to RMB1,742.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB509.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily attributed
to increase in sales orders for smartphones and IoT related
products from major customers in the PRC.

1 2 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

Revenue from Pakistan increased to RMB131.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 from nil for the year ended
31 December 2022, primarily attributed to the increase in
the Group’s marketing effort to expand its sales geographical
locations.

Revenue from People’'s Republic of Bangladesh decreased by
21.8% to RMB74.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
from RMB95.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
primarily attributed to decrease in sales orders for smartphones
from a major customer.

Revenue from the Republic of Korea decreased to nil for the year
ended 31 December 2023 from RMB26.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, primarily attributed to the Group’s
strategic decision to reserve its production capacity for the sales
orders from the PRC and India.

Revenue from the United States of America decreased to nil for
the year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB20.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily attributed to the
Group’s strategic decision to reserve its production capacity for
the sales orders from the PRC and India.

Revenue from Algeria decreased by 62.0% to RMB10.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB27.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily attributed to the
decrease in demand for smartphones.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit increased by 47.1% to RMB299.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 from RMB203.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022. Gross profit margin decreased to
10.6% for the year ended 31 December 2023 from 14.0% for the
year ended 31 December 2022. The increase in gross profit was
primarily attributed to the increase in sales to major customers.

KEEEFENKEHBE—_"T - —F+—
A=+t - HULFENTENEBEE_T_=
Ft-A=t-HLFENARKIZ1.8EHE
T EEARAKRENKREHNE  BEAHH
EHE

REZNMUARENBONRGZHEEZE -
T CH+ A=+ HILEFEMARKI4
BETRL218%EHE T -_=ZF+=-A
—t+—HIEFEMARB746BE T £ 2
HRRE— B X2 R EREFHRIEETE
B e

RKERBREMNKGHEBEEZE S -_—_F+=
A=+—HLEFEMARKE268EELH D
ERE_ZT-_=Ft+_A=+—HILEFEHNE
TEHRAEEERR DR TREBERNAR
KB RENERHEEETE -
REEMBERBENKEEEE_S =
TZA=T—HIEFEMARK204FETT
B EHE-_Z-_=F+=-A=+—HLLF
ENE TEHRAEEERE LRTRE
ERUARPERINERNEERE -

RKEMBERANEMNEGEEE - -
TZA=T—HLEFEMNARK2ZTIOEE T
B e20%eHE—_SE-_=ZF+_-_A=+—H
FtFEMARBI06EE T TEHN T
FHFIOHA o

ERNREFZER
EANHBE—_TE__F+_A=+—HLHF
ERARB2203.6EBE T MATANEEE
TEC=F+_A=+—BULEFEHARKE
2906 BBITL EMERBE_T__F+=
A=Z+—BILEEN140% TRHEHE - Z
=T A=1+—"BILEFEMN106% - EF|
ENEBRARAETERFMHEEEM -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

Other gains and income

Other gains and income mainly include comprises government
subsidies and amortisation of government subsidies, bank
interest income, exchange gain and sundry income. The Group’s
other gains and income decreased by 25.7% to RMB38.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 from RMB52.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily attributed to the
decrease in exchange gain by RMB13.4 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly represent transportation
and custom declaration expenses, salaries and employee
benefits of our sales and marketing staff, business-related
travelling and entertainment expenses. Selling and distribution
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2023 increased by
51.3% to RMB58.7 million from RMB38.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, primarily attributed to the increase in
transportation and custom declaration expenses resulting from
the significant increase in sales.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly represent salaries and benefits of our
administrative and management staff, depreciation, amortisation of
intangible assets, general office expenses, legal and professional fees,
rental expenses, insurance expenses, bank charges, impairment loss
recognised in respect of trade and bills receivables, exchange losses
and other miscellaneous administrative expenses. Administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2023 remained relatively
stable at RMB64.3 million as compared with RMB64.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses for the year ended 31
December 2023 increased by 12.6% to RMB139.7 million
from RMB124.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
primarily attributed to the increase in material costs for research
and development.

Finance costs

Finance costs mainly represent interests on discounted
bills, interest portion of lease liabilities, bank borrowings and
factoring loans. The Group’s finance costs for the year ended 31
December 2023 increased by 96.1% to RMB35.8 million from
RMB18.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily
attributed to increase in interest on discounted bills financing and
factoring loans.

1 4 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

Income tax expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s income tax
expenses amounted to RMB8.9 million as compared with RMB3.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The increase in
income tax expenses was primarily attributed to the increase in
assessable profits for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Net profit for the year

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded a net profit
of RMB31.0 million (2022: RMB6.4 million) for the year ended 31
December 2023. The Group’s net profit margin improved to 1.1%
for the year ended 31 December 2023 from 0.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Dividend
The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

Trade and bills receivables

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade and bills receivables
amounted to RMBB808.8 million (31 December 2022: RMB191.7
million). The significant increase in trade and bills receivables
as at 31 December 2023 was primarily attributed to increase
in turnover from RMB1,450.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to RMB2,822.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2023. The Group generally grants credit period
ranging from 30 to 90 days to its customers and allows its PRC
customers to settle their purchases by way of bills with maturity
period ranging from three to six months.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group carefully assesses the
background information and credit worthiness of its customers
before it decides to grant them credit periods. Further, the Group
also closely monitors the payment record of its customers and
regularly reviews the credit terms granted to them. The Group’s
credit assessment is based on various factors, including but not
limited to the financial strength, size of the business and payment
history of customers and length of their business relationship with
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

The Group’s average trade and bills receivables turnover days for
the year ended 31 December 2023 were 64.7 days (2022: 52.6
days), which were within the range of credit periods normally
offered by the Group to its customers. The lengthened average
trade and bills receivables turnover days were primarily attributed
to the increase in trade and bills receivables with longer credit
period. Based on the dates of the relevant sales invoices, 97.8%
of the Group’s trade and bills receivables aged within 90 days
and the Group did not notice any substantial long outstanding
balances.

Trade and bills payables

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade and bills payables
amounted to RMB3,158.7 million (31 December 2022:
RMB940.6 million). The significant increase in trade and bills
payables as at 31 December 2023 was primarily attributed to
the increase in the use of bank acceptance bills by the Group to
settle its purchases. Suppliers generally grant the Group credit
period ranging from 30 to 60 days, with certain suppliers require
the Group to make advance payment before product delivery.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.
Certain suppliers allow the Group to settle its purchases by
way of bank acceptance bills and the Group may also endorse
certain bills receivables to its suppliers in order to settle the trade
payable due to them.

The Group’s average trade and bills payables turnover days for
the year ended 31 December 2023 were 296.5 days (2022:
214.4 days). The lengthened average trade and bills payables
turnover days were primarily attributed to the increase in the use
of bank acceptance bills by the Group to settle its purchases.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

Capital structure, liquidity, financial
resources and gearing

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 13 November 2019. There
has been no change in the capital structure of the Group since
then. The Group mainly funds its business and working capital
requirements by using a balanced mix of internal resources,
borrowings and funds from the global offering.

The funding mix will be adjusted depending on the costs of
funding and the actual needs of the Group. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group recorded a positive cash flow
from operating activities of RMB1,573.1 million (Year ended 31
December 2022: positive cash flow of RMB555.9 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current assets
of RMB272.8 million (31 December 2022: RMB225.7 million),
cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB68.0 million (31
December 2022: RMB36.6 million), pledged bank deposits of
RMB2,368.4 million (31 December 2022: RMB764.4 million)
and borrowings amounted to RMB154.4 million (31 December
2022: RMB51.8 million). The Group’s cash and cash equivalents
and bank borrowings as at 31 December 2023 were mainly
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had borrowings of
RMB35.0 million (31 December 2022: RMB10.0 million) subject
to fixed interest rates and borrowings of RMB119.4 million (31
December 2022: RMB41.8 million) subject to variable interest
rates. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a current ratio of
1.1 times (31 December 2022: 1.2 times) and gearing ratio of 0.4
(calculated by dividing total debt by total equity) (31 December
2022: 0.2).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s unutilised borrowing
facilities amounted to RMB29.8 million (31 December 2022:
RMB110.4 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group incurred cash
flows on capital expenditures for the purchase of properties,
plant and equipment in the amount of RMB7.0 million (2022:
RMB8.5 million); and intangible assets in the amount of RMB0.9
million (2022: RMBO0.8 million), respectively.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any capital
commitments (31 December 2022: RMB1.7 million in relation to
the purchase of property, plant and equipment).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees (31 December 2022: nil).

Pledge of assets and restricted deposit

As at 31 December 2023, the Group pledged trade and bills
receivables with carrying amount of RMB73.7 million (31
December 2022: RMB24.0 million), bank deposits with carrying
amount of RMB2,368.4 million (31 December 2022: RMB764.4
million) and land and building with carrying amount of RMB47.6
million (31 December 2022: RMB50.6 million) to secure its
borrowings and banking facilities.

Material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group disposed
of a wholly owned subsidiary at a consideration of approximately
RMB14.4 million and recognised a loss on disposal of
approximately RMBO0.4 million. Immediately prior to disposal, this
subsidiary possessed the land use right of a land parcel situated
at Nanhui New Town, Pudong New Area. The disposal was
primarily driven by the Group’s strategic decision to reallocate
resources to its business operations. Other than this disposal, the
Group did not have any other material acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures in 2023.

1 8 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2023

EAXREX

BE_ZT_="F+_A=+—HLFE K
SERBEDE BERRBEEERAAX
BeReEARB7T0BEL (ZE__F: A
RE8sBET) REFEEARKOIBET
(ZZ=—F: AR%08HET) °

BARENE

RZBZ=4+-A=+—-0 FEELEE
MEAER(CE-—F+-A=+—A0 &
MBENE R RRENERREARE T

£ —

BET) °

HAREE
R-B-=#+-A=+—H A%ELE
EAEARARERRR (T =%+
=t—8:2)-

EEEBARZIREER
R-ZZE-_=F+-A=+—8 AREEX
NIRTTRE  ASECEKFREEEAARE
7R37EEL(ZE_F+=ZA=+—H: A
RE20BB L) MESBERFERERE
B BREEAARK23684HETL(ZTE -
F+ZA=+t—H: AR%7644EETL) N
BITEREEAEAARE7T6EEL(ZE
——F+-A=+—H: AR%506EET)
Byt RETF o

EANBRLEHMELR BEQ
ARAELRRE
BE-T-=F+-A=t+-HALFE K%
BURBOARBUIBETHE H2E
MEBAR LHEHEBRADARBIEE
Lo REHER  ZMEAREARRNER
FE #7450 40— 0 St SR M L 58 A - ORI
WIEEIE$EIE“Wt&E%§ﬁ%
BRELHEE - BRAHEN  FEER T

fEIﬂEHEWEKW%&ﬁ%WEQE
BENRREADE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

Significant investments held by the group

Saved as disclosed herein, the Group did not make any other
significant investments during the year ended 31 December
2023.

Future plans for material investments and
capital assets

Saved as disclosed herein, the Group did not have any future
plans for material investments and capital assets during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Foreign exchange risks

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group derived
54.8% (2022: 64.9%) of its total revenue from export sales
and these export sales were principally denominated in USD.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had USD-denominated
monetary assets with carrying amount of RMB211.9 million (31
December 2022: RMB128.7 million) and USD-denominated
monetary liabilities of RMB221.5 million (31 December 2022:
RMB33.9 million). The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from its export sales, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies. Any appreciation of RMB
against USD will have a negative impact on the Group’s profit
margin. Management of the Group regularly reviews the impact
of exchange risk exposure on the Group’s financial performance
and may use foreign exchange hedging instruments to reduce
the Group’s exchange risk exposure if appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR D

Employees, remuneration policy and
training

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 1,328 employees (31
December 2022: 890 employees), whose remunerations and
benefits are determined based on market rates, government
policies and individual performance. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group’s total staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments, salaries, allowances and other benefits
and contributions to retirement benefits scheme) amounted
to RMB145.0 million (2022: RMB141.5 million). To provide
incentives or rewards to its employees, the Company adopted
a share option scheme, particulars of which are set out in the
section headed “Share option scheme” in this announcement.
The Group provides comprehensive training and development
opportunities to its employees on a regular basis. The trainings
are arranged according to needs of employees, which are
identified annually by individual departments.

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC are required to participate in a state-managed retirement
benefit scheme (the “Defined Contribution Scheme”) operated
by the PRC government. The Group is required to contribute
a certain percentage of basic payroll costs to the Defined
Contribution Scheme.

The Group’s contributions to the Defined Contribution Scheme
vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly, (i)
for the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no forfeiture
of contributions under the Defined Contribution Scheme; and
(i) there were no forfeited contributions available for the Group
to reduce its existing level of contributions to the Defined
Contribution Scheme as at 31 December 2023. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Defined Contribution Scheme.

Event after the reporting period

Saved as disclosed herein, the Group does not have any
important events after the year ended 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEASRHN

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Chengjun (Z & &), aged 51, is an executive Director,
the chief executive officer and the chairman of the Board
and is mainly responsible for corporate strategic planning,
overseeing the overall operations, day-to-day management
and business development of the Group. Mr. Li established
Shenzhen Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (R YIKE B =R B R A 7)) (“Shenzhen Sprocomm”),
the main operating subsidiary of the Group, with Mr. Xiong
Bin on 16 September 2009. He is also currently the director
of the Company’s subsidiaries, namely Shenzhen Sprocomm,
Sprocomm Intelligence (HK) Holdings Limited (/& & & #E 12 A%
AR A7), Sprocomm Technologies Co., Ltd. (K & # 12 Bl &
£ R 2 &), Sprocomm Technologies Co., Ltd. (K & &z &
B (&%) ABR A 7)), Guizhou Sprocomm Telecommunication
Technology Co., Ltd.* (E MK & @ (= RHE B R A &), Chengdu
Sprocomm Cloud Technology Co., Ltd.* (A& A& ZERIF AR
A 8)), Guizhou Mars Exploration Technology Co., Ltd.* (& /!
KEFREHEA BR2AA), Grace Kirin Limited (£ B B R 2 7)),
Xiaohe Growth Shenzhen Technology Co., Ltd.* (/N AR R Y
B ABR A7) and Shenzhen Fengma New Energy Technology
Co., Ltd.* (Y@ G ¥ e IR B B R A 7). Mr. Li is a director
of Leap Elite Limited, a controlling Shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Li has more than 20 years of relevant experience in the
mobile communications industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Li held a senior management position in the wireless network
department and terminal department of Shenzhen Huawei
Technologies Co., Ltd* (% JI1 2 & £ 17 B BR 2 7)), a company
principally engaged in the telecommunication equipment
business from April 1997 to February 2007, where he was mainly
responsible for the research and development of communication
terminal and sales and marketing. From August 2007 to June
2009, Mr. Li served as the chief executive officer of the business
operation headquarters of SIM Technology Group Limited (&
Bl =B AR A7) (stock code of Stock Exchange: 02000)
(“SIM Technology”), a company whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange and is principally engaged in the manufacturing,
design and development and sale of liquid crystal display
modules, mobile handset solutions, and wireless communication
module solutions, where he was mainly responsible for
overseeing its PRC operation and management. Mr. Li graduated
from Beihang University (1t AL ZE MR A ER) in July 1994 with a
bachelor degree majoring in electrical technology, and then,
graduated with a master degree of engineering in March 1997.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEASEHN

Mr. XIONG Bin (8&#2), aged 46, is an executive Director and
vice chairman of the Board and is mainly responsible for
overseeing the sales and marketing of the Group. Mr. Xiong is
one of the founders of Shenzhen Sprocomm on 16 September
2009. He is also currently the director and vice general manager
of Shenzhen Sprocomm, the director of Windhorse Technologies
INC. (2B &R 5 # e R B A BR A 7)) and the supervisor of
Shanghai Sprocommm Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.*
(EB K BBEREARRXAF), Guizhou Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.* (& M K & #{= & &%
AR A A]), Guizhou Mars Exploration Technology Co., Ltd.* (&
Mok 2R ZE R A BB A A]), Shenzhen Fengma New Energy
Technology Co., Ltd.* CRIINE 5 ¥ e R BB R A 5)) and
Luzhou Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.* (/&
MAREBEREARAG) (formerly known as Luzhou Sipukang
Technology Co., Ltd.* (EM B & EEHL A R 2 7). Mr. Xiong is
a director of Beyond Innovation Limited, a controlling Shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Xiong has over 15 years of relevant
experience in the mobile communications industry. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Xiong served in Amoi Electronics Co., Ltd.
(E#E TP BB A A) (“Amoi Electronics”) from July 1999
to May 2008, where he first served as the vice general manager
of finance department responsible for handling the export
business and finance work of the overseas subsidiaries and later
as the vice general manager of the overseas sales department
responsible for overseas sales of smartphone products. Amoi
Electronics is principally engaged in research, manufacturing and
sales of smartphone and other electronic products. From May
2008 to August 2009, Mr. Xiong served as the general manager
of the overseas sales department of SIM Technology, where he
was mainly responsible for marketing and sales of the overseas
smartphone ODM business. Mr. Xiong graduated from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology (3£ # 3£ T K £) in June
1999 and obtained a bachelor degree of economics majoring in
taxation. Mr. Xiong also obtained the qualification of Certified
Public Accountant (non-practising) in the PRC in December
2004.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEASEHN

Mr. GUO Qinglin (28 B #k), aged 41, is an executive Director
and is mainly responsible for managing the operation of supply
chain and sales activities of the Group. He is also currently the
director of the supply chain operation centre of Shenzhen
Sprocomm and a supervisor of Shenzhen Sprocomm. Mr. Guo
has approximately 13 years of relevant experience in the mobile
communications industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Guo
served as a manager in the overseas sales department of Amoi
Electronics from September 2005 to December 2008, where he
was mainly responsible for developing overseas customers,
maintaining the customer relationship and sales of the company’s
main products. From April 2009 to December 2009, Mr. Guo
served as sales director in the overseas sales department of
Nanjing Wanlida Technology Co., Ltd.* (F 3 &8 M Z R AR D
A]), a company principally engaged in the production of
computers, mobile phones and projectors, where he was mainly
responsible for developing overseas customers, maintaining the
customer relationship and sales of the company’s main products.
Mr. Guo graduated from Jimei University* (£ 3 X £) in July
2005 and obtained a bachelor degree of economics majoring in
international economy and trading.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. WEN Chuanchuan (i&)I1JI]), aged 38, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 June 2021.
Prior to Mr. Wen’s appointment as an executive Director, he is a
member of the senior management of the Company. Since 21
September 2016, Mr. Wen has been serving as the director of
the manufacturing centre of Shenzhen Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.* (R Il K & i 15 B &2
B BR A F]), a company established under the laws of the PRC
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
has been responsible for supervising the operation of the
production plants of the Group. He is also currently (i) the director
and general manager of Luzhou Sprocomm Telecommunication
Technology Co., Ltd.* (& /I K & & {5 B B R 2 7)), formerly
known as Luzhou Sipukang Technology Co., Ltd.* (J& /N & & 5
B AR A 7)), a company established under the laws of the
PRC and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
and (i) the general manager of Chengdu Sprocomm Cloud
Technology Co., Ltd.* (A& K & ZRHHE B R A 7]), a company
established under the laws of the PRC and an indirect non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Wen worked as an assistant engineer of Huawei
Machine Company Limited* (¥ & # 25 & R 2 A1), a company
principally engaged in research, development, manufacturing and
sales of communication products from July 2011 to October
2014, where he was mainly responsible for reviewing the
manufacturing plan and leading trial verification for new
smartphone products. Mr. Wen served as a director of the
assembly plant of Shenzhen Andao Yunke Company Limited* ()%
I BERE D B R R E]), a company principally engaged in
development and manufacturing of smart terminals, capacitive
touch screens, machine assembly, metal and glass components
and mobile phone accessories from November 2014 to
September 2016, where he was responsible for the
establishment of machine assembly department and assisting in
the operation of the company’s departments and subsidiaries.

Mr. Wen graduated from the Northwest A&F University (75 1t &
MEH K E) with a bachelor’'s degree of management majoring
in electronic commerce in the PRC in July 2008. In June 2011,
Mr. Wen graduated from the Xi’an Jiaotong University* (78 &2 22
K EB%E 1 2[7) and obtained a master’s degree of engineering
majoring in industrial engineering.

* For identification purpose only
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Wai Man JP (3£ A R), aged 55, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019. Mr.
Hung is a Deputy to the 13th National People’s Congress, and
Adjunct Professor of the Belt and Road Research Institute of
Hainan University.

Mr. Hung is a seasoned ICT professional and angel investor. He
has worked in the computer industry for over 30 years. A well-
known figure in the industry, Mr. Hung has extensive experience
in management consulting, project management and outsourcing
services. Mr. Hung is a Chartered Information Technology
Professional and a fellow of the British Computer Society, the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, the Hong Kong Computer
Society and the Internet Professional Association. He has been
appointed as one of the Global Council Members by the World
Summit Awards.

Mr. Hung is currently Executive Chairman of Chinese Big Data
Society, Life Chairman Emeritus of the Y.Elites Association,
President Emeritus of Internet Professional Association,
Vice Chairman of the Monte Jade Science and Technology
Association of Hong Kong, Secretary General of Hong Kong -
ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation and Vice Chairman
of New Territories General Chamber of Commerce etc. In 2012
to 2014, he had served as an associate member of the Central
Policy Unit of the HKSAR Government. In 2008, Mr. Hung was
selected as one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong
Kong. He was a Standing Committee Member of the 11th All
China Youth Federation. In 2015, he was appointed as a Justice
of the Peace by the Hong Kong SAR Government. In 2016, he
was given the Asia Social Innovation Leadership Award by CMO
Asia.
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Mr. Hung graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Higher Diploma in Maths, Statistics and Computing. He
then obtained a BA (Hons) from the University of Bolton, MBA
from the University of Hull and MA in Public and Comparative
History from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He also
obtained a LLM and LLD from the Renmin University of China,
a Master of Public Administration from Tsinghua University, a
Master of Business Administration (Executive) from City University
of Hong Kong and PhD in Business Administration from Bulacan
State University, the Philippines.

Mr. Hung is currently an independent non-executive director of
LH Group Limited (stock code: 01978), Sino Hotels (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 01221) and K Cash Corporation Limited
(stock code: 02483), the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. WONG Kwan Kit (EE7), aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019. Mr.
Wong has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management, mergers and acquisitions gained from certain
finance related positions of companies listed in Hong Kong. Mr.
Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of Man
Sang International Limited (stock code: 00938) and Culturecom
Holdings Limited (stock code: 00343), both of companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. LU Brian Yong Chen (& 7k 2§), aged 60, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 October
2019. Mr. Lu has served as an independent non-executive
Director of InvesTech Holdings Limited (stock code: 1087), a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and
is principally engaged in designs, development and provision
of communication system and manufacture and sale of signal
transmission and connectivity products from June 2015 to
January 2023. Mr. Lu has over 22 years of management
experience in Fortune 100 companies in Australia, Hong
Kong and the PRC, assisting in their business transformation
and growth. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lu served as a
manager, design/architecture of IBM Australia Limited, a
company principally engaged in manufacturing and selling
computer hardware and software and providing relevant services
from May 1995 to April 2001, where he was responsible for
managing network architecture. From April 2001 to June 2012,
Mr. Lu then served as a client unit executive in the IBM global
technology services department of IBM China/Hong Kong
Limited, a company principally engaged in manufacturing and
selling computer hardware and software and providing relevant
services, where he was responsible for the department’s strategic
planning and execution. Mr. Lu was an industry consultant of
IBM (China) Company Limited, a company principally engaged in
manufacturing and selling computer hardware and software and
providing relevant services from June 2012 to June 2015.

Mr. Lu graduated from South China University of Technology
(I T K2) with a bachelor degree majoring in engineering
in Computer Science in July 1986 and from the University of
New South Wales, Australia with a master degree of information
science in October 1994.

Ms. TSENG Chin | (E & ), aged 55, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2019.
Ms. Tseng is a member of National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and a host/producer
of “Financial Journal” at Phoenix TV, a standing committee
member of Hong Kong Federation of Journalists Ltd, the
founding vice president of GBA Carbon Neutrality Association, an
honorary advisor to the Hong Kong Science & Technology Youth
Federation, and also an honorary advisor to Hong Kong Web
3.0 Association. She is also a partner of BC Capital Group. Ms.
Tseng graduated from Fu Jen Catholic University (X & 28— K
B formerly known as L 37 81~ A 2) with a bachelor degree of
arts majoring in mass communication in June 1991.
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Senior Management

Mr. LIU Shangheng (%l 4 18), aged 40, has been serving as
the financial controller of Shenzhen Sprocomm since December
2011. He is also a director of Shanghai Hemiao Chuangxian
Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd.* ( £/ K& &l B e RHE B R A
al).

Mr. Liu has over 10 years of experience in financial work and
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu held office
relating to cost accounting in Qingdao Haixin Communication
Technology Company Limited* (& & /&5 B{ERIMTAER A7), a
company principally engaged in research, development,
manufacturing and sales of mobile communication terminal
products from August 2006 to October 2008, where he was
mainly responsible for production cost accounting, cost analysis
and control related work. Mr. Liu then served as a director of
finance in Shenzhen Xiongtao Power Supply Technology
Company Limited* (Z I SRR EBKRHBER A R), a
company principally engaged in research, manufacturing and
sales of battery from November 2008 to October 2011, where he
was mainly responsible for cost accounting and preparing the
financial statements and analysis.

Mr. Liu graduated from the Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law (7 BF &L BUE K 2) in June 2006 and obtained two
bachelor degrees majoring in accounting and economics.

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a view
to being a transparent and responsible organisation which is
open and accountable to the shareholders of the Company. The
Board strives to adhere to the principles of corporate governance
and has adopted sound corporate governance practices to
meet the legal and commercial standards, focusing on areas
such as internal control, fair disclosure and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company to ensure the transparency and
accountability of all operations of the Company. The Company
believes that effective corporate governance is an essential
factor to create more value for the shareholders of the Company.
The Board will continue to review and improve the corporate
governance practices of the Group from time to time to ensure
that the Group is led by an effective Board in order to optimise
return.

Corporate culture and strategy

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries include research and
development, design, manufacture and sale of mobile phones,
PCBAs for mobile phones and loT related products. The Group
is committed to provide high quality and reliable products and
services, and to create values to the stakeholders through
sustainable growth and continuous development.

The Board fosters a corporate culture by setting out the following
values to guide the conduct and behaviours of employees and
to ensure that the Company’s vision, mission and business
strategies are aligned to this corporate culture:

—_

Integrity — we strive to do what is right;

2. Excellence — we aim to deliver excellence;

3. Collaboration — we are always better together;

4.  Accountability — we are accountable for delivering on our
commitments;

5. Empathy — we care about our stakeholders — employees,
customers, supply chain and the community; and

6. Sustainability — we are committed to a sustainable future.
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The Group will continue to review and adjust its business
strategies and keep track of the changing market conditions to
ensure prompt and proactive measures will be taken to respond
to the changes and meet the market needs to support the
continuous business development of the Group.

Adoption and compliance of corporate
governance practices

The Company has adopted a set of corporate governance
practices which aligns with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix C1
of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) since 13 November 2019. Except
for code provision C.2.1, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Under the current
organisation structure of the Company, Mr. Li Chengjun is the
Group’s chief executive officer, and he also performs as the
chairman of the Board as he has considerable experience in
the mobile communication industry. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both the chairman of our Board and the chief
executive officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning of the Group.
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Although Mr. Li Chengjun performs both the roles of chairman
of the board and chief executive officer, the division of
responsibilities between the chairman of the board and chief
executive officer is clearly established. In general, the chairman
of the board is responsible for supervising the functions and
performance of the Board, while the chief executive officer is
responsible for the management of the Group’s businesses. The
two roles are performed by Mr. Li Chengjun distinctly. Further,
the current structure does not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and management of the Company
given the appropriate delegation of the power of the Board
and the effective functions of the independent non-executive
Directors.

Model code for securities transactions
by directors of listed issuers (the “Model
Code”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed
that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report.

Chairman and chief executive officer

CG Code provisions C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
segregate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer and
Mr. Li Chengjun currently holds both of the chairman and chief
executive officer positions, as explained in the paragraph headed
“Adoption and compliance of corporate governance practices”
above in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Independent non-executive directors

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience
in the fields of accounting, finance, business and corporate
governance. Their skills, expertise and number in the Board
ensure that strong independent views and judgement are
brought in the Board’s deliberations and that such views and
judgement carry weight in the Board’s decision-making process.
Their presence and participation also enable the Board to
maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other
mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The Company annually assesses the independence
of each independent non-executive Director during their terms
of appointment. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Company received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a written confirmation of their independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all
the independent non-executive Directors are independent from 1
January 2023 to the date of this report.
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The Board

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. The Board’s composition
as at 31 December 2023 is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

E=xg

EEeRANELHNTEE L UE B IFNIT
EFHK R_ZTE-_=F+=-_A=+—H" &

EemAREINIT

BITES

Date of joining

Name Age Gender the Group Roles and responsibilities
HE FiR 1 Bl INAZAEBE B H BERBE
Mr. Li Chengjun 51 Male 16 September 2009 Corporate strategic planning, overseeing
THRELE £ ZEEAFNATRA the overall operations, day-to-day
management and business development
of the Group
REENARIRIKEHRE  BEEEES
B ARBEREREBER
Mr. Xiong Bin 46 Male 16 September 2009 Overseeing the sales and marketing of
AR SR A e ZEEAFNAATRA the Group
EEAEEMNIHE NTISHER
Mr. Wen Chuanchuan 38 Male 21 September 2016 Overseeing the production of the Group
BN 3 ZE-R"ENAAZT—H EErKENEE
Mr. Guo Qinglin 41 Male 18 January 2010 Managing the operation of supply chain
FLEME A E —ZE-ZTF—-HA+N\AH and sales activities of the Group

EEAEENHEREFNIEELTD
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Date of joining

BAFHTES

Name Age Gender the Group Roles and responsibilities

#®E Fir 4 5l MAREBEH B BERBE

Mr. Hung Wai Man 55 Male 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

HAEREE £ —ZE—NF+A+/\B  judgement to the Board
EERAREEGIRMEIE A

Mr. Wong Kwan Kit 51 Male 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

BEEREE e —ZE-AF+A+NAH judgement to the Board
EELREFGIRMIE T HIE

Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen 60 Male 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

=K R A 3 —ZT—AF+A+/\HB judgement to the Board
EERREFGRMIBE S HIE

Ms. Tseng Chin | 55 Female 18 October 2019 Supervising and providing independent

R AT Z —ZE—nF+A+/\B  judgement to the Board

For the biographical details of and relationships among the
members of the Board, please refer to the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership as the executive Directors possess extensive
experience in managing the Group’s business operations; and
professional knowledge in the telecommunication and internet
industry, while the four independent non-executive Directors
possess professional knowledge and broad experience in
accounting, finance, business and corporate governance. The
Directors are of the opinion that the current Board structure
can ensure the independence and objectivity of the Board and
provide a system of checks and balances to safeguard the
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company. It also oversees the Group’s business, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board shall take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company and its shareholders.
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Board independence

The Group has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and such mechanisms
will be reviewed annually by the Board. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the following mechanisms at the Board meeting:

1. Four out of the eight Directors are independent non-
executive directors, which exceeds the requirement of
the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the Board are
independent non-executive directors;

2. The Nomination Committee will assess the independence
of a candidate who is nominated to be a new independent
non-executive director before appointment and the
continued independence of the current long-serving
independent non-executive director (if any) on an annual
basis;

3. All independent non-executive Directors are required to
submit a written confirmation to the Company annually
to confirm the independence of each of them and their
immediate family members, and their compliance with the
requirements as set out in the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

4. Al Directors are entitled to retain independent professional
advisors as and when it is required;

5. All Directors are encouraged to express freely their
independent views and constructive challenges during the
Board/Committee meetings;

6. No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to independent non-executive
Directors;

7. A Director (including independent non-executive Director)
who has a material interest in a contract, transaction or
arrangement shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on
any Board resolution approving the same; and

8. The chairman of the Board meets with independent non-
executive Directors annually without the presence of the
Executive Directors.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of
directors

Each of the executive Directors, expect Mr. Wen Chuanchuan,
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing on 13 November 2019, until
terminated by enter party giving not less than three months’
notice in writing to the other. Mr. Wen Chuanchuan was
appointed as an executive Director on 1 June 2021 and he has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years commencing on 1 June 2021, until terminated by
either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing
to the other. Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years commencing on 13 November 2019. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has renewed the
appointment letter with the Company on 13 November 2022
and such appointment will be terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other; and in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”) and the Listing Rules.

According to article 109(a) of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election. The Company at the general meeting at which a
Director retires may fill the vacated office.

According to article 113 of the Articles, the Board shall have
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director, provided that the number of Directors so appointed
shall not exceed the maximum number determined from time
to time by the shareholders in general meeting. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Any Director appointed under this article shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.
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According to 109(a) of the Articles, Mr. Guo Qinglin, Mr. Wen
Chuanchuan and Mr. Hung Wai Man will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

Board diversity policy

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 12 November 2019, which sets out the
objective and approach to achieve and maintain diversity on
the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.
The Board Diversity Policy provides that the Company should
endeavor to ensure that the Board members have the appropriate
balance of skills, experience, and diversity of perspectives that
are required to support the execution of its business strategy.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria and the
attributes that they will bring to the Board to complement and
enrich the competencies, experience and diversity of the Board.
Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, a number of factors will
be taken into account in determining the board composition to
achieve board diversity, including but not limited to professional
experience, skills, knowledge, age, gender, education, cultural
background and length of service.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness, such
as assessing annually on the board’s diversity profile and
gender balance. The Nomination Committee would discuss any
revisions to the Board Diversity Policy that may be required and
recommend any such revisions and the appointment of suitable
candidates to the Board for consideration and approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board with reference to the Board Diversity Policy in order
to comply with the CG Code. The Company considers that
the current composition of the Board, one out of its eight
members being woman, has achieved Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including gender,
nationality, professional background and skills. The current
Directors have extensive experience in mobile communications
industry and professional knowledge of corporate advisory,
business development and accounting.
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Nomination policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the criteria, process and procedures for
the Nomination Committee to recommend suitable candidates for
directorship with a view to ensuring that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business.

Selection criteria
The Nomination Committee will propose a candidate for
nomination or a Director for re-election based on the followings:

the Board Diversity Policy and the requirements under the
Listing Rules;

—  the expected contribution the candidate would add to the
Board and to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business;

—  the candidate or the re-elected Director is able to commit
and devote sufficient time and attention to the Company’s
affairs;

—  the level of independence from the Company, and potential
or actual conflicts of interest of the candidate or the re-
elected Director; and

—  other relevant factors considered by Nomination Committee
on a case-by-case basis.

The aforesaid factors are for reference only, and not meant to

be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person as it considers appropriate.
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Nomination process

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring that the
selection criteria are being applied consistently and fairly in the
nomination process and confirming the same to the Board when
making its recommendation on appointment.

A. Procedures for appointment of new Director
Subject to the provisions in the Articles, if the Board
recognises the need to appoint a new Director, the following
procedures should be adopted:

—  the Nomination Committee identifies candidates in
accordance with the selection criteria set out in the
Nomination Policy and with the assistance from the
Group’s human resources department and external
agencies (if necessary);

—  the Nomination Committee evaluates the candidates
and recommends to the Board the appointment of the
appropriate candidate for directorship; and

— the Board decides the appointment based upon the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee.

B. Procedures for re-election of Director at general
meeting
Procedures for re-election of Director at general meeting are
set out as follows:

— the Nomination Committee reviews the overall
contribution to the Company of the retiring Director;

- the Nomination Committee also reviews and
determines whether the retiring Director continues to
meet the selection criteria set out in the Nomination
Policy; and

—  the Nomination Committee shall recommend to the
Board which shall then make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of
Director at the general meeting.
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C. Procedures for nomination by shareholders
Procedures for nomination by shareholders are set out as
follows:

—  the Company’s website sets out the procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director; and

—  for any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate
such candidate based on the selection criteria
set out in the Nomination Policy and to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
shall recommend to the Board which shall then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of Director at the general meeting.

Monitoring and reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company’s Annual Report, how
the Policy is being applied in recommending candidates for
directorship and retiring Directors for re-election during the year.

Review of the Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy
periodically in line with the Company’s strategy and recommend
any proposed changes to the Board for approval.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee conducted the followings:

—  reviewed and confirmed the structure, size and composition
of the Board and the split between number of executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors
remained appropriate for the Board to perform its duties;

— reviewed and confirmed the Board has a diverse mix of
skills, knowledge, experience and gender;

—  reviewed the Board Diversity Policy; and

- formulated the Nomination Policy and made a
recommendation to the Board for adoption.

Proceedings of board meetings and board
committee meetings

The Board may meet for the dispatch of business, adjourn and
otherwise regulate its meeting and proceedings as it thinks fit
and may determine the quorum necessary for the transaction
of business. An annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”) shall be called by at least 21 days’ (and not less than
20 clear business days’) notice in writing, and a general meeting
of the Company, other than an AGM, shall be called by at least
14 days’ (and not less than 10 clear business days’) notice in
writing. A meeting of the Board or any committee of the Board
may be held by means of such telephone, electronic or other
communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the
meeting.

A Director shall not vote (nor shall he be counted in the quorum)
on any resolution of the Board in respect of any contract
or arrangement or proposal in which he or any of his close
associate(s) has/have a material interest, and if he shall do so his
vote shall not be counted (nor shall he be counted in the quorum
for that resolution).
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Set out below are details of the attendance record of each
Director at the Board, committee and general meetings of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2023:

UTEHENSESHFEE S _=F+=A4
=t HIFEMBTHNARREES S H
ZEeEI ABRRERARENFMLE

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HEE/ ERETRY
Regular Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors BEpg EREZESE BENZEESE REZEESE FHEESER REAE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Chengjun FHRERE 4/4 - 17 - 1
Mr. Xiong Bin i 4/4 - - - 17
Mr. Li Hongxing IERE 4/4 - - - 17
Mr. Guo Qinglin DEMTE 4/4 - - - 17
Mr. Wen Chuanchuan B4 4/4 - - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors BV F#{TES
Mr. Hung Wai Man HEREE 4/4 2/2 - 17 -
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit BREARE 4/4 2/2 17 17 17
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen BKREE 4/4 2/2 17 17 17
Ms. Tseng Chin | BRLT 4/4 - 1 17 1

The Board will make arrangements for holding at least four
regular Board Meetings in each financial year.

The Board has established three committees: (i) the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”); (i) the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”); and (jii) the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All committees have been established
with defined written terms of reference, which were posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk) and the
Company (www.sprocomm.com). All committees should report
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made. All
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense.
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Audit committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 18
October 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kwan Kit, Mr. Lu Brian
Yong Chen and Mr. Hung Wan Man. Mr. Wong Kwan Kit is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include ensuring
that an effective financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems are in place and compliance of the
Listing Rules, reviewing the financial statements, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal
of external auditors and assessing their independence and
qualifications, and ensuring the effective communication with
external auditors.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee
held two meetings and the work performed by the Audit
Committee was summarised as follows:

1. reviewed the Company’s interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2023 and annual results for the year ended
31 December 2022;

2. reviewed the Company’s interim report for the six months
ended 30 June 2023 and annual report for the year ended
31 December 2022, which set out the Group’s accounting
policies, financial performance and position;

3.  reviewed the findings and recommendations from external
auditors and the independent internal control reviewer;
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4. reviewed the independence of the external auditors and
engagement of external auditors;

5. made recommendations to the Board regarding the change
of external auditors;

6. reviewed the audit plan, internal control plan, the
development in accounting standards and their effects on
the Group, financial reporting and risk management matters;

7. reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff in the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting functions; and

8. reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on
18 October 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Wai Man, Mr. Wong Kwan
Kit, Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen and Ms. Tseng Chin I. Mr. Hung Wai
Man is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board in determining the
remuneration policy for and remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management, reviewing incentive schemes
and service contracts of the Directors and senior management,
and evaluating the performance of the Directors and senior
management.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review and the work performed
by the Remuneration Committee was summarised as follows:

1. made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of Directors, senior management and employees

of the Group;

2. reviewed the appropriateness of the remuneration policy;
and

3. evaluated the performance of Directors and senior
management of the Group.
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Nomination committee
The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 18
October 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance
with CG Code provision B.3.1. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee consists of four Directors, namely
Mr. Li Chengjun, Mr. Wong Kwan Kit, Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen
and Ms. Tseng Chin |. Mr. Li Chengjun is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. In compliance with the Listing Rules, the
Nomination Committee is chaired by the chairman of the Board
and the other members are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
assisting the Board in identifying suitable candidates for the
Directors and making recommendations to the Board, assessing
the structure and composition of the Board, preparing, making
recommendations to and supervising the execution of the board
diversity policy and nomination policy of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting and the work performed by the
Nomination Committee was summarised in the paragraph
headed “Nomination policy” of this corporate governance report.

Dividend policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which aims to ensure sustainable development of its
business operations and to provide a favorable return to its
shareholders.

Declaration of dividend will be made at the discretion of the
Board and will be based upon the Group’s earnings, cash
flows, financial conditions, capital requirements, statutory fund
reserve requirements and any other conditions that our Directors
consider relevant. The declaration, payment and amount of
dividend will also be subject to the Company’s constitutional
documents including, where necessary, the approval of the
shareholders.
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The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as the Board thinks
fit and necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period. The Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment
by the Company that any dividend will be paid in any particular
amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.

Whistleblowing policy

In compliance with the CG Code, the Group has implemented
whistleblowing policy to provide a well-defined and accessible
channel for reporting fraud, corruption, dishonest practices, or
other similar matters and guidance on how an investigation would
be initiated upon receiving a complaint. The policy also protects
employees who report fraudulent activities in good faith and
reasonable belief. A whistleblowing officer is elected to ensure
that any reported case is dealt with in an expedited manner.

Upon receiving the complaint, the Board decides the method
of investigation, which may involve appointing an external
consultant for assessment. The Board will monitor and review the
effectiveness of the whistleblowing policy from time to time.

Anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy

In compliance with the CG Code, the Group has implemented
anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy. According to the Group’s
anti-corruption policy, all employees shall abide by the laws
and regulations of the PRC and shall not engage in any illegal
activities. Employees shall uphold the code of ethics, advocate
fair competition and act against bribery. Any bribery, fraud,
money laundering and embezzlement are prohibited.

Employees must not accept or request any improper benefits
including banquets, gifts, securities, valuables and high-
expenditure entertainment activities from business partners,
suppliers and merchants, etc. When there is any alleged case in
violation of laws, regulations, code of conduct or Group’s policies,
the Group will investigate and impose disciplinary actions upon
offenders after verification. The Group also provides trainings to
directors and employees from time to time to ensure that they
comply and familiar with the anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy
of the Group.
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The Board will monitor and review the effectiveness of the anti-
fraud and anti-corruption policy from time to time.

Corporate governance function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis
on the Board’s quality, effective internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
the Group’s operations with applicable laws and regulations.
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Continuous professional development BFEEXERE

Pursuant to the CG Code provision C.1.4, all Directors RIEMCEEATENENECILIE  2EES
should participate in a programme of continuous professional ELHBBEEIXAREBEEUNERIET NS
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to 2 &0 M Hde MR M SHEESELRAE
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and ~ NMiBEZ Bt - AR BIZBE B LHE R BB -
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and WiEE R FAEE AR  BELBE - #E2—
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, T -_=F+_-_A=+—HLtFE E£2H
functions and duties of the Directors. During the year ended  R7I#HEHEHE ¢

31 December 2023, the Directors participated in the following

continuous professional development:

Reading

materials

updating on

new rules and

regulations

MEHHE

Directors' trainings BRFERAFRRE

Name of Directors EEME EE=E7 &R

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Li Chengjun THRELE v v/

Mr. Xiong Bin AR A v v/

Mr. Guo Qinglin PBEMELE v v

Mr. Wen Chuanchuan EINN & v 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BV EHTEE

Mr. Hung Wai Man HRREE v v

Mr. Wong Kwan Kit BEREALE v v/

Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen BB E v v

Ms. Tseng Chin | BERLLT v v

Note: The Company received from each of the Directors the confirmations on  ffiZ ‘AAFIDEERZSES X EHEZEEINER -
taking continuous professional training.
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Auditor’s remuneration

The Company engaged Moore CPA Limited as its auditor for
the year ended 31 December 2023. There was no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the auditor.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration
paid/payable to Moore CPA Limited is set out as follows:

% 2B & A

BHE - Z-_=F+-_A=+—BItFE K
NAERAESHESHMEEMER QG
BEZUM EFECEERZECHEE £

HE_ZE-_ZF+-_A=+—BLEFE K
ESHESHMEBMERARANENE
REFEZINT -

Remuneration

Services rendered paid/payable
RHA R B P A
RMB’000

ARETF T

Audit services FEZRE 1,193
Non-audit services IEEIZ RS -
Total HEt 1,193

Acknowledgement of responsibility for
consolidated financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2023. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors:

e  assessed the reasonableness of preparing the consolidated
financial statements taking into consideration the Group’s
financial performance, position, cashflows and liquidity
ratios;

e  selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

e made judgements and estimates in a prudent, fair and
reasonable manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The statement
of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” from page
114 to page 121 of this annual report.
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Internal control

Risk management and internal control

The Board emphasises on the importance of risk management
and internal controls on the Group’s business operations
(including environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)) and
development and acknowledges its overall responsibility for the
risk management and internal control systems and the review of
their effectiveness.

The Board evaluates and determines the nature and extent of
risks it is willing to accept, while achieving the Group’s strategic
business objectives. The Board also ensures implementation
and maintenance of effective risk management and internal
control systems; and oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board has delegated the responsibility to physically
implement and maintain the risk management and internal control
systems to the management of the Company. The management,
under the supervision of the Board, has implemented and
maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control system, which aims to manage and reduce (j)
risks associated with the Group’s daily operations (including
ESG); (i) risks of failing to achieve business objectives; (iii) risks of
asset misappropriation; and (iv) risks of making potential material
misstatements or losses. However, the risk management and
internal control system can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. Taking into
account the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business,
the Board have sufficient capacity to oversee the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control
system and to assess its effectiveness, and accordingly there is
no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group.
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The process to identify, evaluate and manage risks are carried
out on a regular and on-going basis. These processes are
summarised as follows:

Risk identification

° Identify risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business
and operations.

Risk assessment

e  Assess the impact and consequence of the identified risks
on the business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Response to findings of risk assessment

° Prioritise the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

° Determine the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk monitoring and reporting

e Perform ongoing and regular monitoring of the risk and
ensure that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

° Enhance the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and

e Report the results and effectiveness of risk management
and internal control to the Board regularly.

In relation to the handling and dissemination of inside information,
the Group has implemented in information disclosure policy
to ensure potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The policy is summarised as follows:

° Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated
departments;

e  Designated persons and departments to determine further
escalation and disclosure as required; and
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° Designated persons authorised to act as spokespersons
and respond to external enquiries.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
engaged an independent internal control reviewer to review
the effectiveness of its risk management and internal control
system. The scope of review was determined by the Board.
The independent internal control reviewer submitted a report
of findings and areas for improvement to the management.
The management presented these findings and areas for
improvements to the Board and Audit Committee. Having
considered (i) the existence of the risk management and internal
control system; (i) the findings of the independent internal control
reviewer; (i) management will take into account the areas for
improvement suggested by the independent internal control
reviewer and further enhance the risk management and internal
control system, the Board and Audit Committee were of the view
that the Group had no material internal control deficiencies and
its risk management and internal control systems were effective
and adequate.

Company secretary

Ms. Jian Xuegen (“Ms. Jian”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company since 21 September 2019 and is
responsible for overseeing all the company secretarial matters of
the Company. In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Jian possesses
the necessary qualification and experience, and is capable of
performing the functions of a company secretary. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, Ms. Jian confirmed that she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an AGM, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.
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Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general
meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders of the Company holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisition(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the company secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at shareholders’ meetings
Shareholders of the Company are requested to follow article
64 of the Articles for including a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out
above in the paragraph headed “Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting”.

Pursuant to article 114 of the Articles, no person (other than
a retiring Director) shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice in
writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office of the Company or at the Hong
Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company.
The period for lodgement of the notices required under this
Article will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting and the minimum length of the period during
which such notices to the Company may be given will be at least
seven days.
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The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director is posted on the website of the
Company. Shareholders or the Company may refer to the above
procedures for putting forward any other proposals at general
meetings.

Investors relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders. Information of the Company is disseminated to the
shareholders in the following manner:

° Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

° Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

e The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders.

The Company has in place a shareholder communication
policy to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s head office.
The Company also maintains a website at www.sprocomm.com
where up-to-date information and updates of the Company’s
operations, performances and strategies are available to public
access.

Constitutional Documents

On 30 May 2023, the Company adopted the second amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association for the
purpose of (i) conforming with the core shareholder protection
standards set out in the Listing Rules which took effect on 1
January 2022; and (i) incorporating other consequential and
housekeep amendments, which had been uploaded to the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Save as
disclosed above, there had been no changes in the constitutional
documents of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2023.
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About the Report

Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) presents the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) report, which contains
information on the Group’s business activities, ESG governance,
strategies, performances and ongoing commitment towards
sustainable development. This ESG report is intended to enhance
the confidence and understanding of the stakeholders towards
the Group.

About the Group

The Group is an ODM mobile phone supplier based in the PRC,
primarily engaged in research and development, designing,
manufacturing and sale of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile
phones and loT related products, targeting emerging markets.
The Group’s production bases are located in the PRC and they
are responsible for the mobile phone assembly and for the
production of PCBAs.

Reporting Period
This ESG report highlights the ESG performance of the Group
from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

Reporting Standard

This ESG report was prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix C2 of the
Listing Rules and guidance published by the Stock Exchange.
An assessment on the applicability and materiality of the relevant
key performance indicators under the ESG Reporting Guide had
been conducted.

Reporting Principles
The Group applied the following principles in this ESG report:

e Materiality: Material and relevant information to stakeholders
on different ESG aspects is covered in this ESG Report.
A materiality assessment was conducted to determine
material ESG issues with results reviewed and approved by
the board of directors (the “Board”).
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e  Quantitative: Targets have been set by the Group to reduce
the emissions from business operations and to evaluate the
effectiveness of ESG policies and management systems.
The relevant standards, methodologies and assumptions
used to prepare the quantitative information are disclosed,
as appropriate. Quantitative information is provided with
narrative and comparative figures, where possible.

e Balance: The information is presented without the
inappropriate use of selections, omissions or other forms of
manipulation that would influence a decision or judgment by
the reader.

e  Consistency: Consistent methodologies are used to prepare
and present ESG data in this ESG report, unless otherwise
specified, to allow for meaningful comparisons.

Reporting Scope

Based on the principle of materiality, the scope of this ESG report
concentrates on the Group’s business in the PRC, where the
Group carries out its principal business operations and most of
its employees and assets are located. All the PRC entities of the
Group were included in the assessment of ESG performance for
the purpose of this ESG report. The Group’s operations outside
the PRC were not included in the scope as they do not have
significant environmental and social impacts.

ESG GOVERNANCE

The Group views ESG commitments as part of its responsibilities
and it is committed to incorporating ESG considerations into its
decision-making process. To achieve this goal, the Group has
developed a framework to ensure ESG governance is aligned
with its strategic growth, while advocating for the integration
of ESG into its business operations. The structure of ESG
governance mainly comprised of two components, namely the
Board and the management team.

The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategy and reporting by overseeing the overall governance and
progress of the Group’s ESG management system, policies,
commitments, strategies and objectives.
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Management of the Group is responsible for the collection and
analysis of ESG data, implementation of appropriate strategies
to improve the Group’s ESG performance, assessment of
whether current ESG policies and improvement measures are
effective, compliance with relevant ESG laws and regulations
and the reporting of major issues to the Board. To assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s ESG policies, management sets
key performance indicators and compares the indicators of
current year with those of prior year. Based on the results of this
comparison, ESG reports and the feedback from stakeholders,
the Board reviews the progress made by the Group against its
ESG-related goals and targets. The relevance of ESG-related
goals and targets to the Group’s business operations are
determined by regular communications with stakeholders.

The data and information in this ESG report are sourced from the
relevant documents, reports, statistical data, management and
operation information collected by the Group.

Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance
structure and practices has been set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ESG Strategies

The Group believes that it is essential to implement appropriate
ESG strategies in order to achieve sustainable corporate
development. Key ESG strategies of the Group are set out below:

e  Maintain regular communications with stakeholders to
identify ESG aspects that are material and relevant.

e  Maintain high environmental and social standards to
ensure sustainable development of the Group’s business
operations.

e  Comply with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to
the Group’s business operations including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment.

° Encourage employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social

activities that benefit the community as a whole.

e Review the ESG strategies on an annual basis.
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Group values the contributions from its stakeholders as
they can bring positive impacts to the Group’s business. The
Group maintains regular communications with its stakeholders
to collect their views on the ESG aspects that they regard as
relevant and important. Its key stakeholders include governments
and regulatory bodies, shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers and the public society. The Group maintains an open
and transparent dialogue with its stakeholders through various
channels including meetings, trade exhibitions, surveys, seminars
and workshops.

The following table summarises the main expectations and
concerns of the key stakeholders identified by the Group, and the
corresponding management responses.

K ESH
AEE+AERUEBALAZENFNE
BER-ASEEMEFSNHERR BWERER
RERE HELERHEBNEEER - A%
BHIERFMHEBRBNREERE KRR
BE EP HEBAMLEAR - AEEEB
% BERE #AE -THNERIFEDEZ
BRE ERNEAFRBERRRN -

TRBEASEAANEZFNHENETER
MBI AR EIREHEEREE -

Management responses/

Stakeholders Expectations Communication channels
BHE FEH EEEOE BERE
Governments and regulatory bodies e  Compliance with laws and e  Compliance operation
B REEHE regulations o HHEE
o EBTEEER e Tax payment in full and on time
e Tax payment in accordance o IR FEMBL
with laws
o OEMT
Shareholders o Financial results e To improve profitability
A& ER e HMBEE o REARFBEN
e Corporate transparency ° Regular information disclosure
o {EFH s THEEER
e Sound risk control e To optimise risk management
o BEREEIRE and internal control
o E(LRMEIR KA
Employees e Career development platform e Promotion mechanism
== e BEBRTA o ETTHH
e  Salary and benefits e Competitive salary and employee
o HekEF benefits
e Safe working environment s AHBFINHFEKEERET

o RTEIFERER
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Management responses/

Stakeholders Expectations Communication channels
=& A EEEEE BERE
Customers e Logistics and delivery service o To get delivery status through
LN standards product tracking system

o WIRKBLERISRLE

o Customer information
security

s ZEPERELE

e Customer rights and interests
protection

s XEFPERRE

Suppliers o Integrity cooperation
HEm e WMIEAE
e  Business ethics and
credibility

s HEERRKEE

Society and the public o Environmental protection
HEOR o IRIFRE

o Employment opportunities

e [ERE®E

— = —

=

BB B B RS RLX
A 28

Customer privacy protection
BERPLEBRE

Compliance marketing
BHE

To build a stable and responsible
supply chain
BYRERBENHER

To perform the contract
according to law

BEBITAH

To reduce environmental
pollutions

WA BRIR S

To put into use environmental
protection and energy saving
equipment
ERRRENBE R A

To provide equal employment
opportunities

REFERRES

=443 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited D9
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Materiality Assessment

During the year ended 31 December 2023, with reference to
the scopes as required under the ESG Reporting Guide and
taking into consideration of the Group’s business operations, the
Group identified the following environmental, social and operating
issues that are material and relevant to the Group’s business
operations. If the Group does not implement effective strategies
to monitor and solve these issues, these issues may affect the
Group’s financial condition or operating performance. Further, the
Group made a materiality assessment on these environmental,
social and operating issues by conducting interviews with its
stakeholders.

EEMMA
BE_T_=—F+-_A=+—HILEFE K
SEZ2ERE HEREAMEEIIREN
BEMEEERBEE FPIATEAREZE
BHAMNERNRE HEaREEFRE - HAK
BN RRERAKBAERRBARAZESE
AIRREFHRAKE LRI EXENTE -
AEBEBIHRARKNE  E—-PHZFRR
HekEBREETTERMNE -

Environmental issues

Social issues

Operating issues

RIEEHE HEsE BESE
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 8. Local community engagement  15. Economic value generated
B EREEBEN S R EENKEEE

2. Energy consumption

BEIRERE

3. Water consumption
KR H FE

4.  Waste
237

5. Saving energy measures
HEREN

6. Use of raw materials and
packaging materials

R R B RHE A

7. Compliance with laws
and regulations relating to
environmental protection
B RRBRERER

9. Community investment

HERE

10. Occupational health and safety
BEEREALZR

11. Labour standards in supply

chain
fpE g4 T R

12. Training and development
o)l L 3 R

13. Employee welfare

’E®=F

14. Inclusion and equal
opportunities
HEEFEHe

16. Corporate governance
TERER

17. Anti-corruption

REB

18. Supply chain management
HEs e

19. Customer satisfaction

EFPmEE

20. Employee welfare

EEwEF

The Group prioritised the above-mentioned environmental, social
and operating issues in terms of their importance to the Group’s
stakeholders and business operations.
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Importance to the Group’s stakeholders and
business operations

HEKERNDERERLEENEREE

ESG issues
RE -HEREARBHE

High =
Medium $
Low &

Based on the results of the Group’s materiality assessment, the
Group would formulate and implement appropriate strategies to
monitor and solve the identified issues and to achieve sustainable
business development.

Confirmation and Approval

The Group endeavours to ensure that all the information
presented in this ESG report is accurate and reliable. This ESG
report had undergone the internal review process of the Group
and was reviewed by the Board. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group confirmed that it has established
appropriate and effective management policies and internal
control systems for ESG issues and the contents of this ESG
report comply with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

Contact Us

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions
and suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect
of this ESG report or the Group’s performances in sustainable
development by mailing to 5D-506, F1.6 Block, Tianfa Building,
Tianan Chegongmiao Industrial Park, Futian District, Shenzhen,
China.

1,2,3,5,6,7,10,14,15,16,17,18, 19, 20
4,11,12,13
8,9
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Environment

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to protect
the environment and it has implemented policies to
reduce emissions and improve the efficiency in the use of
resources.

The Group’s business operations are subject to certain
environmental requirements pursuant to the laws in the PRC
such as Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (" %
AR MBI RE R #5%)), Evaluation of Environmental
Effects Law of the PRC ({(F#E A R L FIBRIFF EFE
%)), Prevention and Control of Water Pollution Law of the
PRC (2 A R L F1E 7k 55 2B 568 7%)), Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution Law of the PRC ({1 &
AR FEMBE KRS 2H87%)), Prevention and Control of
Environmental Noise Pollution Law of the PRC ({7 F A
RHEFBRIFR &S 2 [547%)), Prevention and Control
of Solid Waste Pollution Law of the PRC ({# £ A K &
ol BERE W5 IR B[ )R A)), and Regulations on
the Administration of Construction Project Environmental
Protection ((ZE% 18 B IRIERE B IR I&M)), and Promotion
of Cleaner Production Law of the PRC ({7 £ A & £ Al
BREERER)).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
complied with all applicable PRC environmental laws
and regulations in all material respects and had not been
subject to any material penalty in relation to environmental
protection.
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A1 BERR

A.1 Emissions

During the Group’s production process, there are
certain wastage generated (sources of emissions)
including solid waste, water, noise and polluted air.
The Group has in place standard procedures to
manage, treat and reduce the pollution and wastage
in accordance with national and local requirements.
The Group also has in place facilities for air filtration
to ensure that the level of wastage or pollutants
generated during its production process is within
statutory limits. In addition, the Group has engaged a
professional waste disposal service company for the
disposal of hazardous wastes. To ensure compliance
with the latest environmental laws and regulations, the
Group has internal compliance manuals setting out its
goals and policies in relation to environmental matters.
The Group has been accredited with the ISO 14001
certification of environmental management system.

(i)  Air pollutant emissions

During the year ended 31 December 20283,
air pollutant emissions were mainly related to
petrol consumption for the use of the Group’s
self-owned vehicles, which contributed to
the emission of 13.58 kg (2022: 10.71 kg) of
nitrogen oxides (NOx), 0.24 kg (2022: 0.19 kg)
of sulphur oxides (SOx) and 1.00 kg (2022: 0.79
kg) of respiratory suspended particles (PM).
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group devoted more effort to build long-term
relationships with its customers, which increased
the use of vehicles and air pollutant emissions.

— = —

—=
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ZERTRY B E 1R

REFHEBAEENRE -
HEREARE AEEKXE
SIEA TR BB ZERSED

Alr pollutant emissions reduction target

To better manage the Group’s ESG performance,
the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for
air pollutant emissions as follows:

B AR -
Environmental indicators  Reduction target Baseline year Status
RIGER BB &E HEF R
NOx emission intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
NOX BF R [E ZEZEFRIREL 3% === T
SOx emission intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
SOXHEE & R HFRIRL 3% S HEATH
PM emission intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
PMBERE & T HERTRD 3% —T-= 77 eR
(i) Greenhouse gas emissions (i) BEREBHEN
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
BE-2-ZF BE-E-cF
tTZR=+-BL%E TZR=+-BL%EE
Emission  Percentage to Emission  Percentage to
(intCO,e) total emission (intCO,e) total emission
UNE(ME  (EFHE HHEME  GEFHE
Scope of greenhouse gas emissions ~ BEREHNEE 2 —GitREE) Al ZELBREER) BAL
Scope 1 Direct emission HE1EEER
Combustion of petrol for mobile vehicles /3% 5k & 38.81 0.5% 30.53 1.8%
Consumption of refrigerant IRHEERE - 81.45
Scope 2 Indirect emission HE2BEER
Purchased electricity EEE 7,773.62 96.1% 5,865.09 94.9%
Scope 3 Other indirect emission EEIHMHEHEN
Paper waste disposal BERERE 0.01 3.4% 0.01 3.3%
Water consumption FEK 40.59 28.10
Business air travel BHRG 236.88 177.20
Total o 8,089.91 100% 6,182.38 100%
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Notes:

(1) Emission factors were based on, but not limited to, “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the Stock Exchange, and the latest released
emission factors of China’s regional power grid basis.

2) The above emission data does not include the removal of
CO, contributed by recycling of paper.

During the year ended 31 December 20283,
the Group’s activities contributed to 8,089.91
tonnes (2022: 6,182.38 tonnes) or 0.15 tCO,/m?
(2022: 0.1 tCO,/m?) of carbon dioxide equivalent
(carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide and
hydrofluorocarbons) emission. The increase
in carbon dioxide equivalent emission for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was primarily
attributed to the significant growth of the Group’s
business activities and the increase in electricity
consumed to manufacture more products to
satisfy the customer demand. Details of the
Group’s measures to reduce the consumption
of resources and the related emissions are set
out below. Same as the previous two years, the
Group did not receive any complaints or warnings
on greenhouse gas emissions during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Greenhouse gas emissions reduction target
To better manage the Group’s ESG performance,
the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for
greenhouse gas emissions as follows:
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Environmental indicators  Reduction target Baseline year Status
RIBER BB B R HAESF k3R
Greenhouse gas emissions  Reduce 3% by Year 2027 Year 2022 In progress
BERE ZEZEFRIRA 3% = TR
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Petrol consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group’s motor vehicles travelled 181,777 km
(2022: 143,334 km), which consumed 16,446
litres (2022: 12,936 litres) of petrol (12.38 litres
(2022: 14.58 litres) of petrol per employee) and
contributed to 38.81 tonnes (2022: 30.53 tonnes)
of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions. To reduce
the emissions arising from petrol consumption,
the Group encourages its employees to use
public transport when they attend business
activities. For business activities that take place
within walking distance, the Group encourages its
employees to walk or cycle to the destination.

Refrigerant consumption

During the year ended 31 December 20283,
the Group consumed insignificant amount of
refrigerant (2022: 45 kg) in connection with the
use of air conditioning during its daily production
and office operations, generating insignificant
amount of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions
(2022: 81.45 tonnes). To reduce the emissions
arising from refrigerant consumption, the Group
encourages its employees to switch off the air
conditioning when they leave the office and
production premises.

Electricity consumption

During the year ended 31 December 20283,
the Group consumed 8,637,358 kWh (2022:
6,516,763 kWh) of electricity (6,504 kWh (2022:
8,012 kWh) per employee) in connection with
its daily production and office operations,
which contributed to 7,773.62 tonnes (2022:
5,865.09 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions. To reduce the emissions arising from
electricity consumption, the Group encourages
its employees to switch off the lights and other
electricity appliances when they leave the office
and production premises.
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Paper consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group consumed 1.3 tonnes (2022: 1.3 tonnes)
of paper (0.001 tonnes (2022: 0.001 tonnes) per
employee) in connection with its daily business
operations, which contributed to 0.01 tonnes
(2022: 0.01 tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent
emissions. To reduce the emissions arising
from paper usage, the Group encourages its
employees to conserve paper, review documents
on computers, send messages to customers via
emails, use recycled paper and adopt double-
sided printing.

Water consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group consumed 45,308 cubic metres (2022:
28,101 cubic metres) of water (34.1 cubic metres
(2022: 31.6 cubic metres) per employee) in
connection with its daily business operations,
which contributed to 40.59 tonnes (2022: 28.10
tonnes) of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions.
To reduce the emissions arising from water
usage, the Group encourages its employees to
conserve water and remember to turn off the
water tap after use. As a result, the employees
have increased their awareness to reduce
water consumption. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group did not encounter any
problems in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
Further, the Group did not consume a significant
amount of water that was and disproportional to
the scale of its business operations.

Business air travel

The Group’s business nature requires employees
to travel by air to other countries for meetings with
customers and suppliers. They would only travel
by air when necessary and the Group keeps
track of their business air travels. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, business air travels of
the Group’s employees had contributed a total of
236.88 tonnes (2022: 177.16 tonnes) of carbon
dioxide equivalent emission.
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(i)

Hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group generated minimal amount of hazardous
waste. The major hazardous waste generated by
the Group was waste light tube. To minimise the
impact on environment, the Group has engaged
a professional waste disposal service company
for the disposal of hazardous wastes. The Group
will strive to reduce generation of hazardous
waste through upgrading technologies whenever
possible. Same as the previous two years, the
Group did not receive any complaints or warnings
on disposal of its hazardous waste during the
year ended 31 December 2023, and targets to
achieve the same performance in 2024.

Non-hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group generated a total of 1,261 tonnes (2022:
1,450 tonnes) of non-hazardous waste (0.95
tonnes (2022: 1.63 tonnes) per employee). The
non-hazardous waste generated by the Group
were packaging materials generated from the
Group’s production process. The Group regularly
reminds its employees to use resources efficiently
and try to avoid the generation of waste. As
a result, the employees’ awareness of waste
management has been increased. Same as the
previous two years, the Group did not receive
any complaints or warnings on disposal of its
non-hazardous waste during the year ended 31
December 2023, and targets to achieve the same
performance in 2024.
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A2 EREA

A.2 Use of resources

Reducing consumption of resources and enhancing
utilisation efficiency are the Group’s principles in
minimising adverse impact on the environment and
natural resources that may be caused by its business
operations. The Group has adopted a set of guidelines
to achieve efficient use of energy, water and other
resources for long-term sustainability.

The Group’s total consumption of resources during
the year ended 31 December 2023 together with the
relevant conservation measures adopted by the Group
are detailed in the section headed “A.1 Emissions”
above.

AEEEFEEREXEBELAEYR
BEREBRERERNTHNZENR
ARRLERBEEMESMAX -
REBERN—RIES - LER
R KMEME RN KB FHE
BRI -

HE-ZT-_=F+-A=+—H1t
FE AEENERAERENUR
AEEFRDMBEBSOEEFLR
EXXTAABERR] —&f -

A.3 The environment and natural resources ASRERBARER
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s BHE-_Z-=F+=-A=+—8H1
business activities did not cause significant adverse FE - AEERNEREE LMY IR
impact on the environment and natural resources. RBREABIRERERTHZE -
To further improve the use of resources, the Group BE—FSEILCERER ANEEF
takes the following actions on an ongoing basis: BEREVA T HE -
e keep track of its consumption level of resources; o REEBEIRBREKE:
e review the effectiveness of its conservation o REIEIAEEMERCRR &
measures; and
o RETHUEREHE -
e design improvement measures
At AEBEEBRMEXANAE
As a result, the Group’s employees are more aware of IREEEM -
the importance of using resources efficiently.
—Z =44 Sprocomm Inteligence Limited 09
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A.4 Climate change

Climate change is one of the biggest challenges to the
world. The Group acknowledges its responsibility to
implement strategies to reduce carbon emissions and
mitigate climate change.

The Group manages the climate change risk with
reference to the Recommendations of the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD),
which contains four major components: Governance,
Strategy, Risk Management and Metrics and Targets.
The Board overseas the governance and reporting of
the Group’s climate change risk.

Management of the Group regularly monitors and
identifies climate change risk that is relevant to the
Group’s business operations. Strategies will be
implemented on a timely manner to mitigate such risk.

Climate change is mainly caused by the release of
carbon dioxide into the atmosphere, resulting from
the use of fossil fuels for electricity generation and for
transportation. As mentioned above, the Group has
implemented appropriate strategies to use resources
more efficiently and reduce emissions to combat
climate change and reduce potential costs in the
future.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
identified the following climate-related risks that
may have material impacts on the Group’s business
operations:

Physical risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme
weather such as typhoons, storms and heavy rains can
disrupt the Group’s operations by damaging the power
grid, and communication infrastructures, and injuring
its employees during their work, leading to reduced
capacity and decreased in productivity, or expose
the Group to risks associated with non-performance
and delayed performance. To minimise the potential
risks and hazards, the Group has flexible working
arrangements and precautionary measures during bad
or extreme weather conditions.
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Transition risks

The Group anticipates that there will be more stringent
climate legislations and regulations to support the
global vision of carbon neutrality. We acknowledge
the requirements to enhance the climate-related
information disclosures as a result of the recent update
of the ESG Reporting Guide in respect to significant
climate-related impact disclosures of an issuer. Stricter
environmental laws and regulations may expose
enterprises to higher risks of claims and lawsuits.
Corporate reputation may also be adversely affected
by the failure to meet the compliance requirements for
climate change. The Group’s related capital investment
and compliance costs may increase. In response to
the policy and legal risks as well as the reputation risks,
the Group regularly monitors existing and emerging
trends, policies and regulations relevant to climate and
be prepared to alert the Board where necessary to
avoid cost increments, penalties for non-compliance
and/or reputational risks due to delayed response.

B. Social
B.1 Employment and labour practices

(i)  Employment

Total employees

The Group had 1,328 full-time employees in the
PRC as at 31 December 2023 (31 December
2022: 890). The Group did not have any part-
time employees as at 31 December 2023. During
the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
increased the hiring of staff to satisfy its business
needs.
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Set forth below is the Group’s employee turnover AT MR Fics RithE
rate by gender, age group and geographical EDMAEEBE TiRAE:
region:

Geographical location: The PRC il - 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-BR-_=H+-A=+-HLFE

Total by

Male Female age group

RERME

Turnover rate K= B zZ SRV

30 or below B0 AT 41.9% 42.3% 42.1%

31-40 312 405% 11.1% 43.8% 28.0%

41-50 41 Z505% 45.9% 66.7% 59.1%

Above 50 505504 £ 66.7% 83.3% 80.0%
Total by gender BRI B R A AR B 30.7% 47.9%

Geographical location: The PRC HhjE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-E-_—_H+-A=t+—-BLHFE

Total by

Male Female age group

BERME

Turnover rate RRE B i SRV A

30 or below 30BREIA T 117.9% 106.3% 112.5%

31-40 312 408% 55.5% 62.2% 58.4%

41-50 41 2 505% 42.4% 88.2% 67.4%

Above 50 5055 A = 33.3% 36.4% 35.3%

Total by gender R BI B R B 83.5% 85.9%
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The Group maintains a gender balance in its
workforce. Set forth below are the distribution of
the Group’s employees as at 31 December 2023

by gender and age group:

DISTRIBUTION OF
EMPLOYEES BY GENDER

BURE S NEE S

AEEBHRFHENSZEED
e A TR -_BE-_=ZF+=_A
=+ —RIRERMFRAES 5D
MWAEERERE D -

DISTRIBUTION OF
EMPLOYEES BY AGE GROUP

RFERAEE I NEEDH
Above 50
g0 SOFAL
15% 1%

Female
74
53%
31-40
Eé"’}'; 3154035
o)
47% 87%

Employee benefits and welfare

The Group enters into employment contracts
with its employees and the employment contract
terms were stipulated under the principles of
fairness, voluntarism, mutual consent, integrity
and credibility. The remuneration package offered
to employees includes salary, bonuses and other
subsidies. In general, the remuneration package
is based on each employee’s qualifications,
position, seniority and work performance. The
Group carries out an annual review system to
assess the performance of its employees, which
forms the basis of decisions with respect to salary
raises, bonuses and promotions.

During the year ended 31 December 20283,
the Group maintains social insurance for its
employees pursuant to the applicable PRC laws
and regulations by making contributions to the
mandatory social insurance and housing provident
funds which provide basic retirement, medical,
work-related injury, maternity and unemployment
benefits.

30 or
below
30353k
AR
47%

1ER &

AEEEEEFEIRBAL
BREAONERERQF B
B-2ITRE #REREER
AlHE - BEFMEEF
TEAT RN E A BE » BN 508 —
BMIRBEEBER B -BF
MIERBEE -AKEETT
FEBHHEAFHRBENR
B AERMF  FEAMEFH
IRERERE -

BHE-_ET-_=#+-A=+—
BIEFE  AEEREBERT
BlAREHRBREEBHMTER
B RiEREFTREFEA
BeHi BRHEAARNRK B
B IE  £ERKERR -
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group complies with the Labour Law of the PRC
and did not experience any significant disputes
with its employees or any disruption to business
operations due to labour disputes. In addition,
the Group did not experience any difficulties in
the recruitment and retention of experienced core
staff or skilled personnel.

Labour standards

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there
was no child labour nor forced labour working
in the Group. The job application requirement
specifies that job applicants must be at least 18
years old. To ensure that job applicants can meet
the age requirement, identities of job applicants
are verified against their valid identity documents,
relevant permits and certificates.

The human resources department is required
to carry out background checks to authenticate
information provided by job applicants and
is required to fill in forms that confirm hired
employees have met the age requirement. If
child labour or forced labour is discovered, such
matter will be reported to the human resources
department and the senior management and
the Group will enhance the internal controls
immediately. No material non-compliance
in relation to laws and regulations regarding
prevention of child and forced labour was
recorded during the year ended 31 December
2023.
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Equal opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, job
advancement, training and development, etc.
Employees are not discriminated against or
deprived of such opportunities on the basis of
race, nationality, religion, physical condition,
disability, gender, pregnancy, sexual orientation,
political status, age and any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable law. Employees shall
not act in discriminatory manner or they can be
subject to disciplinary actions.

Employee relations

The Directors consider that it is important to
maintain good relationship with employees.
The Group maintains regular communications
with its employees by arranging gatherings,
celebration activities and trainings. Through these
activities, the Group would collect feedback
from its employees on job satisfactions and
their expectations on the Group and would
implement appropriate strategies to improve the
work environment and its relationship with the
employees.

Employee health and safety

The Group places emphasis on occupational
health and work safety. It provides a safe
working environment and training sessions for its
employees to ensure that they can work safely. It
has also implemented a system of recording and
handling accidents. Further, the Group also has
dedicated personnel responsible for administering
the internal worker safety policies, providing
relevant training and education, and conducting
regular inspections. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group had not experienced
any material safety accidents or been penalised
for any non-compliance relating to work safety
laws and regulations.
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BE-E-_—_+=A

Occupational health and safety data

=St-HRLE=ZBEFENRE

for the three years ended 31 December 2023 REEZZHEBERIRXT

Work related fatality IiT -
Work injury cases >3 days SARUEMTEER -
Work injury cases <=3 days SAREAARITEHEER -
Lost days due to work injury TEEIRE -

(iv) Development and training
The Group provides comprehensive training
and development opportunities to its employees
on a regular basis. The trainings are arranged
according to needs of employees, which were
identified annually by individual departments:

(@ Orientation training — To familiarise
employees with the Group’s objectives,
culture, rules and regulations, safety and
product-related knowledge on the first day
of work.

(b) Pre-job training — To familiarise new
employees or transferred employees with
their new duties.

(c) On-the-job training — To ensure that the
employees are familiar with the Group’s
products, to sharpen the sales technique
and customer service standard of sales
and marketing personnel and to ensure the
production and quality control personnel
perform proper quality control procedures.
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Set forth below is the number and
percentage of training hours completed
by the Group’s employees by gender and

employee category:

AT RAEEREEZMER
K & 8 58 7l B 52 B B0 55 31
RBLADL

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-ZB-_=H+-A=+-HLFE

% of training

hours by
employee
category
RESER
Employee category Male Female Total EomEI
EEEH B zH aFF BEHBEIL
Training hours  Training hours ~ Training hours
i3 SlliSE o4 XAl 2K
Senior management 114 - 114 1.4%
=R ER
Middle management 340 190 530 6.4%
hARE R
Other employees 3,502 4,100 7,602 92.2%
Hitnfg 8
Total 3,956 4,290 8,246 100.0%
st
% of training hours 48.0% 52.0% 100.0%
by gender
BRI 8 5 89 2 3 B
HHWEDL
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-Z--f+-RA=t+—-HLEE

% of training

hours by
employee
category
RESEHR
Employee category Male Female Total i
EERA B prg i3 &t BENADL
Training hours Training hours Training hours
Xl & Rl & Xl 2
Senior management 152 - 152 2.6%
mRERE
Middle management 448 256 704 11.9%
hREERE
Other employees 2,580 2,496 5,076 85.5%
HifES
Total 3,180 2,752 5,932 100.0%
st
% of training hours by 53.6% 46.4% 100.0%
gender
BURE DR HIEE
MmE2
B.2 Operating practices B2 R&EER
Supply chain management () HrE@EER

U)

The Group purchases raw materials and
equipment based on its own needs,
specifications, quality and safety performance of
equipment, reputation, after-sales service and
delivery time of the supplier. The Group compares
different suppliers to select qualified suppliers
(based on their product specifications, product
compliances, production management, quality
management and also ESG performances) before
the Group enters into contract with the qualified
suppliers.

When selecting equipment, the Group would also
consider whether they are energy efficient and
environmental friendly. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group principally sourced
its major raw materials (including PCBAs, display
modules, camera modules and mobile chips) and
equipment from PRC suppliers.
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The geographical locations of the Group’s
suppliers of raw materials and equipment were as
follows:

AEERMF RREOHER
ZIUIBALEMNT

Number of suppliers

HEBHE
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BZE HE
—E== B F
Geographical locations of +=B=+—-H8 +=ZA=+—H
the Group’s suppliers rEBHEFNMENE LEFE IEFE
The PRC H 760 643
Hong Kong BE 70 72
Total X 830 715

The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the
environmental, social and governance principles
that the Group has adopted into the management
of its business operations. In order to ensure
that the components and raw materials meet the
requisite safety and quality standards, the Group
adopts stringent criteria in supplier selection
(including but not limited to whether they provide
high quality raw materials, whether they maintain
a high standard on environmental protection
and comply with relevant laws on environmental
issues, whether price is comparable to
market rate and location of their factories) and
continuously monitors existing suppliers on an
annual basis, based on criteria such as product
quality, product defect ratio, delivery punctuality
ratio and responsiveness.

Whether the supplier will continue to be included
in the Group’s list of approved suppliers depends
on the marks it achieved under annual evaluation.
The awareness of environmental protection is one
of the key criteria for the Group to evaluate the
suppliers.
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(i)

Product responsibility
Product assurance and recall

Product quality is crucial to the Group’s
continued success. The Group places strong
emphasis on achieving a consistently high quality
for its products. To achieve such purpose,
stringent quality control measures throughout
the production process were implemented to
ensure the quality and safety of our products.
The Group’s quality control department performs
regular inspections to evaluate the effectiveness
of the quality control measures and further
enhance these measures when necessary.

The Group’s quality management system has
complied with the standard of GB/T 19001-2016/
ISO9001:2015 Quality Management Systems
Requirements and awarded a certificate for
the design, development, production and
services of communication products, including
exportable mobile phone, on 18 January 2019,
which remains valid until 16 January 2025.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group did not experience any claims, litigations
and arbitrations or material adverse findings in
inspection by government authorities with respect
to product quality.

The Group only accepts product returns if
there is manufacture or design defect or the
product specification deviates from customers’
specifications During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group did not experience
any product recall, material non-compliance
with laws and regulations in relation to product
safety nor receive any material complaints from
consumers.
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(i)

Intellectual property rights and information
security

As a mobile phone supplier with strong design
capability, the Group registers patents to
safeguard the technologies and mobile phone
applications developed by the research and
development department time to time. The Group
relies on the relevant laws and regulations to
protect its brand names, trademarks and other
intellectual property rights.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group was not aware of any material infringement
(i) by the Group of any intellectual property rights
owned by any third parties; or (i) by any third
party of any intellectual property rights owned
by the Group. Further, there were no pending
or threatened material claims made against the
Group, nor had there been any material claims
made by the Group against third parties, with
respect to the infringement of intellectual property
rights owned by the Group.

Anti-fraud and anti-corruption

According to the Group’s anti-corruption policy, all
employees shall abide by the laws and regulations
of the PRC and shall not engage in any illegal
activities. Employees shall uphold the code of
ethics, advocate fair competition and act against
bribery. Any bribery, fraud, money laundering and
embezzlement are prohibited.

Employees must not accept or request any
improper benefits including banquets, gifts,
securities, valuables and high-expenditure
entertainment activities from business partners,
suppliers and merchants, etc. When there is any
alleged case in violation of laws, regulations,
code of conduct or Group’s policies, the Group
will investigate and impose disciplinary actions
upon offenders after verification. The Group also
provides trainings to directors and employees
from time to time to ensure that they comply and
familiar with the anti-fraud and anti-corruption
policy of the Group.

(i)
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SERUTEBEERILENE=S
V5 B 1 () A0 3 2 R Sk (i) 1
MEZAFTEBZERILAEE
W B AN E A o LA
ANEBE W E AR R R KA L E
REMNERRE AEENE
AASEEFMBEENSERER
IRmMAE=ZFIRENTHRNEKR

2 g
= -

REBFEMRER
REXAEENREBHRE A
EREHAETHENERER
ER NS REEAZDEED -
BEEBTREER BERQ
FHEF MO LR - NEEE
I EMEEE - K RXBERER
BRRITA

BETGEIXBEBRH
HEB LB EFTNEATLE
BN EBRE/REFNTLEES
M@ BRER BY FF
EEMR AR BEEREED -
FERUWERER AR B
SRR AKBEERAOIBR
AEBEHAERE RERE
BED AKETIRRAES
KB RHEIZI - ERKREE
SRABANE B RREFRER
BIHEK -
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The Board will monitor and review the
effectiveness of the anti-fraud and anti-corruption
policy from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Group complied with all applicable laws on
prohibiting corruption and bribery of the PRC
and there was no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

Whistleblowing policy

The Group has implemented whistleblowing
policy to provide a well-defined and accessible
channel for reporting fraud, corruption, dishonest
practices, or other similar matters and guidance
on how an investigation would be initiated upon
receiving a complaint. The policy also protects
employees who report fraudulent activities in
good faith and reasonable belief. A whistleblowing
officer is elected to ensure that any reported case
is dealt with in an expedited manner.

Upon receiving the complaint, the Board
decides the method of investigation, which may
involve appointing an external consultant for
assessment. The Board will monitor and review
the effectiveness of the whistleblowing policy from
time to time.
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(iv) Data protection and privacy policy

The Group is committed to protecting the
privacy of its customers, employees, business
partners and suppliers by maintaining a safe
and secure data environment. The Group has
implemented appropriate policies to ensure that
all personal and business data collected during
the Group’s business activities are organised and
secured properly. Computers and servers are
protected from access passwords, Employees
are instructed of their responsibility to follow the
confidentiality code on the access to information
and to ensure the safekeeping of all personal,
customer and business data, trade secrets and
proprietary information. Employees are prohibited
from disclosing the information to unauthorised
parties.

B.3 Community investment

The Group acknowledges corporate social
responsibility and allocates resources to satisfy the
needs of the community. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Group spent reasonable amount
of time and resources on environmental protection
as well as cultural and sport promotion. The Group
encouraged its employees to participate charitable
events. Going forward, the Group will continue to focus
on community needs and increase its investment in
community.
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The ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
FTEHE EH —REER #ME
BRENER

Description

EXSBRATNERE -
ERBmEREIIRARSIR
Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration
RE HERERBEN
HEEEH B

BB
k=¥

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements
BEIRBERE
Governance Structure

ERRE

A statement from the board containing the

following elements:

ESG GOVERNANCE
RE - HERERAE

HMESSRLNER  EFHE MIRE:

()  adisclosure of the board’s oversight of

ESG issues;

HESFRURS LRREATE

MEE

ESG STRATEGIES
R 8 REARE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
RhES R

(i) the board’s ESG management approach
and strategy, including the process
used to evaluate, prioritise and manage
material ESG-related issues (including
risks to the issuer’s businesses); and

EEEgNRE ek

BREETTEH

KRG - BTG - BIRH R EIE
EEMRE HEREAERFEE(E
RHEBETAZHOER) HBE &

(i)  how the board reviews progress made
against ESG-related goals and targets
with an explanation of how they relate to

the issuer’s businesses.

EESWIRENR - 8 REIAIERE
BiEmafEE - WHERE () ms

TAXBHERE -
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Subject areas, aspects, Description Relevant section in the ESG
general disclosures and KPIs report/Declaration

TEHE EH —REER #Ht RE HEREABREN
BRENER HEEH BH

Reporting Principles

HwEEA

A description of, or an explanation on, the REPORTING PRINCIPLES
application of the reporting principles inthe R4 /R B

preparation of the ESG report.

S BBTRERE HgREAME

Ry 40 fa] /& AR BE R Al »
Reporting Boundary
REEE
A narrative explaining the reporting REPORTING SCOPE

boundaries of the ESG report and describing  #45 &8
the process used to identify which entities or

operations are included in the ESG report.

If there is a change in the scope, the issuer

should explain the difference and reason for

the change.

RERE e RERENERSE &

PR L E BN EBAARE  +HE
RERMEMBIR - BERBERNE
BITARBRETRZENEHRA -

Aspect A1: Emissions

EBEA1 : BEmY
General Disclosure Information on: A. ENVIRONMENT
— MR BRABERMBERBEM - Mk  IRE

S AEREBERRMNELSH

(@ the policies; and
BE: R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and nonhazardous waste.
BIHETAGEAXLENHBERE
NIROIEE R -
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Subject areas, aspects, Description Relevant section in the ESG
general disclosures and KPIs report/Declaration

TEHE EH —REER #Ht B HEREARBEN
BRENER HEEH BH

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective A.1 Emissions

BRE IR A emissions data. A1 BERR

BEp R IR K AR B B R BUE -

KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) A.1 Emissions —
FRETIEIRA1.2 and intensity. (i) Greenhouse gas emissions
BEREAENE (LUEE) REE - A FERR— (i) B EREBHEA

KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)  A.1 Emissions —
B E IR IEALS and intensity. (i) Hazardous waste
FIELEEEEEYES (UAREFTE) KZE o (Not applicable — Explained)
A BER— (i) B ERED
(NER-—BW®E)

KPI'A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in A.1 Emissions —
FREBIEIEA14 tonnes) and intensity. (iv) Non-hazardous waste
FrEEEEEEYEE (AERE) REE o ATHENR—(vEEED

KPI A1.5 Description of reduction initiatives and results  A.1 Emissions

FREBIEIZALS achieved. A1 BERR
FUR R BER 2R ERFTERR

KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- A.1 Emissions —

R AE IR IZA1.6 hazardous wastes are handled, reduction (iiiy Hazardous waste
initiatives and results achieved. A B — (i) B EEY
HIREBERBETEEYNAGE BIE A1 Emissions -
EXEMNEHERTEKRE - (iv) Non-hazardous waste

ATHER—(v)EEED
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Subject areas, aspects, Description Relevant section in the ESG
general disclosures and KPIs report/Declaration

TEHE EH —REER #Ht B HEREARBEN
BRENER HEEH BH

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: EREH

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, A.2 Use of resources
—RRIREE including energy, water and other raw A2 & FR1E A
materials.
ERFEAER(BEER K REAMRED
HIBR ©
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by ~ A.1 Emissions
FASR A IR IE A2 type in total and intensity. A1 BERR
RENESHEER LHEEREKES
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. A.1 Emissions —
FRETIBIZA2.2 BREKERTRE - (i) Greenhouse gas emissions —

Water consumption
AT BER— (i) )R ZE R EEHE A —

AKX
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives  A.1 Emissions
RASRAETIBIZA2.3 and results achieved. A1 BERR
i g JR (58 FA A e 51 &) R PTAS BCR ©
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in A.1 Emissions —
FREBIEIZA2.4 sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water (i) Greenhouse gas emissions —
efficiency initiatives and results achieved. Water consumption
RAUREGE A AOR ErI A ERRERE - AR ATHER— ()R =R EBHER—
RIAAKB T8I R PRERER - A7k
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished A.1 Emissions -
RAR B IBIZA25 products (in tonnes). (iv) Non-hazardous waste

HXMATABEREMHNEE AEAE) - ATHR—(vEZED
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EH —REER #Ht
BRENER

Description

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI -HEREBRREN
HERES BH

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEAS: BERAAER
General Disclosure

— R EE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources.
MIRBEITAHBRERRAREREKNEAFY
BHHEK -

KPI A3.1
RS IE IR ASA

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

B EBEHHRIBRARARERNEKRY
ENEEREBREAZENTE -

Aspect A4: Climate Change
[EHEA4 : IR

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of

— B EE significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
BRIREHE R LA G HBEITAEET
R EARIKRBBEENBER

KPI A4.1 Description of significant climate-related

B B IR A4 issues which have impacted and/or may
impact the issuer and the actions taken to
manage them.
HABRKEN KA EEITANER
FIRAARARIRE - LA K /3 R R 15 L 9 8 i £1
MEITH -
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A.3 The environment and natural
resources

ABRERBRER

A.3 The environment and natural
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A.4 Climate change
A4FIREE

A.4 Climate change
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EH —REER
BRENER

Description

g

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI -HEREBRREN
HERES BH

Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1: EE

General Disclosure

— R EE

KPIB1.1
RS AR AIE R B

KPIB1.2
FAS A MIE1RB1.2

Information on:
IR E - BEREA - TIERE -
RE - TE#KE  ZFafl REGSUERH
fth i R AE A Ay

(@ the policies; and
HE &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
BIFHETAGEAXZENHBER
KARBIE RS -

Total workforce by gender, age group and
geographical region.

RIS FieARI Mt EEI O WIES AR -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

RIER - FE AR KRR Bl B E Bk
PR o

ZZTZ=FFHK Sprocomm Inteligence Limited

B.1 Employment and labour
practices

BAEENAE TER

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment —
Total employees
BB NS TER—

() E1E—1E B2

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment —
Total employees
BAEMR NS ITER—
VER—EEEH
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EH —REER
BRENER

Description

g

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI -HEREBRREN
HERES BH

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BEB2: #EHEZE
General Disclosure

—RIEE

KPI B2.1
B4R BB 1R B2.1

KPIB2.2
BB IERB2.2

KPIB2.3
RIS A RIERB2.3

90

Information on:
FRRHLZE2TERELRERE# PR
HEMEEM

(@ the policies; and

BR R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
BIRHETAGEAXLENBBER
NAROIEE R -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
ATEBEEMILTHAB LXK -

Lost days due to work injury.
THBRIRE -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
BETIRERZEEE  URIAHRTRE
B EE e o
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B.1 Employment and labour
practices —

(i) Employee health and safety
BARMBRS TER —

(i) fE B @R 2

B.1 Employment and labour
practices —

(iiiy Employee health and safety
BlEBERSIER—

(iyfE EfEREZ &

B.1 Employment and labour
practices —

(iiiy Employee health and safety
BlEBERSEIEHR—
(ifEEREMZE

B.1 Employment and labour
practices —

(i) Employee health and safety
BAEMERSE TEHR—
(iyfE B REMEZ 2
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EH —REER
BRENER

Description

g

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI -HEREBRREN
HERES BH

Aspect B3: Development and Training

BEEB3: BREKIEI
General Disclosure

—RIEE

KPI B3.1
RASE AR B R B3

KPI B3.2
PSR 1R B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : & T#8|
General Disclosure

—RIKER

KPI B4.1
RS AIE R BAA

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
BRARTHE B BT /e B /A R Fae
BVIER o IR FIEE -

Percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category.

RUERIREERNEONZIREB DL -

Average training hours completed by gender
and employee category.

ZURIREEERE D  BREETHT
TP EE -

Information on:

BEWIEE T keam| % TH :

(@ the policies; and

B &

(o) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.
BIFHETAGEAZENHBER
KRG E RS -

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

it ig T E R DI e AR o & T Kok
HET o

—=— =

—=

B.1 Employment and labour
practices —

(iv) Development and training
BRI RS TEHR—

(iv) BB R IEF

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (iv) Development and
training

BAEMBRSE ITER—

(IV) %E &iu DJ”

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (iv) Development and
training

BlEBERSIHER—
(IV)%E prgsil

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment

BAERBENMS TER—()ERE

B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment

B1REEMLIERE—()ERE
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EH —REER
BRENER

Description

g

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI -HEREBRREN
HERES BH

KPI B4.2
FAS A 1R BA.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

HIRE IR E R BN ER A B R AT
R 8 -

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[BHEB5: HEESE
General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI B5.1
B8 SR 45 UIE 12 B5.1

KPI B5.2
RAR B BUEIZB5.2

KPI B5.3
RIS NIERB5.3

KPI B5.4
RIS AR AIE 1R B 4

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.

EREHERNRELEERAREBEK -

Geographical locations of major suppliers.
TEHEFOMIECE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers.

it A R M EEEES -

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

A B E R e S R IR E Mt
ZREMREEG - ARBERITRERFE -

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

i EREEERRREZARRER R
ARISEVIE G - ARBRAMITRER X -
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B.1 Employment and labour
practices — (i) Employment

BAEMR NS TER () ER

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2 a TR —()\EEEERE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2 E TS — () EsEEE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2 aEH—()HEEEERE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2 BH —()HEEE R

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Supply chain management
B2 BH — () e ER
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

Description

FTEHGE - -EE - —REER  #H
BEENER

Relevant section in the ESG

report/Declaration
BRI -HEREBRREN
HERES BH

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6: EmEE

General Disclosure Information on:

—MRIKEE BRFREERMBRHEORERREZ S ES
BEILEEEARMBRITER
(@ the policies; and
B K
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of
redress.
EBTHBETAREAZENRBER
KARBIEHL -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped
A2 4B WIE 12 B6.1 subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.
EEXRCEXERBAHT EL 2 EE2EE
HmEKEE S

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related
FSRA I 1E B6.2 complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
EEBREDRBRGIRFEE AR ES
Tk e

KPI B6.3
FASAE M IE1RB6.3

Description of practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.

ot B AR EE S B -

KPI B6.4
A AR 1R B6 .4

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.

HilEsRTRAERERBRKRERF -

—=— =

—=

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2EEaEMR—(EmEIE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2iEEER—(EmMEIE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2 &a®EH—(\EREMT

B.2 Operating practices —
(iiy Product responsibility
B2k FEH—(\EmEE

B.2 Operating practices —
(i) Product responsibility
B2e&agER—(\EREMT
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EH —REER
BRENER

Description

g

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI -HEREBRREN
HERES BH

KPI B6.5
FASAE MIE1RB6.5

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

— MR

KPI B7.1
RS WURIZBT A

KPIB7.2
RS AIERBY .2

KPI B7.3
FAS A MIEIRBT.3

94

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

fHUH B & B RHMRME RFLRBECGE - bARA
BT RERITA -

Information on:
EEEPILRRRE - B - HEFRIERER
(@ the policies; and

BE: Rk

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BIFHETAGEAZENRBER
KARBIE RS -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.
REBEHRNEBETASIEEERLIES
RBNBESHARGOEE RFRER -

Description of preventive measures and
whistleblowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B S e S B ERAR T 0 LA RAB BT
NEERTIE -

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
HREEREIRHEORESHEI -
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B.2 Operating practices —

(iv) Data protection and privacy
policy

B2 &EEH—

(iv) & BHR & R AR R

B.2 Operating practices —

(iiiy Anti-fraud and anti-corruption
B2 FH—

(i) REFF R R AR

B.2 Operating practices —

(iiiy Anti-fraud and anti-corruption
B2 EEH—

(i RRFRRER

B.2 Operating practices —

(iiiy Anti-fraud and anti-corruption
B2 &EEH —

(i) R BRFF MR B R

B.2 Operating practices —

(iii) Anti-fraud and anti-corruption
B2 EH—

(il REGFRRER
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Subject areas, aspects, Description
general disclosures and KPIs
TEER EEH  —REER #H

Relevant section in the ESG
report/Declaration

BRI -HEREBRREN
HERES BH

Aspect B8: Community Investment
EEB8: HEBRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to
—RRIREE understand the needs of the communities

where the issuer operates and to ensure

its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

RN BB ERT FREITASERER
EREENBREERSIHGERTRMNE

RIBRER o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
B4R 4R 1Z B8.1 environmental concerns, labour needs,

health, culture, sport).
B (PIMKE  RGERE BT
Bk R L BE) o

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time)
A BIE1EB8.2 to the focus area.
EEIGRMBAER(MeERHE) -

B.3 Community investment
B3t &E

B.3 Community investment
B3tk &

B.3 Community investment
B3Rk E
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHESE

The directors present to the shareholders the annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Principal activities

The Group is an ODM mobile phone supplier based in the PRC,
primarily engaged in research and development, designing,
manufacturing and sale of mobile phones, PCBAs for mobile
phones and loT related products, targeting emerging markets.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Management and Discussion and Analysis”,
“Corporate Governance Report”, “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” and “Financial Summary” of this annual
report.

Principal risk factors and uncertainties

The following sets out the principal risks and uncertainties
encountered by the Group in its business operations:

Rapid technological changes

The Group operates in the mobile phone industry characterised
by rapid technological changes with short product life cycle, and
the Group may not be able to maintain its revenue growth and
any delay by us in rolling out new and competitive mobile phones
will adversely affect its financial performance.

Thin net profit margin

The Group has a relatively thin net profit margin and hence are
highly sensitive to any unfavorable change in the cost of sales,
selling price and sales volume.

Concentration of customers

The Group has a concentration of customers and any decrease
or loss of business from these major customers could adversely
and substantially affect its business operations and financial
conditions.
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Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials
Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials may affect the Group’s
cost of sales and adversely affect its business operations and
profitability.

Future prospect and development

The Group’s business growth is expected to be driven by (i) the
huge population and the increasing disposable income of the
Group’s target sales locations; (ii) increasing demand for loT
products; and (i) the roll-out of 5G telecommunication network.
In order to capture the potential market opportunities, the
Group will continue to expand its production capacity, enhance
its research and development capability, enrich its product
portfolio and increase its sales and marketing effort to diversify its
geographical locations.

Major suppliers and customers

During the year ended 31 December 2023, sales to the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers accounted for
20.2% and 70.3% (2022: 20.8% and 47.3%) of the total revenue,
respectively.

On the other hand, purchases from the Group’s largest supplier
and the five largest suppliers during the year ended 31 December
2023 accounted for approximately 9.7% and 28.9% (2022:
11.9% and 38.0%) of the total purchases, respectively.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Key relationships with employees,
customers and suppliers

Maintaining good relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers is critical to the Group’s business success. The Group
creates a decent working environment for its employees, where
they can work comfortably and achieve a work life balance. The
Group rewards its employees based on their performance and
also provides training to enhance their skills and knowledge. No
strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents are found
in the reporting period under review.
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The Group believes that it is important to listen to customers’
needs and feedbacks on its products in order to maintain
sustainable relationship with customers. The Group collects such
information from various channels and performs detailed analysis
on how to improve existing products and develop new products
that would satisfy its customers.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner.
The departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just
manner.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2023, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group. The Group also complied with () the requirements
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) for the
disclosure of information and corporate governance; and (i) the
ordinances relating to occupational safety for the interest of its
employees.

Business activities in countries subject to
international sanctions

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group did not sell any products to countries that are subject
to international sanctions. The Group would not enter into any
transactions to finance or facilitate, directly or indirectly, activities
or business with, or for the benefit of, the countries subject to
international sanctions or sanctioned persons where this would
be in breach of the international sanctions.

The Directors believe that the Group has a reasonably adequate
and effective internal control framework to continue to assist the
Group in identifying and monitoring any material risk relating to
international sanctions laws so as to protect the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders.

98 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2023

AEBRA RBEEPHERNFREER
NmEEFPFNRABEREEEE - A5 H
EBRBREER FHAITNAKZR
BEMMAEREEFHNMER-

AEBREEHELTIEEE UERAS
MhREFPHENX - ERFIETEIE - BIRBIR
RIREBERR - A FRALE-

BFEERER
BE_T_=F+_A=+t—HILFE - #E
EMA ARBCETHAREAEEARE
B —PIRBDAEREAR - AREREET)E
BRRMEE - TR RIAME S KB R ([#
ZRBERGD EREEENMEERERD
BE Ri)BEEBREZZONGRD - UREREE
M o

REBEBRHBENERBROER

EHHE_FT_—FERFT__F+=A
—t+—BULEFE FAEEHERZEEGE
MERBEERER AEEBTSEZEM
FERBEHIENRS  NEZXBEED
SREEZBERFIHBRIAZHFEALTHAED
GBS E S S R B B & B R 22 A
TR EFRAREREERER o

EEZRA AEERAAERRAAERNRN
EIEHIER AREBHAEERZR R EE
HERHNEEZAENENRR  REAQF
KB R ) R o



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRESE

Environmental policy and social
responsibility

The Group understands the importance of environmental
sustainability and protection and has adopted policies on
pollution prevention, preservation of natural resources and
adherence to environmental laws and regulations. Please refer to
the ESG Report on pages 55 to 95 for details of the Group’s ESG
performance.

Results and dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on page 122. The
directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Closure of the register of members

For the purposes of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be held on 27 May 2024 (Monday), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 22 May 2024 (Wednesday) to
27 May 2024 (Monday), both days inclusive. The latest time to
lodge transfer documents for registration will be at 4:30 p.m.
on 21 May 2024 (Tuesday). During the above closure period,
no transfer of shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m.
on 21 May 2024 (Tuesday).

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed
securities of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

Reserves and distributable reserves

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of this annual report. The
distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Tax relief and exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.
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Charitable donations

The Group did not make any donation during the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: nil).

Management contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its
subsidiaries were entered into or existed.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Chengjun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xiong Bin (Vice-chairman)

Mr. Guo Qinglin

Mr. Wen Chuanchuan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Hung Wai Man

Mr. Wong Kwan Kit

Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen

Ms. Tseng Chin |

In accordance with article 109(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company
at the general meeting at which a Director retires may fill the
vacated office.

@5_7__¢+ A=+—BIEFE &
EEYMAFHEMBE (CE-—F F) -

¢

EEAEY
BHE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—BItFE &
MV FEARTENKEARANRIXIE
NA R T AERI D EBENEL -

E=E
B2 - =F+-_A=+—HIFEKEH
ERFEAHNARAGESS

HITES

FEE SR (L ERITHAR)
AR SE 5 (B2 %)
SIS

BN S 4

BYFHTES
HBREE
ERASEE
BKIRSEE
LEH L

REBEARFEEEIZMAE1090) 5 - NEFE
BERBAFAE L ER=22Z—WNESF (M
EFEABUF==0FE MAREKLE
POR=ZDZ—WMABBE) BRERE  H

l%%(@%ﬁﬁfﬁ&%ﬁ’]%%)ﬁ?&&
—FRERT-XR REEFAEEET X
A ﬂTE@Hx%KQ?ﬁé% RTIEMZE

—Z =44 Sprocomm Inteligence Limited 101



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRESE

In accordance with article 113 of the Company’s articles of
association, the Board shall have power from time to time and at
any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director, provided that the number
of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the maximum number
determined from time to time by the shareholders in general
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed under this
article shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an
annual general meeting.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation as required by
the Company’s articles of association, and the code provisions of
CG Code.

In accordance with 109(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Guo Qinglin, Mr. Wen Chuanchuan and Mr.
Hung Wai Man will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Biographical details of directors and senior
management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 21 to 28 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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Emoluments of directors and senior
management and five highest paid
individuals

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and senior
management and the five highest paid individuals of the Group
are set out in note 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report. The remuneration of the senior
management of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 falls within the following band:

Remuneration band
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Directors’ service contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 13 November 2019, until terminated by enter party giving not
less than three months’ notice in writing to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 13 November 2019. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has renewed the appointment letter with
the Company on 13 November 2022 and such appointment
will be until terminated by either party giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other; and in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company and the Listing Rules.

Apart from the foregoing, no Directors proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
or compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Permitted indemnity provision

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent
permitted by the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands) which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.
As of the date of this annual report, such insurance coverage is
currently in force for the benefit of the Directors.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2023, interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO, which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
are as follows:
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Interest in the Company RAEQAR Z R
Percentage of
shareholding in
Number of the Company
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest shares held RERXBFR
EEnR B, HRME BREE BatE
(Note 1) (Approximate)
(Krat 1) (BE47)
Mr. Li Chengjun (“Mr. Li”) (Note 2) Founder of a discretionary trust 369,967,204 (L) 37.0%

FRERE(FEEE]D) Hit2) RREEFERIIA

Mr. Xiong Bin (“Mr. Xiong”) (Note 3) Founder of a discretionary trust 305,032,256 (L) 30.5%
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Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes long position of the shares.

2. Leap Elite Limited is legally owned as to 100% by Mr. Li for the benefit of
the beneficiaries of the family trust found by himself. Accordingly, Mr. Li is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Leap Elite Limited pursuant to
the SFO.

3. Beyond Innovation Limited is legally owned as to 100% by Mr. Xiong for the
benefit of the beneficiaries of the family trust found by himself. Accordingly,
Mr. Xiong is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Beyond
Innovation Limited pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had registered any interests or short positions
in any shares and underlying shares in, and debentures of, the
Company or any associated corporations as at 31 December
2023, as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code.

Arrangement for directors to purchase
shares or debentures

Saved as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2023 were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director of the Company or their
respective spouses or minor children, or were such rights
exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Substantial shareholders’ and others’
interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the company

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2023,
the following corporation/persons (other than the interests of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company as disclosed
above) had interests of 5% or more in the issued shares which
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange

FTERRREMALRALQT
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under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or  #E S B AR R RIRIEEH L E 1565
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company 336 {§&7B1F & By &2
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
Percentage of
shareholding in
Number of the Company
Name Capacity/nature of interest shares held RAEAQRFR
= 5 RRME FREAE Bk
(Note 1) (Approximate)
(Kizt1) (##7)
Leap Elite Limited Beneficial owner 369,967,204 (L) 37.0%
VEBRERAQF Bk
Beyond Innovation Limited Beneficial owner 305,032,256 (L) 30.5%
bR N /NC] Bt
Ms. Sui Rongmei (Note 2) Interest of spouse 369,967,204 (L) 37.0%
FEeig 2+ (Hat2) B
Ms. Yan Xue (Note 3) Interest of spouse 305,032,256 (L) 30.5%
BE 224 (f7:#3) Ao B
JZ Capital Limited (Note 4) Beneficial owner 65,000,540 (L) 6.5%
JZ Capital Limited (472t 4) EmEn
Mr. Ko Hin Ting, James (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 65,000,540 (L) 6.5%
SEFRES A (Mt 4) REEE R
Ms. Chu Wing Yee, Vaneese (Note 5) Interest of spouse 65,000,540 (L) 6.5%

RokfgE L (H:25)
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Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes long position of the shares.

2. Ms. Sui Rongmei is the spouse of Mr. Li Chengjun. By virtue of the SFO,
she is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held by Mr. Li
Chengjun.

3. Ms. Yan Xue is the spouse of Mr. Xiong Bin. By virtue of the SFO, she is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares held by Mr. Xiong
Bin.

4. JZ Capital is owned as to 99% by Mr. Ko Hin Ting, James. As such, Mr. Ko
Hin Ting, James is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by JZ Capital
Limited pursuant to the SFO.

5. Ms. Chu Wing Yee, Vaneese is the spouse of Mr. Ko Hin Ting, James. As
such, Ms. Chu Wing Yee, Vaneese is deemed or taken to be interested in the
Shares in which Mr, Ko Hin Ting, James is interested pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the
Company has not been notified of any other relevant interests or
short positions in the issued share capital of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No Director or his/her connected entity has or had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party subsisting during
or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2023.

Directors’ and controlling shareholders’
interest in competing business

Apart from the Group’s business, none of the Directors, the
Controlling Shareholders (including Mr. Li, Leap Elite Limited, Mr.
Xiong and Beyond Innovation Limited) or any of their respective
close associates was engaged in or had any interest in any
business that competes or may compete with the principal
business of the Group, which would require disclosure under
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules. or has any other conflict of interest
with the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of this report.
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Share option scheme

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 18 October 2019 (the “Adoption
Date”), which become effective on 13 November 2019. The
purpose of which is to motivate the eligible participants to
optimise their future contributions to the Group and/or to
reward them for their past contributions, to attract and retain or
otherwise maintain on-going relationships with such participants
who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the Group.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers, directors, advisers,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and such other persons who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to the
Group.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme,
the maximum numbers of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at 13 November 2019 (i.e. 100,000,000
shares) unless approved by the shareholders of the Company.
Such limit also represented 10% of the of the total issued shares
of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting in the manner stipulated in the Listing Rules, the
maximum entitlement for each eligible participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of shares in issue.

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptance of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which
the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to
the expiry of ten years from that date. The minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than ten years after it has been
granted.

The exercise price of share option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board
and shall be at least highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of the option; (b) the average of the closing prices
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the option; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Directors, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the Adoption Date. As
at 31 December 2023, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme was approximately five years and 9.5 months.

For further details on the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme, please refer to the paragraph headed “Statutory and
General Information — Other Information — 1. Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.
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() Outstanding options

As at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023, the number
of share options available for grant under the Share Option

Scheme was 75,100,000 and 100,000,000, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
did not grant any share options and no share options were
exercised and 24,900,000 share options were lapsed.
Details of the Company’s share options from 1 January

2023 to 31 December 2023 are as follows:

() FIRITERERE
RZE_=ZF—AF—HERZZEZ-_=ZF
+TZA=+—8 " AUREERESE
/B8 IR 2B o 51 & 75,100,000 17 &
100,000,00015 °

BE-_Z-_=F+-A=1+—8BLFE "
RARIEREERE HEEBERERE
771% + B 24,900,0007 R EE KB - =
T —HA—HE-_ZE_-_=ZF+_-A
=+ —HRARRFEIRENFBEERSAT

QOutstanding Number of Number of Numberof  Outstanding

asat share share share asat
Date of Exercise Vesting Exercise 1 January options options options 31 December
grant price period period 2023 granted exercised lapsed 2023
R=Bzzf
RZBzzfF t=R
-B-H SRLE BT BB =t-A
REBH TEE HEH & ] HATE kg hE"A b €] HATE
Category: Employees
s
Tranche 1 14 April 2020 HKS051 14 Apil 202010 1Juy 2021 to 7,470,000 - - (7,470,000 -
30 June 2021 13 April 2025
£-8 2 0518T —Z-%% “Io-F
mA+TEA mATHAZ tA-RZE
3% “EIR%
~AZTH mA+=A
Tranche 2 14 April 2020 HKS051 14 Api 202010 1y 202210 7,470,000 - - (7,470,000 -
30 June 2022 13 April 2025
£28 Z5C%% 0518T —Z-%F Sl
mA+TEA mATHAZ tA-HE
St 2 “ZCRE
~AZTH mA+=A
Tranche 3 14 April 2020 HK$0.51 14 Aprl 2020t0 1 July 202310 9,960,000 - - 9,960,000 -
30 June 2023 13 April 2025
£=5 “I-%F 051%T —Z-%F “EoCE
mA+TEA mATHAZ tA-HE
Z5Iz% “IonE
~AZTA mA+=A
Total @it 24,900,000 - - (245900,000) -

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares of the Company available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 100,000,000, representing 10% of the

total issued shares of the Company.
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(ii) Valuation of share options

(i) BRENMEE

(1) The following significant assumptions were used to (1) ZEBREZAFEDERA-_EAH
derive the fair value of the share options using the BEEENX UFEATIEZRE
Binominal Options pricing model: 5

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
£—H £ E=H
Date of grant 14 April 2020 14 April 2020 14 April 2020
=R —E-FF —T-EF —T-EF
MA+mA /MA+mA /MA+mAE
Fair value at grant date HK$0.211 HK$0.220 HK$0.227
REHBEATE 0.21138 T 0.22078 7T 0.227 % 7T
Share price HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51
P& (B 0.517% 7T 0.5187T 0.51 7%
Exercise price HK$0.51 HK$0.51 HK$0.51
TEME 0.51787T 0.51%87T 0.51 % 7T
Expected volatility 53.00% 53.00% 53.00%
& B R 0
Expected life 5 years 5 years 5 years
FEETFHA 5% 5% 54
Exercise period 1 July 2021 to 1 July 2022 to 1 July 2023 to
13 April 2025 13 April 2025 13 April 2025
TEHR —T——F —T_—F —E=F
tHA—RZE tA—RA=% tHA—RA=%
—EREF —EZAREF —ERF
MA+=H MA+=H MA+=H
Risk-free rate 0.58% 0.58% 0.58%
EREREX
Expected dividend yield - - -
R B X
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(2) Expected volatility was determined by calculating the
historical volatility of the price of listed companies
with businesses similar to the Group. The expected
dividend yield is determined by the directors based on
the expected future performance and dividend policy
of the Group.

(8) No share-based payment expense was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil) in
relation to share options granted by the Company as
the performance condition was not satisfied.

Connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has not
entered into or conducted any connected transactions, which
were subject to the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements as required under the
Listing Rules.

Related party transactions

Details of the Group’s related party transactions during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions are connected transactions which are subject
to the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
company’s listed securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Corporate governance practices

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

Equity-linked agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a public float of no less than 25% of
the issued shares for the year ended 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of this report.

Review of audited annual results

The Company’s audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Model code for securities transactions by
directors of listed issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions. All Directors of the Company
have confirmed that, following specific enquiry by the Company,
they have compiled with the required standard set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to
the date of the report.

Auditor

Moore CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company, will retire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the Company and
be eligible to offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
will be submitted to the AGM to be held on 27 May 2024 to
seek Shareholders’ approval on the appointment of Moore CPA
Limited as the Company’s auditor until the conclusion of the next
AGM and to authorise the Board to fix their remuneration.

By order of the Board
Sprocomm Intelligence Limited
Mr. Li Chengjun

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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K| MOORE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SPROCOMM INTELLIGENCE LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 122 to 204, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Expected credit loss (“ECL”) of trade and
bills receivables

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in Note 3.

The key audit matter
HREETSEE

RRETEER

REESNERHAE BAREFTFEARESF
RECZARGAVBERRTREENEH -
EEEERERAMBRREBLBLLAR
REEELEER MAGRLEERES
BRER -

BEZEWRERERRE 2 EY
FEFR(REEERFE]D
ELNEAMBRAMEIORM FINE;
B o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERETPOMEEEBEE

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of trade and bills
receivables amounted to RMB808,830,000, representing 21% of
the Group’s total current assets.

ECL for trade and bills receivables is estimated based on lifetime
ECL model, which is estimated based on historical credit loss
experience and forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period.

We have identified impairment of trade and bills receivables as
a key audit matter because the impairment assessment of trade
and bills receivables involved a significant degree of management
estimation and may be subject to management bias.

RIZBZ=F+_A=+—H BEZERAREBREKZED
BREE A ARKS808,830,0007T ' 1 EXERBEELEDN
21% °

BHRBFEREREEREEDEREEEBEAGTE
BRE MEREEBRIERBSHRNEBEEEBRRE
BEAEEERMEER

HNEZEUFIBEREREEREM G RERNEERMGTR
EEEARLRRR BEFCHEZREFEAREEZEN
BRI A — AR EET IR -

Our procedures were designed to review the
management’s judgement and estimates used
in assessment process and challenge the
reasonableness of inputs and assumptions
used in estimating the ECL of trade and bills
receivables.

We obtained an understanding of how the ECL
of trade and bills receivables were assessed by
the management.
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Expected credit loss (‘ECL”) of trade and ESRWFIEREKREE A

bills receivables (Continued) FEFBE(HAHEESFE] @
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETER EEREFHPNMEEEBER

We have challenged management’s assumption
and judgement in determining ECL on trade and
bills receivables as at 31 December 2023, the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of
the trade debtors in the provision matrix, and the
basis of ECL rates applied, adjusted for forward
looking information including both current and
forecast general economic conditions.

We have tested, on sample basis, payment
history, past due status of the trade and bills
receivables, and the settlements subsequent to
the end of the reporting period.

We have tested the accuracy of the historical
default data and tested trade receivables past
due ageing analysis as at 31 December 2023,
on a sample basis, by comparing individual
items in the analysis with the relevant supporting
documents.

EEEEREEEEER T -_=F1=A
=t HANEZRKRFARERER 2 A
FEEBERNRERAE BEEEHEEER
NE SRR ERRN DB 2R AKMER
MEHEEREXRERE YERBFEEMR
TERIEE R BEAORAE NV ATHE 1 ERHE L FHEE o
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RESL - BEAIRAEREHREERSR -
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RS - MRS LB M BUR M ERENE - 3
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Valuation of inventories

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in Note 3.

The key audit matter
HRETSBR

FEME

FLHEEMBEmRME I8 RMEINE
R °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEREFPOMEEMEBSE

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of inventories
amounted to approximately RMB337,630,000, representing 10%
of the Group’s total current assets.

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter
due to the use of judgements in identifying obsolete and slow
moving inventories and determining the net realisable value which
are based on conditions and the marketability of the inventories.

RZZE-_=F+-_A=+—H GZENEERELHAEARE
337,630,0007C ' 1 EEEMRBEERLME10% -

ERFEMGEESBREBIFHE - 2 B0 E 5B RE M H
ﬁﬁ AERBEFEGEEHEBE T ZRFEFSER
HE - EENBEAREFEETREEBHREMBHFEMN
SEHER SR - WREEF BT EERE o

Our audit procedures were designed to evaluate
management’s assessment of the conditions
and the marketability of the obsolete and slow
moving inventories and identify any valuation risk
of inventories.

We have assessed the net realisable values and
subsequent sales of inventories on a sample
basis and inspected the utilisation report and
sales contracts entered into between the Group
and its customers on a sample basis.

We have discussed with the management in
respect of the adequacy of the allowance made
by the management based on subsequent
usage and sales, ageing analysis and current
market conditions.

We have challenged the assumptions and
judgements used by the management by
assessing the reliability of the management’s
past estimates.
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Other information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report of the directors, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors and the audit
committee for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit

Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of Group’s internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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BRER - ARG SERKERM
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ERBESENFENETENNBES - B
FEMERYE REBXEREE -BFFN:

o HRRFFEARKFHERMEHERA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BN =

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statement
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BN =

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chan King Keung

Practising Certificate Number: PO6057

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeBREkEMEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =#+ = H =+ —HIFF/E

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBFR AR%T R
Revenue Wz 5 2,822,921 1,450,377
Cost of sales $H & P AR (2,523,333) (1,246,747)
Gross profit EF 299,588 203,630
Other gains and income H bz R UgA 7 38,780 52,170
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEAX (58,654) (38,754)
Administrative expenses TBREAMAS (64,265) (64,885)
Research and development EF 2
expenses (139,686) (124,075)
Finance costs R =4 8 (35,816) (18,261)
Profit before tax BRBE A % R 39,947 9,825
Income tax expense Frisfif > 9 (8,931) (3,464)
Profit for the year FRER 10 31,016 6,361
Other comprehensive income Hib2mE =
Items that may be reclassified HEAJREE 7 E R A
subsequently to profit or loss: EHH
Exchange difference arising on MEBINETBEER
translating foreign operations T i =& (511) (2,186)
Total comprehensive income FREEWREESE
for the year 30,505 4,175
Profit/(loss) attributable to: AT &FEEEF, (E18)
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE ¥ =N 32,369 6,506
Non-controlling interests IR R A (1,353) (145)
31,016 6,361
Total comprehensive income UWTEFEGEEREEEE -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AKRNBHEE A 31,863 4,298
Non-controlling interests e R = (1,358) (123
30,505 4,175
Earnings per share BRAF 14
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EXRLEE(ANRED) 3.24 0.65
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

At 31 December 2023 R—E - =#+_-H=+—H

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E- %
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR¥T T ARETF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEREE 15 95,899 103,614
Right-of-use assets FHELSE 16 8,166 5,649
Intangible assets mAE 17 6,162 7,659
Long-term prepayment REATE FE 20 - 18,280
Deferred tax assets EEIREE 28 688 248
I 110915 135450
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 18 377,630 187,428
Trade and bills receivables H 5 W EIE KRR IE 19 808,830 191,704
Prepayments and other receivables 78 5 I8 K E b & Uk 008 20 82,067 139,048
Amounts due from shareholders JE U A B8 FR IR 21 6,341 6,341
Pledged bank deposits BEAIRITER 22 2,368,420 764,383
Bank balances and cash IRITEMR MRS 23 67,951 36,635
S 3,711,239 - 1,825,589
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and bills payables B HRNFIERENZEE 24 3,158,712 940,627
Accruals and other payables FEETEB A R E AR FRIB 25 92,541 76,702
Contract liabilities AHAE 25 32,472 30,251
Borrowings BN 26 142,622 37,006
Lease liabilities HEBE 16 5,890 5,855
Deferred income PEIEY A 27 1,633 3,490
Income tax payable FERTPTIS TR 4,591 5,952
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 3438461 1,099,883
Netcurrentassets ~~~~~~~~~ "®B&E¥E =~~~ 2712778 - 225,656
Total assets less current liabilities ®EEMABASE 383693 361,106 _
—T = =% Sprocomm Intelligence Limited 123
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRR

At 31 December 2023 R—ZFE - =#+_-H=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=FE —E-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET ARBFT
Non-current liabilities RBERE
Deferred income PEIEYW A 27 4,135 12,096
Deferred tax liability EERIBEE 28 14,102 13,484
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 2,425 -
Borrowings EEN 26 11,817 14,817
32,479 40,397
Net assets EEFRE 351,214 320,709
Capital and reserve EXR#E
Share capital %N 29 8,945 8,945
Reserves i@ 30 343,140 311,277
Equity attributable to owners of the  RA & %A AR
Company 352,085 320,222
Non-controlling interests FEERR (871) 487
Total equity A 351,214 320,709

The consolidated financial statements on page 122 to 128 were  F 122 E 128 B A M B HREXEO N —_ 2 -1
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  F£=HA -+ \BEEE S &L EREHE -
28 March 2024.

Li Chengjun Xiong Bin
FERE REM
Director Director
EF 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

o A EE 32 4=
mEEREHR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =#+ = H =+ —HIFF/E

Atrioutable to owners of the Company

FLAAREAES
Non-
Share Shae Sttty Trandiaion Merger Other Retaned controling
captal premium 6ENe T6SENe 16SEIVe 1SENVES pofts— Sub-lotal nterests Total

BE RWAE  AEGE  BEBR  oRER bR REEH M FERER 3t
RVBOO  RVBOO  RWBOD  RVBO  RWBOD  RMBOD  RVBOO  RWBODD  RVBOX  RUBOND
ARRTR ARRTR  ARMTT  ARRTR ARRTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARMTT  ARRTR ARETR

oo 29 ot 30)) WNote300) (Mot 30f)
Wiz W) Widaom) (W)
At 1 January 2022 W-5-"E-F-H 8945 89439 29420 2,486) (26,744) 85,809 131,541 315924 67 316,837
Proft for the year Emg] - - - - - - 6,506 6,506 (145 6,361
Other comprehensive 2h2EER)/
(expense)fincome Y - - - g - - - .20 2 (2,186)
Totel comprehensive fexpense)/ £R2 (%) /
income for the year YagE - - - g - - 6,506 4,29 (129 4175
Coptelcontbuonfoma~— —AERBEHEE
non-controling shareholder - - - - - - - - 697 697
Appopration o statoy  ERZETRE
fesenve - - 3346 - - - 3,346) - - -
At 31 December 2022 i
+t2A=1-4 8,94 89439 32,766 (4,694 (26,744) 85,809 184,701 320222 487 320,709
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GARNEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Gompany

KAAERARL
Non-
Share Share  Statutory  Translation Merger Other  Retained controlling
captal ~ premium reserve resene resene resenes profts ~ Sub-total interests Total
Bx  ROEE  EREE  BERE  AKER  EMRE  RERW Nt FERER 3t
RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMBOO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note 29) (Note 30)) Note 30)) ~ Mote 30/if)
i) (i) (wasq) (k0
At1 January 2023 W-BZ=E-5-B 8,945 89,439 3,766 (46%4) (26,744) 85,809 184,701 320,222 97 320,709
Prot for the year Emg] - - - 32,39 32,369 (1359 3016
Other comprehensive 2h2EER)/
(e¥pense)fincome ha - (506) - (506) ] (311)
Total comprehensive (expense) M2 (5%)/
income for the year YagE - (506) - 32,369 31,863 (135 30505
Aopoprafon tostatvioy — ERZERRE
6SEIe - 3,052 - - (3,052) - -
At31 December 2023 H-%Izf
+Zh=t-A 8,945 89,439 3,818 (5,200 (26,744) 85,800 164018 352,085 on) 31214
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
nv'ﬁ Iﬁﬁ/)lbi%‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2023 2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFFE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T ARBFT
Operating activities KRB
Profit before tax B 5 A A 39,947 9,825
Adjustments for: AT ZEEDL
FE
Finance costs B ER 8 35,816 18,261
Amortisation of government grant RS 478 Bh 4 55 7 (9,818) (6,488)
Bank interest income RITH B U A 7 (11,503) (12,227)
Written off of property, plant and MEYZE - BE
equipment Mgt 10 - -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - KE
equipment KNk g1 10 509 2,135
Loss on early termination of leases RERIEEE
BB 10 - 3
Amortisation of intangible assets B A 17 2,382 2,307
Provision/(reversal) of loss allowance HE S EBH
recognised in respect of trade and bills BREREE
receivables HREE
BB (BmE)
19 3,360 (76)
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BE R
equipment RETE 15 14,221 24,612
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEENE 10 18,325 10,194
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MEHB
NAIEE 10 419 -
Operating cash flows before working capital BEEGE @J ﬁﬁ
changes CERERE 93,658 48,546
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOgm
z%ea (190,150) 93,882
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills B 5 WA R
receivables JE W =%
(&) R (618,397) 31,465
Decrease in amounts due to from JE U A s BR SRR
shareholders L - 3,134
Decrease in prepayment and other AR RIE R H AL
receivables JE W R IR 62,208 2,819
Increase in trade and bills payables B ENFIAER
FETE I A0 2,218,085 416,496
Increase in accruals and other payables JEETB R EA
&S 3R Iﬁi‘ n 15,834 2,277
Decrease/(increase) in contract liabilities AHBERD
(i'jJu> 1,968 (40,121)
Cash generated from operations ZEMERE 1,583,206 558,498
Income tax paid BATFTIEH (10,114) (2,642)
Net cash from operating activities RETHHIBRS
FE 1,573,092 555,856
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CONSOL|DATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/j—\ IE%/)ILE%%

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #t2 —F - =F+ - H=+—HIFZ

2023 2022
—Z=-= ===
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T ARBFT
Investing activities REEH
Payments for purchase of property, LEBEME BB
plant and equipment PESNEN 15 (7,015) (8,495)
Payments for purchase of intangible asset NEERVEE
(NE7S 17 (885) (783)
Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary HE—HWBRAT
PRSI 38 14,391 -
Placement in pledged bank deposits FEABEHIRIT
VEE=N (3,307,361) (1,238,500)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits IR E EHRIT
3 1,703,380 693,569
Government subsidies received B BUT 7 Bh 27 - 274
Prepayment for acquisition of leasehold U EEE :I:f@
land TR FRIA 20 - (18,280)
Disposal of subsidiary HE—HEMBAR - -
Interest received 2 F & 10,071 4,362
Net cash used in investing activities RETBHFARS
B (1,587,419) (567,853)
Financing activities L& E
Capital contribution from a non-controlling — R IR R
shareholder HTE - 697
New borrowings raised HEE 1ﬁ = 458,262 239,723
Repayments of borrowings EEEBX (356,474) (248,948)
Payments for capital element of lease HEBEERE D
liabilities KBS (18,287) (9,147)
Interest paid 2AFE (35,816) (18,261)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities & & EE T8
(A BE&F8E 47,685 (35,936)
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand cash RERBRESEEY
equivalents #hn, o)
FEE 33,358 (47,933)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#EEREE
of the year ZEY 36,635 82,904
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEHMTE (2,042) 1,664
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FREERRS
the year ZEY 23 67,951 36,635
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR AR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2023 2 —F — =4+ - H=+—HIFFE

1.

GENERAL

Sprocomm Intelligence Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as combined and revised)
of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 15 August 2018 and its shares have
been listed on Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 13 November
2019 (the “Listing”). The ultimate controlling parties are
Mr. Li Chengjun and Mr. Xiong Bin (the “Controlling
Shareholders”), who are also executive directors of the
Company.

The address of the registered office is located in P.O.
BOX 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay
Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands and the
principal place of business of the Company is located in
5D-506, F1.6 Block, Tianfa Building, Tianan Chegongmiao
Industrial Park, Futian District, Shenzhen, China.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are designing,
manufacturing and sales of mobile phones and printed
circuit board assembly products (“PCBA”) and Internet
of things (“loT”) related products and investment holding.
Particulars of the subsidiaries have been set out in Note 35.
The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to
as the “Group”.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB
which is also the functional currency of the Company, and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousands, except
when otherwise indicated.

1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

2. Application of new and amendments

to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new and amendments to

HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied the
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for
the preparation of the financial statements:

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
HKAS 1 and Policies!
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates!

HKFRS 17 and Insurance Contracts and
Amendments to related Amendments!
HKFRS 17

Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction'

Amendments to International Tax Reform —
HKAS 12 Pillar Two Model Rules

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRS
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and position for the
current and prior year and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements, except as
described below. In accordance with the guidance set
out in the amendments, accounting policy information
that is standardised information, or information that
only duplicates or summarises the requirements of the
HKFRSs, is considered immaterial accounting policy
information and is no longer disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements so as not to
obscure the material accounting policy information
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

2. Application of new and amendments 2.

to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs not yet
adopted
The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective:

FE R 3R] RS E] B R M I 3R
EEA(HFEMBREER ]

(b) I ARBRABIHET KRBT E

BB EHREER

AR R R E R T 5B B 618
MR R BT AT RGBT BB BT
SEREIR

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to

Non-current liabilities with
covenants!

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current!

Lease Liability in a Sale and

ERGFERED  WHERERIE
5% (IBRTAS) mEARE
FEEHERE1 BEEIER

ACCHES) MBI
@1
ERMBREER RERE@D
F1658 (17T A) HMERE!

HKFRS 16 Leaseback!

Amendments to Supplier Finance
HKAS 7 and Arrangements!
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 21

The effects of changes in
foreign exchange rates: Lack
of exchangeability?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between in Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Group anticipate that the
application of the new and amendments to HKFRS will
have no material impact on the financial statements in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (jii) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s
returns.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the
Company and non-controlling interest.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
entities of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries in preparing the consolidated
financial statements to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods and services to customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services to a customer.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e  The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e The Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

e The Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #t2 —F - =F+ - H=+—HIFZ

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of goods

The Group produces and sells mobile phones, PCBAs for
mobile phones, loT related products, and other products
related to mobile phones. Revenue from the sale of goods
is recognised when control of the product is transferred
to the customer. Control of the product is considered
transferred to the customer generally on delivery of goods
to the customer’s specified location and when customer
acceptance has been obtained, which is the point of time
the customer has the ability to direct the use of these
products and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits of these products.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
and accepted by customers as this is the point in time that
the consideration is unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is due. Payment of
the transaction price is usually due within 30-90 days of
the date when control of the products is transferred to the
customer.

The Group received 5% to 30% of the contract value as
deposit from certain customers when they signed the sale
and purchase agreement for sales of products. For certain
sale orders received from customer relating to loT related
products, the Group received 80% of the contract value
as upfront deposit when they signed the sale agreement.
These deposits are recognised as contract liabilities until the
goods have been delivered to the customers.

The Group provides warranties for general repairs of
defects to ensure that the products comply with agreed
upon specification and they are therefore assurance-
type warranties and the Group accounts for the warranty
in accordance which HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Lease

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with
respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). For these leases,
the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted by
using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability represents the fixed lease payments (including in-
substance fixed payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #t2 —F - =F+ - H=+—HIFZ

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Lease (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at amounts
which comprise the initial measurement amount of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and any initial direct costs,
less lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. They are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-
of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in the “Impairment losses
on tangible assets and intangible assets” policy as stated
below.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #t2 —F - =F+ - H=+—HIFZ

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #t2 —F - =F+ - H=+—HIFZ

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method as follows:
Leasehold improvements 5 years or over lease term
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 3 years to 5 years

Furniture and fixture 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 3 years
Ownership interests in land 20 years

and building
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
buildings

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

3.

B R BUER |

MR - BERRE @

Bt ERFEY  MREERTET A
REREMRIT  EAGEFESHNT
BRARAREEARR -

ME BEERBRBEROERHIENS
RRBBEEREENTEELLEN S
RAIBERAR - HEXREDE W
FER&REEENERREIREEMRE
RERZEENREENEZRET X

R £ b BB T P AR

EAKERMEHGREER (BREEEL
R BFEY)ERMAK - BRERNE
RERFZBHERAFELY REEL
WREFHD 2 HEBERD R - f§HEBN
REERISEAt ER - ARIIAEEHER
HELTHWRENEEMBARRARZEINS
(EREEE] EREELIEHEBEEE
THEREETRO RS EEEZ
BRI S ECH - RIBEMESBERYE
Was R -

BEE

PRBAZETLEE
HHABABAERAEAEH 2 BT E
ER AR R T 8 R AE ) 2R E A
B - AEERACEAFHIEREE
B 1 B DA B AR R L A M8 R 4F R
ReGHACAFHRBETATRE
HEMK R EAETEBNY B
RAREAENE -

—Z =44 Sprocomm Inteligence Limited 139



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
internally-generated intangible asset is reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately. Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Development costs and patents are internally generated.
Capitalised development cost represents the cost in
relation to the self-developed feature for loT products. All
of the Group’s computer software were acquired from third
parties. Such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the following periods:

Computer software 10 years
Patents 10 years
Development costs 3 years

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash as defined
above.

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less any identified
impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #t2 —F - =F+ - H=+—HIFZ

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ERETHE®@®
(Continued)
Inventories FE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using weighted
average method. Net realisable value of inventories
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value, except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets. The
Group’s financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments, the effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding ECL,
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount
of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other
hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any
loss allowance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method
(Continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently
at amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included
in the “other gains and income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9 (including trade and bills receivables, pledged bank
deposits, restricted deposits, other receivables, amounts
due from shareholders and bank balances and cash).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instruments.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and bills
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience and forward looking information including
both current and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9 for trade and bills receivables.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to RMB5 millions ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

M

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Company considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

1 44 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #l 2 — & — =F+ - H=4—HIFFZF

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFBERm
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) £WMI A @)
Financial assets (Continued) TRIEE (§)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) BRFEFGAEZNLHEE (&)
()  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) () EERREZEEME)

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in s EBALEXRENBERIEAD
the operating results of the debtor; or BER %

e an actual or expected significant adverse change e BHEMKAEEGENKNE
in the regulatory, economic, or technological THHEBAEE QBN
environment of the debtor that results in a MIRBNERXTBHROEKRDT
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet FEE -
its debt obligations.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the BE XAt REEBRWNES

credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased TEETARBERBHAEGEREER

significantly since initial recognition if the debt Bk AIEBTEMNEERBR A

instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the b6 T TR DA SR AR BRI 00 o 18 BB A

reporting date. A financial instrument is determined THER BEBEIEEERAEFGERE

to have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument ERB - HDSRIEEFSRELNRA

has a low risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong B i) RAREHBANABEEE D

capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations BITEAOBR S REE A Rii) &K

in the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic OB REBAMR RN T E AR

and business conditions in the longer term may, but T—TFHRERABRTHENE 2

will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower NERETWNREH B2RMEEBT

to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations. The ERIBATEMNRERI AL

Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit INERIEERE AR - B RIEBINEBRT

risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of HEBEEANBIRAIES] R A

‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definition TEERAERMEEAAREEE

or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an [B b o IEF 8% F 5P BARR R

internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that BEBATAaMeRE-

the counterparty has a strong financial position and

there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of ZIK% ErHERAUREEERR

the criteria used to identify whether there has been a & FEE IS E’JT? ORI

significant increase in credit risk and revises them as HERIRELEE - EMERE A

appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of ZAERE %’JE(‘rAIE@ﬁE AIHETEE B [E

identifying significant increase in credit risk before the PR EE 0 -

amount becomes past due.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

e information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
and bills receivables, when the amounts are over 24
months past due, whichever occur sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a
function of the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this
is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at
the reporting date.

For the financial assets, the expected credit loss is
estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(vi) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)
Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and bills
payables, accruals and other payables, borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generation units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (Continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as immediately in profit or
loss as income.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation, amortisation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The estimated useful
lives reflect the Company’s directors’ estimate of the periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets, based
on various factors. The estimation of useful lives impacts
the level of annual depreciation or amortisation expenses
recorded.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with
finite useful life

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets with finite useful life may not be
recoverable, the asset may be considered impaired, and
an impairment loss may be recognised in profit or loss.
These assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When a decline
of the assets’ recoverable amounts below the carrying
amounts has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value less costs
of disposal because quoted market prices for the Group’s
assets are not readily available. In determining value in use,
expected future cash flows to be generated by the asset,
or cash generating unit, are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to level
of sales volume and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining the
estimated amounts that are reasonable and supports for
calculate of the recoverable amounts, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of sales volume and amount of operating costs.
As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of right-of-
use assets, property, plant and equipment, and intangible
assets were RMB8,166,000, RMB95,899,000 and
RMB6,162,000 (2022: RMB5,649,000, RMB103,614,000
and RMB7,659,000) respectively.
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EETFREERS EEELENEHE
KRB RERBEEEEMWITENR
B MEBRFTEHHESENKERES
AR S SEIELERHE - NEEFE A
FMEREEHRETAEAMI2ERE
THAEATREEE  BEERAER
EREBENBEUREEEE REERAN
CEMNBANGET RZE_=F+=
A=+—H FRAEEE V¥ HWEK
BERERVEENRAES I AARKE
8,166,000 7T * A 95,899,000 7T & A
R#6,162,0007T (ZEZ—_5F: ARK
5,649,000 * AR¥ 103,614,000 7T & A
R #7,659,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #l 2 — & — =F+ - H=4—HIFFZF

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and bills receivables

The impairment for trade and bills receivables is based
on assumptions about ECL. The Group used judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the number of days
that trade and bills receivables are outstanding as well
as the Group’s historical experience and forward-looking
information at the end of the reporting period. Changes in
these assumptions and estimates could materially affect the
result of the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional impairment charge to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying values of trade and
bills receivables is approximately RMB806,448,000 (31
December 2022: approximately RMB 191,704,000) net of
allowance for doubtful debt of approximately RMB5,865,000
(31 December 2022: RMB2,505,000).

Allowances recognised in respect of
inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving items identified that are no longer
suitable for sale or use. The Group makes allowance for
inventories based on the assessment of the net realisable
value. The management estimates the net realisable value
for inventories based on subsequent usage and sales,
ageing analysis and current market conditions. As at 31
December 2023, the carrying amounts of inventories were
approximately RMB377,630,000 (2022: RMB187,428,000)
and no impairment loss has been recognised for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

5. REVENUE 5. W=

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes. The Group’s revenue for the year is
recognised on a point in time basis.

An analysis of revenue from contracts with customers
disaggregated by major product types is as follows:

WHER - REFBETHEERES
2 (RINBITE REERATRE) -
AEEFRAZBERNRE —FHEHEE
FERR ©

BEFEZERBASINEFGORED
o

B

2023 2022

—E-= —EFE-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREEF T
Mobile phones F ik 2,137,747 1,029,754
PCBAs ENR S BE k40 5 55,588 28,758
loT related products VB 4948 B EE 483,801 296,514
Others EHAh 145,785 95,351
2,822,921 1,450,377

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations

The sales contracts are with an original expected duration
of less than one year. Accordingly, the Group has elected
the practical expedient and has not disclosed the amount
of transaction price for the performance obligation that is
unsatisfied as of the end of respective reporting period.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information is reported on a regular basis to the executive
directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision
makers, for their review of the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. The
Group is principally engaged in designing, manufacturing
and sales of mobile phones and PCBA and loT related
products. Information reported to the chief operating
decision makers, for the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment, focuses on the operating
results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s resources
are integrated and no discrete operating segment financial
information is available. Accordingly, no operating segment
information is presented.

TETHR FNENEENRZER

HERWNRBHMR AR —F - Hitt
AKEZERETERNOBEEN TN B E
BREEHREPRHRERNBEHRED
RHEREE -

2EEHR

ARAMTES (AT EELREE) B
THESZ2®RER  RIANKE AR H
EUFERARIEER - AEEER
MERA REREETH - HIRIER
RAERYBBEBER RMETBEEE
REEZBARBERDERRATEZ
EREINAEERBLEXE AR
AEEBzBEREHERS UBBFI 2K
EORMBER - FHit - YERZHNEE
DEBE KL o

—Z =44 Sprocomm Inteligence Limited 155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. D EBER @
Geographical information i i & R
The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC (the REBEMLELEEENPE (KREEXEBH
place of domicile of the Group’s operation). e ) LT o
Information about the Group’s revenue from external EEFPMNEZINASEIINTEF K=
customers presented based on the location of customers is BERT
as follows.

Revenue from external customers

HEBEF W
2023 2022
—E=-= —T—Z
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
India HE 863,557 757,814
The PRC + 1,742,400 509,101
People’s Republic of Bangladesh & M1Hz A R 1 74,572 95,368
Algeria Fr] R N2 A1) 5B 10,568 27,917
Republic of Korea RNERE - 26,802
United States of America EFERAE R - 20,377
Islamic Republic of Pakistan B2 ELET 1A G Hr g5 4L 0 131,798 -
Other regions E i@ 26 12,998
2,822,921 1,450,377
The Group’s non-current assets, excluding deferred REBRIERDEE (TREELEHIEE
tax assets, amounted to RMB110,077,000 (2022: E) A AR®E110,077,000T (ZE ==
RMB135,202,000), and are all located in the PRC. F: AR¥135,202,0007T) © & 2BAL A

E e
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total

6.

2 EER @
FETEEFF2ER

BRI AREAWE10%IA L2 R

revenue of the Group are as follows: =1 N
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Customer A ZPA N/ATE R 302,167
Customer B ZFB 469,412 N/A 33 A
Customer C ZFC 503,107 N/AT i@ B
Customer D EFD 570,521 N/AA~ 3 A3
The customer did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the * RIE - =F T - —_FRPIEELAEE
Group in 2023 or 2022. WUTEE10% A E o
OTHER GAINS AND INCOME 7. Hiplam R A
2023 2022
—E-= —ET-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF R AREF T
Bank interest income IRITF B YA 11,503 12,227
Exchange gain, net b 5 s F 58 - 15,892
Reversal of impairment loss on EHERE ZEWRER
trade and bills receivables JEUR ZE IR (B R R
recognised - 76
Government subsidies (Note) BT L (Y 5E) 15,589 16,234
Amortisation of government grant B /i 48 Bh# 88 (47352 27)
(Note 27) 11,063 6,488
Sundry income MIEWA 625 1,253
38,780 52,170

Note: The government subsidies represent the one-off government grants

that were received from local government authorities of which the

entitlements were unconditional and were not capital in nature and
therefore immediately recognised as other income.

BTEE < BURT 4 B 48 2k B % 183 75 BT B /) — IR 1 IR
e  ARBE ARG ERIFELME

B Ut BN TSR A EL AU A ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERX
2023 2022
—E-=F —=E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARMBF T
Interest on: THRBEZHE
Lease liabilities HEBE 720 914
Discounted bills BIRER 15,186 10,574
Borrowings EEN 19,910 6,773
35,816 18,261
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. MEBMAX
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREET T
Current tax — Hong Kong profit  BHi#i1E - F B R E
tax
— Provision for the year —F N 1,360 416
— Over-provision in respect of —BEFERERE
prior years (48) -
Current tax — PRC Enterprise BB IE - B EFREH
Income Tax
— Provision for the year —F N 1,312 4,300
— Under-provision in respect of - BEFEEEBETR
prior years 6,129 172
Current tax — United States BB - XEEFRBH
enterprise income tax
— Provision for the year —F R - 749
8,753 5,637
Deferred tax (Note 28): JEAET (Fff £ 28)
— Charge/(credit) to current year ~ —RAAREEHR, (GTA) 178 2,173)
Income tax expense PSR 32 8,931 3,464

1 58 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
l%/j—\:'

B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #t2 —F - =F+ - H=+—HIFZ

9. FIBHiMAX W@

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

U)

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British
Virgin Islands and Cayman Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in these jurisdictions.

The statutory tax rate of subsidiaries in Hong Kong is
16.5%. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of
Hong Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits
of a qualifying group entity are taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million are taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rate regime are to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries established in
the PRC is 25%.

Two of the Group’s subsidiaries, Shenzhen
Sprocomm Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Sprocomm”) and Shanghai Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Sprocomm”), are recognised as High and New-
technology Enterprise, and have been granted tax
concessions by the local tax bureau. These two
subsidiaries are entitled to PRC EIT at concessionary
rate of 15% from 2023 to 2025 and 2021 to 2023
respectively. These entities also enjoyed additional
100% (2022: 75%) tax deduction based on the eligible
research and development expenses.

The Group is subject to taxation in India, calculated
based on the rates applicable in the relevant jurisdiction
on the estimated assessable profits in India. The
applicable tax rate is 30%. No provision for overseas
profits tax in respect of India taxation has been made,
as the Group did not have any assessable profits
subject to such overseas profits tax for both years.

The Group is subjected to United States Federal
Income taxes. The United States enterprise income tax
rate has been provided at the applicable rate of 21%
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 21%).

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

— = —

—=

REXRBREAEENIRASEHSHA
KBO > REBEBEZFTRERE
& SRR FTSH o

BEEMB AR ZEATEHREE16.5% °
BAEE B FI1S B0 R AR & F 15 B &
HE - AEKEEE R E 2,000,000
78 T0 0% M 3R 8.25% MY B R AR
i #8 3B 2,000,000 78 JT &9 5% F 8 3%
16.5% B B EE B o T 5 & W AR
FIEHHEHEESNEEEEN
P4 B 157 16.5% MY — TR SRR ©

REFBEEEMERE((REMRE
BED) REXMBTOEB MGG
REBEKRINHERRNRER
25% °

AEEMEKHBARFINKERE
BHEERAR (TRINKE]) X8
AEBEMEARAR ([ LERE]D
ERERARMBMEE  WEHTS
BHERETHEERE ZMHEMNB
NAPRNR —_E-_=FFE-F_F
FR-IBZ—FETE_-FHE
NEBEMRRISBHUPEDCEMRS
- ZEERBTERGERMERE
MEB100% (ZE = —4F : 75%) i
AR o

AEBEBWINERIE  ZERK
Th L BN 691 51 FE SR B 0k 1 12 R 48
el rEBEMERAZHETE -
BMAMERE30% AR ANERRH
FRWEABNBINFER 2R
FERBLREF - M B ENE R B ME
HEINFIS BB -

REBMERNERNGEBHIAESH - 8B
FE-E-_=F+-R=+—HItE
E EECEMEHRHEERER
MEA%REEB (2 =__F:
21%) °
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o.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FIEHMAX @
2023 2022
—EC-=F g
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Profit before tax B 352 AT A 39,947 9,825
Tax at PRC statutory tax rate R BDEER R 25% T EH W
of 25% 1A 9,987 2,456
Tax effect of expenses not TAMBRI G2
deductible for tax purpose 1,934 1,333
Tax effect of non-taxable income  FEFR iUk 25 B TR 75 2 & (5,172) 1,216)
Utilisation of tax losses not A AR MR IEEE
recognised (54) (46)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERBIIABENBRE 2
recognised 16,403 19,057
Additional deduction arising from it 8 5 X & 4 B FB YN
research and development
expenses (20,861) (16,379)
Effect of different tax rates of 75" Lt B A R A S R BT B
subsidiaries operating in other NEINTRAREZE
jurisdictions (795) (647)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETIR 6,081 172
Withholding tax on undistributed ~ — & FF B K /&8 A &) K 2 Ik
earnings of a PRC subsidiary BRI ®TENE (B 728)
(Note 28) 1,007 (1,090)
Tax effect of tax exemption/ FRISHE R Eﬁi HE %, R
deduction from tax authority s 2 (Ka290v)
(Note 9 (iv)) 401 (176)
Income tax expense for the year ~ F R TSI FH X 8,931 3,464

Details of deferred tax are set out in Note 28.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FREF
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
5 AR®T T ARMBF T

Profit for the year has been Lk (FFA) THISIE

arrived at after charging/ fRES

(crediting):
Directors’ emoluments E==1 11 2,448 2,294
Salaries, allowances and other  Fr ~ 2R R EAb1EF|

benefits (excluding directors’ (TBEESHE)

emoluments) 128,121 121,406
Contributions to retirement RIREFET B

benefits scheme (excluding (TEREEHHS)

directors’ emoluments) 14,400 17,843
Total staff costs BT RAERE 144,969 141,543
Auditors’ remuneration % B4 AT 5 T 1,193 816
Amortisation of intangible assets £ 2 & 7= # 17 2,382 2,307
Amount of inventories recognised B R AR NEE

as an expense iy} 2,523,333 1,246,747
Depreciation of property, plant 1% - BE L REFE

and equipment 15 14,221 24,612
Depreciation of right-of-use TRAEEENE

assets 16 18,325 10,194
Provision/(reversal) of impairment 5L & 5 & I 708 K fE IR

loss recognised in respect of EIEmRRRERIE

trade and bills receivables Bt (BmE) 19 3,360 (76)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE &K

plant and equipment <51 15 509 2,135
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary H&—EMBRRZ

BB 419 -

Loss on early termination of REEIEHEEEE

leases - 3
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10. FREF (&)

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

U

This includes costs of materials used of approximately
RMB2,431,011,000 (2022: RMB1,180,023,000), sub-
contracting fees of approximately RMB Nil (2022:
RMB2,964,000), labour costs of approximately
RMB36,298,000 (2022: RMB22,844,000) and utilities
expenses of approximately RMB56,024,000 (2022:
RMB40,916,000).

Research and development expenses recognised
in consolidated profit or loss includes staff
cost of approximately RMB63,520,000 (2022:
RMB71,858,000), cost of material used of approximately
RMB33,262,000 (2022: RMB19,899,000), technology
development fees of approximately RMB19,249,000
(2002: RMB18,064,000) and depreciation of
approximately RMB3,915,000 (2022: 4,276,000).
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HbaBEMAMBRANARE
2,431,011,000c (ZZE = Z4F :+ A
R #1,180,023,0007T) * o B & A
PARBZT(ZZEZ_F: AR
2,964,0007T) * B ITRRAK AR
36,298,000 L (T - —F : AR¥E
22,844,00070) M AR EERITHOA
R 56,024,000 (ZE = =F : A
R # 40,916,000 7T) °

MERTNEEEZER B8
BT KA#H ARG3,520,0007T
(ZE2==—4F: AR¥71,858,000
L) T BAMEK AN AR
33,262,000 (ZE = —4F : AR
19,899,000 T) * T HEBEHAR
#19,249000 L (ZE - —F : AR
#18,064,0007T) RITEH AR
3,915,000 (T - —F: AR
4,276,0007C) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 1. EE5M &

Details of directors’ emoluments are as follows: BEEMEFBUOT

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement

and other benefits
Fees benefits scheme Total
e
BER RIER
b2k Hit @ F BN st

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTRT AR®TR

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE T =4

+=-A=+—H

HFE
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Li Chengjun (Chief FEELEE (KRF

Executive of the Company) THRBE) - 552 27 579

Mr. Xiong Bin REM ST - 465 18 483
Mr. Wen Chuanchuan BN E - 464 11 475
Mr. Guo Qinglin SPEME & - 467 12 479

Independent non-executive BUHHTEE

Directors
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit BEEANEE 108 - - 108
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen =K R & 108 - - 108
Mr. Hung Wai Man HEEREE 108 - - 108
Ms. Tseng Chin | R 108 - - 108

432 1,948 68 2,448
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) M. EEME @
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances  to retirement
and other benefits
Fees benefits scheme Total
e
AR R RRIEF]
e H 13 A STEIft R Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARETT ARBTR
Year ended 31 December 2022 HZE_-T - —
+=ZA=+—~H
HFE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Li Chengjun (Chief FEELEE (KRF
Executive of the Company) THBE) - 552 28 580
Mr. Xiong Bin REM ST - 420 18 438
Mr. Wen Chuanchuan BN E - 420 12 432
Mr. Guo Qinglin SEME A - 420 12 432
Independent non-executive BUHHTEE
Directors
Mr. Wong Kwan Kit BEENEE 103 - - 103
Mr. Lu Brian Yong Chen =KL & 103 - - 103
Mr. Hung Wai Man HAEREE 103 - - 103
Ms. Tseng Chin | e 103 - - 103
412 1,812 70 2,294

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

The amounts disclosed above represent remuneration
paid or payable to the directors of the Company (including
emoluments for services as employee/director of the group
entities prior to becoming the directors of the Company) by
entities comprising the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

11.

12.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

None of the chief executive nor any of the directors of the
Company waived or agreed to waive any emoluments paid
by the Group for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022. No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors of the Company as an incentive payment for
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during both years.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2022: one) was the director (including chief
executive) of the Company, whose emoluments are set out
in Note 11 above. The emolument of the remaining four
(2022: four) highest paid individuals were as follows:

M1.EEME @
HE-_ZT-_=-F#k=-_ZTZ=-_=F+=A
T+ —HALEFE BMEXARAEEZITH
AERTMESTRESRENELAEH
AT BRI B o R AR R A S R A )
RARMEMNESEINMESEAMALRSE
E R B S e R EE -

12. EEM <
AEBASRERFALTF  —H(ZF
ToF R BARAIEE (BEEXE
THAB)  EBE M XK1 - £;
THUEH(ZZE-_—F :NRA)EoH AT
ML T -

2023 2022
—ECZ=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARET T

Salaries, allowances and other o EMREMET
benefits 1,800 1,744

Contributions to retirement benefits iE 7K@ 1) 5t 24 3%

scheme 546 472
2,346 2,216

Their emoluments were within the following band:

HENHEN T TIIRE

2023 2022
—E-=F —_EFq_-—
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A8 AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 7T 4 4

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five
highest paid individuals of the Group including the directors
of the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

BHE-_FT-_-Fk=-_ZT=-_=_F+=A
—+t—BLEFE FAEERERLEE
ARAZEEHFALT(BERARAIES)
ST S 1E AR S| I A S A R & B
KB EN S E A BB AE(E -
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13. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share during the
years is based on the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue.

13.

14.

[ g=)
BE_T_=—K-_FT-_—_F+-H
ST HALEFE - BEXN Tk E
AEREMRE  BRSHRLETEEZ
AEREMBE -

BRER

RBEFE SRERRNZHENE
RERRAGEE ABEHFREETER
RIET YA E -

2023 2022
—E-= ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREET T
Earnings for the purpose of basic 5 & & % Z A 2 {5 A /9
earnings per share profit for the PIN/NEIE RSN
year attributable to owners of the &1 & 3% Fl
Company 32,369 6,506
Number of Number of
share share
igvil 4= ek 4=
’000 000
F AR T AR
Weighted average number of AESREAAEFFEAKN
ordinary shares for the purpose of & 3@ A% Nk 7 15 1
basic earnings per share 1,000,000 1,000,000
Diluted earnings per share for both years were the same SECCERZFE-_FHMERCH
s s = 3 =3
as the basic earnings per share as there was no potential TEBE - WMEFENSREETRT
HERBRERREF] -

ordinary shares in issue for both 2023 and 2022.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. )% - BMERRE

Ownership

Furniture interests in

Leasehold Plant and and Motor Office land and
improvement machinery fixture vehicles  equipment building Total

Rith

iES BRR REFH

£ HEREE  EEKE RE HORE  FARER it
RMBOOD  RWBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RWBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOD
ARRTR  ARBTL  ARETT  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARETT  ARETR

Cost A
At T January 2022 R-B--%-F-8 30,043 92,085 3938 1534 10442 64,840 205,082
Addtions B 3892 2072 49 216 1,366 - 849
Disposal HE - (3,939 (148) - (1.427) - (5,508)
Written off i (6,548) - - - - - (6.548)
At 31 December2022  R-EF-CF

t-R=1-A 29,587 91,124 3839 1,750 10,381 64,840 201,521
Additions FE - 5376 165 404 1,070 - 7015
Disposal tE - (3,268) (1,162) (541) (798) - (5,769)
At31 December2023  W=B==f

tzA=+-H 29,587 93232 2,842 1613 10,653 64,840 202,767
Accumulated ZitHE

depreciation

At1 January 2022 R-E-—E-A-8 22,165 38769 3407 909 6,838 11,128 83216
Charge for the year ERFH 11,309 8240 238 260 1485 3080 24612
Disposal HE - (1,980) (129) - (1,270) - (3373
Written off i (6,548) - - - - - (6.548)
At31December 2022 WZF==F

t-RA=1-A 26,926 45,029 352 1,169 7,053 14,208 97,007
Charge for the year ERFH 1,483 8,296 43 264 1,055 3,080 14,001
Disposal e - (3,004) (1,104 (514) (638) - (5,260)
At31 December2023 ~ W=-B==f

+-A=1-H 28,409 50,321 2,461 919 7470 17,288 106,868
Carrying values BREE

At31December2023  W-E=zf
tZA=1-A 1,178 42911 381 694 3,183 47,552 95,899

A 31December2022  RZEIZE
t-A=t-H 2,661 46,09 317 581 3328 50,632 103,614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i

BB ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16.

(Continued)

Ownership interests in land and building relate to properties
situated in the PRC with remaining lease term of 41.
These properties with carrying value of approximately
RMB47,552,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB50,632,000), have been pledged to the bank to secure
the Group’s mortgage loan.

15. % - BMEKRE @

FEMERY T NIETFNEAEER
MHTHEPREMTF -ZEVER-Z
T+ - A=+—HBHRNEEEAAR
W47 552,000 (ZE - —F : AR
50,632,0007T) ' WE AL BEIZIBER
KR FER1T ©

three years) with fixed lease payments and no renewal/
termination option.

During the year, additions to right-of use assets
were RMB20,740,000 (2022: RMB304,000). This
amount primarily related to the capitalised lease
payments payable under new tenancy agreements.
In 2022, the Group terminated a contract, resulting in
derecognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of approximately RMB5,593,000 and RMB5,590,000
respectively.

In respect of lease arrangements for machines
which are under hire purchase, the ownership of the
machines will be transferred to the Group by the end of
the lease terms. The Group’s obligations are secured
by the lessors’ title to the leased assets for such
leases.
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 16. EFAREEREEAR
LIABILITIES
Right-of-use assets () ERAEEE
2023 2022
—Z=-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTTT
Leasehold properties HEEF 8,166 5,649
The Group has lease arrangements for buildings, AEBREFICHELH T2
mainly for use as factories for production purpose. The REEERE -HENT—ZE21F (=
lease terms range from one to five years (2022: one to TooF:—E=F) BEEHEEN

K BWEEE AR

KEE - FRHEEEEMARE
20,740,000 (Z T = —F : AR¥E
304,0007T) - Z e E ZEHIBIEH
HEMREZNHNERNMEBEMNK
FH - AEBNR-_ZT-__FKIA
2 BEKRIEERERAEEELE
EBES R ARYS5,5093,0007T &
AR ¥ 5,590,000 JT °

HRHEBEENHEERE BN
FERKREABRERREBELRS
B AEERZFHENTEETHY
HANHEEEERBER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 16. FTRAEEEREESE @
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(i) Lease liabilities (i) HEAE
2023 2022
—EC-= —ZET-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBTTT
Non-current portion ERENE D 2,425 -
Current portion mENE o 5,890 5,855
8,315 5,855
Amounts payable under lease HEBETH
liabilities: JE R
Within one year —F R 5,890 5,855
After one year but within two years — & M4 802 -
More than 2 years e 1,623 -
8,315 5,855

Less: Amount due for settlement & : 12 & A A EIHI4&EE

within 12 months (shown FIE (R E
under current liabilities) BEYIR) (5,890) (5,855)

Amount due for settlement after 1218 B2 B BRI E 708
12 months 2,425 -

HAREEAENINEFEIIES(E
FRENF50% 29.0% (ZT ==
F:NF42%F9.0%) °

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities range from 5.0% to 9.0%
(2022: from 4.2% to 9.0%).

—Z =44 Sprocomm Inteligence Limited 169



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (Continued)

(i

(iv)

16. FAEEEREEERE @

Amounts recognised in profit or loss (i) REEEEANEHE
2023 2022
—E-= —EFE-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Depreciation expenses on right-of- {FHEEEMNITER X
use assets
— Leasehold properties —HEREF 18,325 9,606
- Machines — Mg - 588
Interest expenses on lease liabilites € & & F 8 5% 886 914
Expenses relating to short-term RERERRERA X
leases 205 -
Others (iv) HEfb

During the year ended 31 December 2023, total
cash outflow for leases amount to approximately
RMB27,471,000 (2022: RMB10,061,000).

Restrictions or covenants on leases

As at 31 December 2023, lease liabilities of
RMB8,315,000 are recognised with related right-of-
use assets of RMB8,166,000 (2022: lease liabilities of
RMB5,855,000 are recognised with related right-of-
use assets of RMB5,649,000). The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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REBE-_ZTZ-_=F+-_A=+—H
HFEE BEZRSRALRENA
ABRMED27 471,000 (Z 2 ==
AR #10,061,0007T) °

T E HIPR Hl k24

RZE-_=F+=-—A=+—H8B" B
WRMNEEAE AR ARYS,315,000
ToMEBEERAEEEARARE
8,166,000 L (ZE - —F : B R
MHEE & EARARYS58550007T
B AEEE R ARTES5,649,000
L) cBRHEBEARBENHEEEENE
RiEz N - THE 15 B HE N AE A
24y FHEBETAEABIRAER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Computer Development
software Patents costs Total
EREM =7 RN Foh)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTL ARET T ARETT ARET T
Cost B
At 1 January 2022 R-Z-—%—F—H 8,913 632 4,006 13,551
Additions B 783 - - 783
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF
+-A=1+—H 9,696 632 4,006 14,334
Additions NE 885 - - 885
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=&
+=A=+-AH 10,581 632 4,006 15,219
Amortisation B
At 1 January 2022 RZE-—F—f—H 4,004 364 - 4,368
Charge for the year FRYH 909 63 1,335 2,307
At 31 December 2022 R-B--f
+=ZA=+-H 4913 427 1,335 6,675
Charge for the year FRYH 984 63 1,335 2,382
At 31 December 2023 R-E-=F
+-A=1+—8H 5,897 490 2,670 9,057
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=&
+=A=+-H 4,684 142 1,336 6,162
At 31 December 2022 i ——-s
+-A=+—-A 4,783 205 2,671 7,659
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

18.

19.

INVENTORIES 18. &
2023 2022
—E-=F —_E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
Materials and components MR Z S 226,284 78,693
Work in progress TR m 28,223 59,657
Finished goods LUK oh 123,123 49,078
377,630 187,428
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 10. E5RINRERERERE
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETF T
Trade receivables B 5 rWEIE 750,907 190,849
Less: Loss allowance B B iR (5,865) (2,505)
745,042 188,344
Bills receivables U EE 63,788 3,360
Trade and bills receivables B 5 rWGIE R EWEE 808,830 191,704

The gross amount of trade and bills receivables arising
from contracts with customers amounted to approximately
RMB814,695,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:

RMB194,209,000).

An aging analysis of trade and bills receivables (after loss

allowance) based on invoice date is as follow:

RZEZ=F+ZRA=+—H BEPF
BHEENBEIRUREBREKEEE

4 A AR 814,695,000 (=

= — —

£ AR#194,209,0007T) °

B 5 REURIA & FE W R i (S0 RR B 18 1
BR)mEZAHNKRESITAOT

2023 2022

—E-=F —_EFq_-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBFT
Within 30 days 30 KA 404,421 128,352
31-60 days 31E60X 267,787 23,240
61-90 days 61 290K 118,702 31,722
over 90 days 90K LAk 17,920 8,390
Total st 808,830 191,704

1 72 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited

Annual Report 2023

=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. EZEWNFREREVRERE @

(Continued)

No interest is charged on the trade and bills receivables. Rt E 2 R IE R R W R R RIS, -
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the ERAREEERREEN—FH &K
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers. The SEHEFPETASBEETR - RMEZ
debtors are grouped under a provision matrix into three HEEFERREH2EEBKARTEH
internal credit rating buckets based on shared credit risk BE-REBEEBEHEREEEBAD BR=1E
characteristic by reference to past due exposure of the NEERERAR - FatdianT -

debtor, and the ratings are outlined as follows:

— Low risk Customers with good credit standing —EEE BREAIFIHHEPR
—Medium risk  Customers with normal credit standing —HEk BEREAFEANERP
— High risk Credit-impaired customers —-=EE FERAXENERP
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or BET RN AN FEIEL A E KRB E
significant assumptions made during the current year. The PE -AEEHRBHERFBRERE
Group recognised lifetime ECL for trade and bills receivables BERKE SKEARBEIANEZHEHREE
individually and/or collectively as follows: EEMT
Weighted
average
expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
InEFHIE HWEEE BIERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000

% ARETT ARETT

As at 31 December 2023 R_T =4

+-—A=+—H
Low risk K E B 0.72% 814,695 5,865
As at 31 December 2022 RZT -4

+=—A=+—H
Low risk KA 1.29% 194,209 2,505
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 10. E5 RN EREREE &

(Continued)

The estimated loss rate are estimated based on historical
default rates and adjusted for forward-looking information
(for example, the current and forecasted economic growth
rates in PRC, India and other countries, which reflect the
general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate) that is available without undue cost or
effort. Such forward-looking information is used by the
management of the Group to assess both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date. The grouping is regularly reviewed by the management
of the Group to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

Movements of impairment loss allowances of trade and bills
receivables are as follows:

EEEEXDREBEEBOXRMGE X
MEFREBSRAKBENESHATRE
HERETHE (Pl RIREBALE
FIERITREEBREERANTE - EF
BRERRBEMEEERER) - REBH
AEEEEEERZSRNEEEN DN
ERINAKENBE AKEEEES
ERESARMARN  BREETEH AN
HEAE R R -

B 5 g 0B U 4 0 L 1R
EEBIT

RMB’000

ARBETF T

As at 1 January 2022 N_EBE-_—_F—F—H 2,581
Reversal of credit loss for trade

and bills receivables BRI FEREYEREESERKD (76)

As at 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+=-_A=+—H 2,505
Provision for credit loss for trade

and bills receivables BEZRUFEREVEREZEBERE 3,360

As at 31 December 2023 R-ZEBE-_=F+=-A=+—H 5,865

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group discounted and
factored trade and bills receivables in aggregate amounts of
approximately RMB73,672,000 (2022: RMB24,006,000) to
banks and factoring company for short term financing.
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RARE R - AR EEA B
RUME LSS -
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Transfers of financial assets

The following were the Group’s trade and bills receivables
as at 31 December 2022 and 2023 that were transferred
to banks on a full recourse basis. As the Group has not
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to these
trade and bills receivables, it continues to recognise the full
carrying amount of the trade and bills receivables and has
recognised the cash received on the transfer as secured
borrowings (see Note 26). These trade and bills receivables
are carried at amortised cost in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The trade and bills receivables factored to banks with full
recourse as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

10. ES EWFRE R ERERE @)

TXHINAEBR_ZEZZ_FR=F
TEFE+ A=+ —HOREAEERE
EREERTIRITHNE S EUGE K EK
ZE -ARAEETHEEEZSEEHE
WHErEREZRABENERNRR X
Olsf HEEERZEZEZFIERFEK
EWEENERAE YCHREEM
WEIMHReERAERREER (AH =
26) ° ZEE PR HIA K EIRZENER
B AR R IR SR AR BR o

RZE_=Z=FR_F__F+=A
=—+—H EMETREEAZ2AEER
ENESEWFBEREREENT

2023 2022
—E-= —F=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Carrying amount of transferred DEEEEMREE
assets 73,672 24,006
Carrying amount of associated HEaENREE
liabilities (73,672) (24,0006)
Net position SEEET - —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

20. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20. A FIER HiEWFIE
RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
—EB-=fF —_EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R AREF T
Non-current portion Elk k=i
Prepayments for property, ME  BMEREREUR
plant and equipment and P REEEMNTE N ZIE
land use right - 18,280
Current portion REH D
Prepayment to suppliers m) £ 8 7 TR S SR 21,106 56,320
Lease deposits and other deposits THE & & & E iz 4 5,856 21,093
VAT recoverable (Note) AJ U BB ETE (i 77) 52,649 51,384
Interest receivables FEUF| B 1,432 7,865
Others Hih 1,024 2,386
82,067 139,048
Note: VAT recoverable includes the input VAT and prepaid VAT that is Hiar -nl ik B IS (E R B 5 T8 e — G N30 Ay s 1E 4
expected to be deducted within one year. B RTELIRED -
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no significant RZE-_=ZFR-_ZFT-_-_F+=AH
impairment for the prepayments and other receivables. —+—8 ENREREMERFKIEN
EEAFE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

21.

22.

23.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and non-trade in
nature. Details of the amounts due from shareholders are
set out in Note 41.

Expected credit loss risk of amounts due from shareholders
is assessed to be remote as there is no significant change in
the credit risk on the amounts due from shareholders since
initial recognition.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2023, bank deposits of approximately
RMB2,368,420,000 (2022: RMB758,989,000) were pledged
by the Group for the purpose of securing bills payables (Note
24) and none of them (2022: RMB5,394,000) were pledged
by the Group for the trade loan (Note 26).

As at 31 December 2023, approximately RMB764,383,000
of the pledged bank deposits carried fixed interest rates
which ranged from 0.35% to 2.38% (2022: 0.05% to 3.1%)
per annum.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, bank balances carry
interest at floating rates from 0.05% to 0.30% (2022: 0.05%
t0 0.35%) based on bank deposit rates.

21.

22,

23.

FE W SRR IR
RAAREEA ERFEHME-
FEN S SRR B B R B 41 o

FEU R R IEHEE BB AR KT AR
W AREERRFIAS VHnERR
SEERILESEAEEH -

2R FBITER
RZEBEZ=ZFF+A=+—0 ' K&H
D4 A R 2,368,420,000 7T (— &
— 4 AR¥758,989,0007T) #I R 1T
BT UIEEMZE (HiEe4)  BA
EEEYERLFRTER (T
AR®5,394,00070) - AEVSE S EZ (K
06) ©

R-ZZTE_=F+_A=+—H8 Oi&#F
RITE R AR ¥ 764,383,000 IR E TF
FEFRNTF0.35% E2.38% (—F - —4F:
0.05% & 31%) 5t & °

RITHBRERES
RZEZ=ZFR =T -__F+=A
=+—8 BTEKERBITERF X
BZEFIE0.05% £0.30% (Z T - —4F:
0.05% % 0.35%) 5T & °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 2. EFRNREREARE

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E- %

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARMBF T

Trade payables B 5 ENFIE 834,590 132,735
Bills payables AN 2,324,122 807,892
Trade and bills payables B 5 AR BRI 3,158,712 940,627

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables RWEAR BHENREBELREZBEH
presented based on invoice date at the end of the reporting SRR DT o
period.
2023 2022
—E-=F —_EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
Within 30 days 30 KA 438,157 68,049
31-60 days 31E 60X 299,454 49,145
61-90 days 61 290K 72,968 8,435
Over 90 days 90K Ak 24,011 7,106
Total HET 834,590 132,735
The average credit period on purchases of goods is RKEEMHFHEEHANFI0EGOKX -

AKECDHE SR EAREEBRRARR
A PN SRR R R E EHIAE LT -

ranging from 30 to 60 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
settled within the credit timeframe.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

24,

25.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of bills payables at the
end of the reporting period.

24 BESENBERENEE @
AT 5 3R 45 HR SR FE 1+ SR 98 O BRE B D AT o

2023 2022

—E-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Within 30 days 30K A 338,679 34,415
31-60 days 31 260K 466,769 30,910
61-90 days 61 290K 629,051 39,307
Over 90 days 90Kk 889,623 703,260
Total 4aET 2,324,122 807,892

All the bills payables of the Group are not yet due at the

RERESHR  AEERMERNERH

end of each reporting period. Bills payables as at 31
December 2023 were secured by pledged bank deposit
amounts of approximately RMB2,368,420,000 (2022:
RMB758,989,000) (Note 22).

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

KEBH - R T _=F+_A=+—
H BENEERERETEROARE
2,368,420,000 L (ZE=ZZF : AR¥
758,989,000 7T) fEHE 8 (FisE22) -

25 BT ERA R HMEMARIEUR
aHaE

2023 2022

—EBC-=fF g
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBFT
Salaries payable &S 58,575 54,769
Other payables M FE A R 10,377 6,612

Government subsidies in advance & Y Bz T 4 B

(Note (i) (Bt () 13,788 12,357
Other tax payables H b e~ R 1E 9,801 2,964
92,541 76,702
Contract liabilities (Note (i) AHRBE K 0) 32,472 30,251
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

25 BT ERA R HMEMSREUR
EHNEBEW@Wm

25. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Government subsidies in advance included in accruals and other
payables are mainly related to the capital expenditure incurred for
property and equipment, leasehold improvement and subsidies
for recruitment of certain number of workers for factory operation,
before fulfilling certain conditions under the terms of the government
subsidies. The government subsidies received may need to be
refunded if the subsidiary failed to fulfill the attached conditions within
the stipulated time. Upon fulfillment of those conditions, government
subsidies related to compensation of operating expenses are credited
to the profit or loss in the year the Group complied with the conditions
attached to the subsidies, whereas assets-related subsidies are
reclassified to deferred income and credited to the profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

(i) Contract liabilities as at 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
RMB32,742,000 (2022: RMB30,251,000), which represented receipts
in advance from customers.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2023 that was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year is approximately RMB30,251,000
(2022: RMB57,706,000). There was no revenue recognised
in the current year that related to performance obligations
that were satisfied in prior year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR AR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

26. BORROWINGS 26. &
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E- %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Bank borrowings: HRITIE R
Secured (Note a) BEM (Hita) 131,739 41,823
Unsecured (Note b) IR (T aEb) 22,700 10,000
154,439 51,823
Carrying amount repayable (based on scheduled repayment FEAEREE (ERER GRS EER
dates set out in the loan agreements): HES) :
2023 2022
—EBC-=fF —_EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
Within one year —FR 142,622 37,006
More than 1 year but less than —FAEEMFUAA
2 years 3,000 3,000
More than 2 years but less than MFAEERFUR
5 years 8,817 9,000
More than 5 years BiBA F - 2,817
154,439 51,823
Carrying amount repayable on MEBBEE T RMIZERK
demand or within one year EES—FAEED
shown under current liabilities BRAE 142,622 37,006
Amount shown under non-current  FERBEIBE T 5 RA £ 58
liabilities 11,817 14,817
154,439 51,823

—Z =44 Sprocomm Inteligence Limited 181



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

26. B (&

26. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(@ As at 31 December 2023, the borrowing of approximately
RMB14,817,000 (2022: RMB17,817,000) are secured by the Group’s
ownership of land and buildings and borrowing of approximately
RMB116,922,000 (2022: RMB24,006,000) are secured by the Group’s
bank deposit of approximately RMB5,450,000 (2022: RMB5,394,000)
and trade and bills receivables of approximately RMB73,672,000 (2022:
RMB24,006,000). The effective interest rates from these variable-rate
borrowings range from 3.80% to 9.60% (2022: 4.55% to 7.86%)

(b)  As at 31 December 2023, the unsecured term loan carried interest
rate at a fixed rate of 4.15% per annum and repayable within one year.

The amounts of borrowing facilities and their utilisation at

Wiz -

(@)

RZE_ZF+_A=Z+—HBH HARE
14,817,0007T (ZZF = —4 : AR 17,817,000
T M B FRARE B A B+ i RIEFEEF
M # A R % 116,922,000 T B (= F

& AR24,006,00070) Ty AR EBRITE
T ANRES,450,000 L (ZE=Z=2F: AR
5,394,000 7T) 1 & 5 fE U 5k 18 g U 3R 4K
HARMET3672000T (ZTEZZF : ARK
24,006,000 7T) {EHE IR - ZF)F B F EERH
BB FENT380%E960% (ZF=—F:
4.55%ZE7.86%) °

RZZEZ=F+-A=+—0  BERERD
BRIEEFA415%ESFE R —FAEE -

RBERR EXRESBRLDAE]

the end of the reporting period are set out as follows: HywT :
2023 2022
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBT T
Facility amount MEREE 161,512 152,188
Utilisation BABR
Secured bank borrowings B BIEITER 131,739 41,823
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27. DEFERRED INCOME

27. EFEW A

2023 2022
—E-=H —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARMBF T
At the beginning of the year REF 15,586 21,800
Received during the year FRBI - 274
15,586 22,074

Amortisation of government grant B i f B §4
(Note 7) (Btzt7) (9,818) (6,488)
Balance as at the end of year FEREEH 5,768 15,586

Analysed as: DA

Current liabilities EAR=NE 1,633 3,490
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 4,135 12,096
5,768 15,586

Note: Deferred income consists of government subsidies provided by the
relevant PRC government authorities for the purposes of financing
the purchase of plant and machinery and the expenses related to the
leasehold improvement. The amounts are recognised as income to
match with related expenses and cost incurred on systematic basis
over the useful lives of the relevant assets upon completing inspection
by the related government authorities. During the year ended 31
December 2023, government subsidies released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted
to approximately RMB11,063,000 (2022: RMB6,488,000).

Mt BERABEAEEPERFHFAREERE
LR R AEMELERERAXBENESD
TR R BT B o 2% 2R S A AR B BT 2P 52
R E R FER AR A G S RIBEEER T {E
AEANNRSEEEESENE BRI
R -REBE-_ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HULFE "
ARG ESEREME2EARERNORFHE A
#HARME11,063,000T (ZEZZF : ARK
6,488,0007T) °

—Z =44 Sprocomm Inteligence Limited 183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 28. BELEBIEEE (BE)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax asset/ NTARYBEE2RENZEEHBEEE
(iabilities), after set off certain deferred tax assets against (BB O KREERRNER Y
deferred tax liabilities of the same taxable entity, for financial BETEEHRBEENREEHRBEEE

reporting purposes:

2023 2022
—EZ=F =~
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT
Deferred tax asset R IEE B 688 248
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIE 8 & (14,102 (13,484)
(13,414) (13,236)
The followings are the major deferred tax asset/(liabilities) TXEHINNFRNERNERRELEHIEE
recognised and movements thereon during the years: E/S(ag) RE@EE
Withholding
taxon
undistributed
profit of
aPRC  Impairment Accelerated
subsidiary loss on tax
(Note () receivables depreciation Total
-
HEAR
RAMEF
BmENH W E MEHE
(Hite) HERR wE @t

RMB'0O0O ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR ARETT AREBTR

At 1 January 2022 W-E-—%#-A—H (12,865) 225 (2,769) (15,400)
Credited to profit or loss FSTAEE 1,090 23 1,080 2173
At 31 December 2022 and WZZE-—F+-A=+-HBER

1 January 2023 —T-=F—-8-H (11,775) 248 (1,709) (13,236)
Credit/(charged) to profit or loss HENACIENE ¢ (1,007) 440 389 (178)
At 31 December 2023 RZZZ=%+=-A=1+-H (12,782) 688 (1,320) (13,414)
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28. EEBEEE (BE) @

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax of 10% is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by a PRC subsidiary from 1
January 2008 onwards. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. The directors determined that the management
of the Group can control the quantum and timing of distribution of
profits of their PRC subsidiaries. Deferred tax liability is only provided
to the extent that such profits are expected to be distributed in the
foreseeable future. Deferred taxation has been provided in respect
of the temporary differences associated with the undistributed profits
earned by a PRC subsidiary, Shenzhen Sprocomm at the applicable
withholding tax rate of 5%.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately RMB300,830,000 (2022: RMB265,456,000) available
for offset against future profits. These unused tax losses mainly
arose from (i) the preferential tax treatments of the research and
development expenditure which resulted in additional tax deductions
related to qualified research and development costs of Shenzhen
Sprocomm; or (i) losses incurred by Chengdu Sprocomm, Sprocomm
Technologies Co., Ltd. (“HK Sprocomm”), Guizhou Sprocomm
Telecommunication Technology Co., Ltd. (“Guizhou Sprocomm”)
and Guizhou Mars Exploration Technology Co., Ltd (“Guizhou Mars”).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the unused
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams for these
subsidiaries. Included in unrecognised tax losses are PRC tax losses
of approximately RMB289,893,000 as at 31 December 2023 that will
expire in the next five years (2022: RMB265,456,000). The remaining
Hong Kong tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

— = —
—_=_

RBEEAERE A-TTNF-—A—Bi€
e o B PR T % ) R R 0 V) P B R RO B R A
10% TRHIB © fisf o B P 3t R AN EU 4R & & PR AE
BUERERAIARBIRY - AR EARERNRE
BNEMG - EFRA AREEEEEED
o BIF B 2 R 0 RO AR B R o (ERNE
) I TR H 1 50 7T I8 R AR SR 3 TR B 77 HE AR AT
BIREE - ELEHIACD st b BB 2 BRIIR
H AT ERECR 2 K M AR B B S 2 BIRE A TR
O K 5% fF B

RZZE-_=ZF+-_A=+—8 A£EBEATH
B R FEF A AREBEEAOA
R #300,830,000t (ZZE=ZZF : ARH
265,456,0007T) - ZE A AR EEREE
TE () EBRYIRE & B IR 3R AR S
RIEMBA A B WESR iR
B AEBEREGEB ARQAA(EBR
) EMNREBEREARAR (EMR
B REMAEFRRBHARRAA ([EMX
BELENGE - BERZEWEQRNRICHE
FIHORA AT FER - BEEE SR BB R TE S B RER
TEEHBEE - ARBREBEBERENZ
To=F+ A+ HWPERBEEIED
AR 289,803,000 (ZE =% : AR
265,456,0007T) * BREAREFERRRAFANE
BB THEAHABETER LS -
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29, A
Number of Share Equivalent
shares capital amount to
R&BEA [N ZLESHE
’000 HK$'000 RMB’000
T FHET ARBTTT
Ordinary shares of FR0.01 B TR EmA
HK$0.01 each JETE
Authorised:
At 31 December 2023 NRZTBEZ=FK
and 2022 —E-—F
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000 100,000 86,213
Issued and fully paid: BETRAE -
At 31 December 2023 RZTBEZ=FK
and 2022 —E-—F
+=-—A=+—8H 1,000,000 10,000 8,945

All new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all
respects.

30. RESERVES

0]

Statutory reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, companies
in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their
respective after-tax profits, calculated in accordance
with the relevant accounting principles and financial
regulations applicable to entities established in the
PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
relevant subsidiaries. The statutory surplus reserve can
be utilised, upon approval of the relevant authorities,
to offset accumulated losses or to increase registered
capital of these companies, provided that such fund
is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered
capital of the relevant subsidiaries. The statutory
reserve is not distributable as cash dividends and
must be made before distribution of dividend to equity
owners.
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30. RESERVES (Continued) 30. &% @)

(i) Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the difference between
the consideration and the carrying amounts of the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation.

(iii) Other reserves

The amount represents (i) the amount paid by an equity
holder in excess of registered capital of Shenzhen
Sprocomm, (ii) the deemed capital contribution
pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group in 2018;
and (iii) the difference of the consideration paid for the
acquisition of the additional equity interest in Chengdu
Sprocomm and the carrying value of the additional
equity interests of the subsidiary acquired during the
year ended 31 December 2019; and (iv) the difference
of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the
additional equity interest in Chengdu Sprocomm and
the carrying value of the additional equity interests
of the subsidiary acquired during the year ended 31
December 2021.

31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from period year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings,
net of bank balances and cash and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital and
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
of the Group periodically. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
capital injection as well as raising of additional borrowings
as additional capital or the redemption of existing debt.

iy &BHREE
B BHEE 1 R IR 1 £ 8 S 48 R T B
ARBERBENRERETEY
BEEEE

(i) EfbfzE
FEERIERBREAZNNSE
BEENRESMEAR - () BB A
E@MH T — \EHEERITHR
YESEE (i) U4 B8 AR B R 1 L 4 AR i
MERREERE-—Z—HAE+ =
A=+—BIFERBOKIERR
Hth B O BE A A 2R R (V)
FERL DR R AN BT X A R (B
HEE T -_—F+-_A=+—H
IS W H B 2 B B SN R B
AR 2 5E o

N.EXERER

AEEERE AR RRA R T
B E BN EEE  ABEBREL
5 R TERBROE B AL -
AEBNEBRERFNRETE -

AEBNERRBEREER XK
RITHEBR LIRS RARBHEE ARIEHE
= (BB KRR

ARRESTEHRFAREZENERE -
ERRERSO 8D ARABNEFEE
BEARANBZEERNERAORAR -
AEERBREARBDESTZHBRZD
BBIENBRBIMEREREINER
HEERBEFATFOEEREANRE -
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3. EXREREE @
REBUNBEEREELREREAR -
AR EL RIS aEYESA
R B ARG NEAREEEEE -
REBMMBEEREELRMAT :

31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group manages capital using the financial gearing ratio,
which is the ratio of interest-bearing liabilities of the sum of
owners’ equity and interest-bearing liabilities. The financial
gearing ratio of the Group as at the balance sheet dates
was as follows:

2023 2022

—E-=F —EF-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &+ B R 1TE & 154,439 51,823
Lease liabilities HEAR 8,315 5,855
Total interest-bearing liabilities FFEBERRE 162,754 57,678
Owner’s equity e ANER 351,214 320,709

Total equity and interest-bearing #EZ Rt E A EHAE

liabilities 513,968 378,387
Gearing ratio BERBEEE 31.7% 15.2%

32.€mT A
(@ eMIAE>HE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Financial assets SRMEE
Amortised cost (including bank B $55 AR (B IERITA #2 K
balances and cash) ) 3,259,854 1,030,407
Financial liabilities =R
Liabilities at amortised cost BHERAFTE BE 3,348,250 1,059,686
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32. €@ T A um
(b) HEEMREEEERBE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, amount due from shareholders, bank
balances and cash, trade and bills payables and other
payables and borrowings.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments included credit risk, market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

() Currency risk
The Group’s major operating subsidiaries have
foreign currency sales, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the

AEENIECRTABRESRE
WOk TE K e W R I - B Al FEUGRIR
EHEMRITER  BRBRRE
RITEHRERE  EHEMFAR
JE S SRA5 DA e Bt AN SRR B 3K

BHZEeRTANFBEREEN
ARE-EZFeRTARBNE
REFREERR THRAR(EER
g RAERER) LABESRR B
78 a0 A] B AR 7% 5 L B O BUR B N
X-EREEBEERERZFRR
VAR e By A 2t B it 48 2 R s o

M5 E K

() EEER
AEBETELEMBRARAES
SNEE SH & o 7K 5% (B T R SN ES
B o 7K 5% B3R B X 4R HMNES
HERER-AM EEEERE
EEINERR I HNE T ER
ZREPERINERR o

need arise.

As the Group had no material foreign currency HRAEBER T _=F+=
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at A=+—B8k=_Z=-_—_F+=
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, no A=+—Bi¥\mERINEFE
significant impacts on the results of the Group MEBKEENBE INEEX
would arise from the changes in foreign currency ST EEREANEBEERD
rates, accordingly sensitivity analysis in this EATE B BMEEIK
respect is not presented. RRE DT ©

— = —

=
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed rate borrowings (Note 26)
and certain pledged bank deposits (Note 22).
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to certain variable-rate pledged
bank deposits (Note 22) and bank balances (Note
23) and variable-rate bank borrowings (Note
26). The Group aims at keeping borrowings at
variable rates. The Group manages its interest
rate exposures by assessing the potential
impact arising from any interest rate movements
based on interest rate level and outlook. The
management will review the proportion of
borrowings in fixed and floating rates and ensure
they are within reasonable range.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of PBOC benchmark lending
rate arising from the Group’s variable-rate bank
borrowings which are denominated in RMB.
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32. €@ T A um
(b) BAFEE B EIE B ERBE (&)

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative financial instruments at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis
point (2022: 100 basis point) increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. If the interest
rate on variable bank borrowings had been 100
basis points (2022: 100 basis points) higher
or lower and all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 March 2023 would decrease or increase by
approximately HK$929,000 and RMB808,000
respectively (2022: post-tax loss would decrease
or increase by approximately HK$398,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

M5 R (8)

(i) 7 FE (E)

BRRE DT
THHSRRBRESITERIERS
HARIFTESMTANTIER
A%E ZOMBRERS B
HERE - AEENESRITAR
%1!@;@’:33&1;%0@;%
EIE A BAEHRE TR E R
HA100EEF (=2 ==
1001 5 F) B35 A sk sk 4 - R
REBBHNERAEAEE L
Bar - R )F BRITERD
FI =38 sk im A 100182 F (=
T F 100182 F) - A
HBsRETE KAEEH
E-_T-_—F=ZA=+—H1t
FEMBIE RS2 B sk
# 70 %)929,0008 7T I A R
808,000C (ZE = =4 : Hi &
&5 18 15 8 > 3k 18 hn 49 398,000
BIL) c TEHRAEENEH
FIRRATIE SR E T R -

=ERAR
R_FE_=F+_A=+—HB &
SERUFIARERTEEREH
ERLL R B AT B2 H e B 7% &
BORREERR REHKEUHK
ARARMLECHERCREENR
[ERER

R EERBRERK AEEE
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32. €@ I A um
(b) BAFEE B EIE B ERBE (&)

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In determining the ECL for trade and bills receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information and concluded that credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding trade and bills receivables are
insignificant.

The Group applies the simplified approach to assess
the expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss for all trade and bills receivables. The Group
determines the ECL on an individual basis and/or
collectively by using a provision matrix, estimated
based on historical credit loss experience, as well as
the general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

For other receivables, the Group has assessed whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since intital recognition. If there has been a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group will measure the loss
allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

Management considered amount due from
shareholders to be low credit risk and thus the
impairment provision recognised during the year was
limited to 12-month ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is considered minimal as
such amounts are placed with banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in China, which
accounted for 79% (2022: China 67%) of the total
trade and bill receivables respectively as at 31
December 2023.
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32. €@ T A um
(b) BAFEE B EIE B ERBE (&)

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 31%
(831 December 2022: 37%) of the total trade and
bills receivables was due from the Group’s largest
trade debtor as at 31 December 2023 and 73% (31
December 2022: 83%) of the total trade and bills
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest trade
debtors who are in telecom and technology industries
as at 31 December 2023.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. In addition, the Group
relies on borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.
The management monitors the utilisation of borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
liabilities and lease liabilities are prepared based on
the agreed repayment dates. Specifically, borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in
“Less than 1 year or on demand” band regardless of
the probability of the financial institution choosing to
exercise their rights.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end reporting period.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32. £R T A ()

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIEREBEEBERBEK @)
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) MEE SRR (@)

More than More than

Lessthan 1yearbutnot  two year but Total

fyearor  exceeding not exceeding More than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand two years five years fiveyears  cash flows Amount
SR-FY  -ENEE WENLE AERRE

REX  THERE THEILE RENML RELE REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARRTR

Asat31 December2023 ~ R-E-ZE+-A=1-H

Trade and bils payables BIAEMNZERENER 3,158,712 - - - 3158712 3158712
Accruals and other payables 3T B A R E {1 EFFUR 26,784 - - - 26,784 26,784
Lease liabities HEE[E 6,038 047 1,79 - 8,775 8,315
Borrowings &3 144,275 3,468 9,39 - 157,139 154,439
3,335,809 4415 11,186 - 331410 3,348,250
More than More than
Lessthan  1yearbutnot  two year but Total
1 year or exceeding  not exceeding Morethan  undiscounted Carmying
on demand two years five years five years cash flows Amount
PR-F%  —FHER  AENLR AERES
EEk  THERE THBRLE AENE MELEE SEE
RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMBI000
ARETT  AREfT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Asat31 December202 ~ W-ZZ=F+=f=1-H
Trade and bils payables ERENTARENSE 940,627 - - - 940,627 940,627
Accruals and other payables  EsFE ARt FUA 61,381 - - - 61,381 61,381
Lease liabilties HERR 6,046 - - - 6,046 5,855
Borrowings &3 38,600 3137 12,355 - 54,182 51823
1,046,744 3137 12,355 - 106223 1,059,686
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Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 32. €@ T A um
(b) Financial risk management objective and (b) MEEEEBZERBER @
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) /)m@ﬁ e )

Bz%?da »ﬂﬂ%?kﬁ’ﬂﬁ?ﬂﬁ)\i

is included in the “less than 1 year or on demand” LJ:J DT f DR —F R E K]
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at HESEN R _=ZF+=A
31 December 2023, the aggregate undiscounted =+—8- EZTJ'1EI RE KRB A S

principal amounts of these borrowings amounted to
RMB34,463,000 (2022: RMB37,006,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors
of the Company do not believe that it is probable that
the financial institutions will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that such borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of reporting period.

% A AR #34,463,0007C (= F
——F: AR¥37,008,0007T) ° &
%‘FNilﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁiR KAFIESR
RETHEBISTEREZHE
T»Egjiﬁﬂﬁﬂam KANBEERE
EBERBREERBEME 25
BEFBHEE -

WMEREHEHNRERARETH
CRRIES 'EIJJ:EIHHETE%@E%
BWEESTACHREAMNE -

The directors of the Company consider that the ARNREERE  REBHEKXARE
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial EUBREARZCBEERS R
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated BEZERERFEE 2 AFEES

financial statements approximate their fair value due to
their immediate or short-term maturities.

—=— =

=
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3B.BABRERS
Compensation of key management personnel FEEBAEBZHM
The remuneration of directors of the Company and other ARG EEREMEIEERABERAEAF
members of key management during the year was as EREFMnT -
follows:
2023 2022
—=E-= e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREET T
Short-term benefits REREF 2,847 2,434
Post-employment benefits BER R 68 81
2,915 2,515
The remuneration of directors of the Company and key ARBEERETETHRABNETH I B
executives is determined by the remuneration committee FHMEZEGEEEARBALTSBEE
having regard to the performance of individuals and market EE -
trends.
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34. INFORMATION ABOUT THE 4. EEAR R BRRERNER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY
2023 2022
—Eg2-= g
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET T ARETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AN ENGI oL @) 58,799 61,851
Current assets RBEE
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNMAS 663 259
663 259
Current liabilities REBaE
Accruals and other payables [E&tE A I H ith fE(~ Z0IE 1,853 1,429
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JE{TH B A T3k 18 3,105 3,061
4,958 4,490
Net current liabilities Ea &EFEE (4,295) (4,231)
Total assets less current RAEERKRBERE
liabilities 54,504 57,620
Capital and Reserves EXRHE
Share capital & s 8,945 8,945
Reserves ] (b) 45,559 48,675
Total Equity R&HEE 54,504 57,620

— = —

=
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34. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Interests in subsidiaries

4. FEAEXR QXA MBRRKNESR

(&)

(@) BB AERS

2023 2022
—ZE=-= —FE—-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Unlisted investment, at cost JELEMIRE (B A) - =
Amount due from a subsidiary JE UL B B A R FUIA
(note) (K122) 58,799 61,851
58,799 61,851

* Represent amount less than RMB1,000

Note: The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The directors of the Company do
not expect repayments from subsidiaries within next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

(b) Reserves of the Company

- EEHEER AR 1,0007T
Brat R A B SR B EER - R B RARER

BE - ARAESTHEHAMEARENHENR
BRETZEARER -

(b) &2 T

Share  Accumulated
premium loss Total
vy = Eyf #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFIT ARETF T ARETF T
At 31 December 2021 HRZ-ZE—=—
and 1 January 2022 +=—A=+—8xK
—E-_F#—AF—H 89,439 (41,877) 47,562
Profit and total F AR ) &2 E WS
comprehensive income  42%a
for the year - 1,113 1,113
At 31 December 2022 HRZ-ZT=—
and 1 January 2023 +=—A=+—8xXK
—E-_=%—H—H 89,439 (40,764) 48,675
Profit and total FRRM &R EmKE
comprehensive income 42 %A
for the year - (3,116) (3,116)
At 31 December 2023 HZ-TEZ=F+=A
=+—8 89,439 (43,880) 45,559

1 98 Sprocomm Intelligence Limited  Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A PR AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 = F = =4+ _-H =+—HIFFE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. M B ARl 2515
(a) General information of subsidiaries (@ MEBARIN—KRER
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Equity interest and
operations fully paid voting power
and date of share capital/ attributable Principal
Name of subsidiaries incorporation registered capital to the Company activity
EREL/
EEBUR ERTRAR ARREERTER
WELREH L B BE/ EHER kRER TEXH
2023 2022
ZE-=E —T--F
Directly held
EERE
Grace Kirin' BVI/Hong Kong USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
28 June 2018
B EBRABE/ B 1ET REAR
ZE-N\ERAZTNH
Indirectly held
BEEE
Sprocomm Intelligence (HK) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited? 27 August 2018
REBHERBRAR? &R 10,0007 REER
—Z-N\F
NE=—++H
Shenzhen Sprocomm?® PRC RMB55,556,000 100% 100%  Trading of feature
16 September 2009 phones and smart
phone
RYIRES HE AR 55,556,000 BEERBFER
—TENE BT
AATRE
Shanghai Sprocomm™ PRC RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Researchand
24 November 2009 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
LBRE" hE AR#2,000,0007T T E:E LR
ZEENE
+-A-t+mA
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

35. i B A B 2 715 (|)

(Continued)
(@) General information of subsidiaries (@) AR —RER @)
(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Equity interest and
operations fully paid voting power
and date of share capital/ attributable Principal
Name of subsidiaries incorporation registered capital to the Company activity
gL/
BEBUR BRTRAR FAREEREER
WEARER B AR RE/EMER RRRE TEXH
2023 2022
Bz —ZT-C
Guizhou Sprocomm*™ PRC RMBS5,000,000 100% 100%  Researchand
8 June 2016 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
LUIN:R e AR #5,000,0007 &R E LR
ZE-R~ERANA
Chengdu Sprocomm* PRC RMB15,000,000 100% 100%  Researchand
2 August 2017 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
RBRE HE AR 15,000,000 &R E RARBE R
“E-+5N\AZH
HK Sprocomm? Hong Kong USD50,000 100% 100%  Trading of features
15 January 2016 phones and smart
phone
BERE? ) 50,000% 7T EERNETFHLK
—2-R"¥-ATEHH BRFH
Sprocomm Technologies India® India INR145,647 82.03% 82.03%  Customer service and
24 August 2016 technical support
Sprocomm Technologies Indlia® nE 145,647 N E L EPRERENS

“E-~ENAZTER
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

35. fif B D B 2 518 (@)

(Continued)
(@) General information of subsidiaries (@ BRI —BRER (@)
(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Equity interest and
operations fully paid voting power
and date of share capital/ attributable Principal
Name of subsidiaries incorporation registered capital to the Company activity
gL/
BEBUR ERTRER AXRELEREER
WEARER B AR BA/ZRER kRE# TEEH
2023 2022
Bz —ZT-C
Guizhou Mars™ PRC RMBS5,000,000 100% 100%  Researchand
29 June 2016 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
BMAE: hE AR#5,000,0007T &R E LR
“E-REXRZTARB
Liuzhou Sprocomm* (former PRC RMB100,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of feature
known as “Liuzhou Spiking”) 1 September 2017 phones and smart
phones
EMRE (FImORMBER]) hE AR 100,000,000 7 HERETFHRR
“E-tFNA-A BT
Sprocomm Intelligence PRC RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Researchand
Technologies Limited* 24 December 2019 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
Sprocomm Inteligence H AR 20,000,000 7T T EHE RIABEM
Technologies Limitedt* —E-NE
TZAZt+mA
Shenzhen Fengma New Energy PRC RMB 3,000,000 100% 100%  Researchand
Technology Co., Ltd.*® 1 December 2021 development of cloud
computing and related
technology
AR S H s R R A R A O Ll AR #3,000,0007 e EE RABRI
“E-%5+_-A-H
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. Mt B 2 Al Z 518 (@)
(Continued)
(@) General information of subsidiaries (@) BRI —BRER @)
(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Equity interest and
operations fully paid voting power
and date of share capital/ attributable Principal
Name of subsidiaries incorporation registered capital to the Company activity
HMERL/
EEBUR BRTRARE AAREERTER
WEAREHE AL A8 BA/EHER RERE TEXHR
2023 2022
ZBZZE ZZ-CF
Windhorse Technologies LLC USA USD500,000 80% 80%  Trading of automobile
10 May 2022
Windhorse Technologies LLC” xH 500,000% 7T BEMWEYE
ZE-ZERATA
Shanghai Hexiangron PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Researchand
intelligent Building 23 March 2022 development of cloud
Technology Co., Ltd. *8 computing and related
technology
Shanghal Hexiangron & AR #30,000,000 7T M EHE RIABEM
Intelligent Building “Z--FZA-1+=H

Technology Co., Ltd.**8

Xiaohe Growth Shenzhen PRC RMB2,000,000 70% 70%  Trading of education
Technology Co., Ltd. ** 25 May 2022 tools

Xiaohe Growth Shenzhen & AE#2,000,0007 EEYEIA
Technology Co., Ltd.* “E--FRA-1+AH
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35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries
(Continued)

*

The English name is for identification only.

Company with limited liabilities incorporated in British Virgin
Islands.

Company with limited liabilities incorporated in Hong Kong.

Wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.

Company with limited liabilities established in the PRC.

Company with limited liabilities incorporated in India.

The subsidiary was established during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Company with limited liabilities incorporated in the United States
of America.

The subsidiary was disposed to an independent third
party during the year ended 31 December 2023 at a cash
consideration of approximately RMB14,391,000.

35. fif B D B 2 518 (@)

(@) MELAH—RER @

! NEBREZESEMKILNARAR -

2 NEBEMRINERRF]
s MARBIRIZ I EERE -
‘ AHBEKIZBRAR -
s RENERIOARAT -

g ZHBARREBEE-_ZE-_—4F+=-_A=+—H
IEEFEER -

’ RENBARBETMAZHARAT -

8 ZHBATERBE _Z-_=F+_A=1+—
ALFEHETREYE=F BaREADA
R #14,391,0007C °
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= — & —
s =

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the consolidated statements of cash

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

=FEFZAS+—AUFE
36. MEEHELEZEREHIR

TRALAEERETHELINEER
B EReRFERCEH -HEFD
EENBER Eiﬁimbijfﬁxfﬁiuw
ERERARERNERTHERMEE
PEERENEE -

Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
f&& ﬁﬁﬁﬁ @t
(Note 26) (Note 16)
(Hrit2e) (Hrit16)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT AREFTT
At 1 January 2022 RZE-—%—Hf—H 58,168 20,288 78,456
Non-cash movements FREBH
New lease arrangement HHERH - 304 304
Exchange realignment [E 5 A% 2,880 - 2,880
Early termination of lease RAKEEE - (5,590) (5,590)
Finance costs incurred (Note 8) BEEERBRAWHS) 17,347 914 18,261
Financing cash inflows BERSTA 239,723 - 239,723
Financing cash outflows BERS RN (266,295) (10,061) (276,356)
At 31 December 2022 RZZ_ZF+-A=+-H 51,823 5,855 57,678
At 1 January 2023 RZZ-_=%—HF—H 51,823 5,855 57,678
Non-cash movements E3k
New lease arrangement HHEERH - 20,740 20,740
Exchange realignment ERIECES 828 7 835
Finance costs incurred (Note 8) BEELRERK(WiES) 35,096 720 35,816
Financing cash inflows BERERA 458,262 - 458,262
Financing cash outflows BERS R (391,570) (19,007) (410,577)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%+ZA=+—H 154,439 8,315 162,754
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